
City of Kodiak Regular Council Meeting Agenda for August 8, 2013 

7:30 p.m., at 710 Mill Bay Road, Assembly Chambers (Room 232) 

 

 

I. Call to Order/Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance/Invocation 

 

II. Previous Minutes 

Approval of Minutes of the July 25, 2013, Regular Council Meeting ............................................1 

 

III. Persons to Be Heard  

a. Public Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231) 

 

IV. Unfinished Business 

a. Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1310, Amending Kodiak City Code 

3.08.025, Allocation of Tax Proceeds, to Eliminate the December 31, 2013, Sunset Date 

for a Portion of the City Sales Tax.....................................................................................10 

b. Authorization of Postage Machine Agreement ..................................................................14 

 

V. New Business 

a. First Reading, Ordinance No. 1311, Amending Kodiak City Code 5.40.010, Businesses 

on City Property Prohibited; Repealing and Reenacting Kodiak City Code Chapter 10.08, 

Motor Vehicle and Driving Offenses—Rules of the Road; Enacting Kodiak City Code 

Chapter 10.16, Stopping, Standing, and Parking; Repealing and Reenacting Kodiak City 

Code 10.40.010, Impoundment; Repealing Kodiak City Code 10.44.020, Failure to Obey 

Citation; Repealing and Reenacting Kodiak City Code 10.44.030, Vehicle and Traffic 

Offenses—Fine Schedule; to Provide for a Civil System for Parking Enforcement .........24 

b. Resolution No. 2013–25, Appropriating Funds for Additional Construction Expenses 

Related to the Shelikof Pedestrian Improvement Project ..................................................44 

c. Authorization of Professional Services Contract for Pillar Mountain Slide Analysis, 

Project No. 8013/11-07 ......................................................................................................48 

d. Authorization to Purchase Baranof Track and Field Bleachers, Project No.            

9001/12-05 .........................................................................................................................68 

e. Authorization of Bid Award for Annual Sidewalk, Curb, and Gutter Repairs, Project  No. 

5003/14-01 .........................................................................................................................74 

f. Authorization of Bid Award for Harbor Projects 2013, Project No. 14-02 .......................78 

g. Authorization of Bid Award for Demolition of Old Kodiak Police Station and 1118 

Mission Road Buildings, Project No. 4035/13-06 .............................................................90 

h. Authorization of the Re-plat of Lot 1A, Block 30 and Lot 9, Block 31, East Addition 

Subdivision, Including the Vacation of Portions of the Stellar Way Right-of-Way 

According to KIBC 16.60, Creating Lot 1B, Block 30 and Lot 9B, Block 31, East 

Addition Subdivision .........................................................................................................96 

 

VI. Staff Reports 

a. City Manager 

b. City Clerk 

 

VII. Mayor’s Comments 

 



VIII. Council Comments 

 

IX. Audience Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231) 

 

X. Executive Session to Discuss the Terms of the City Manager’s Employment Contract .....124 

 

XI. Adjournment 

 



DRAFT
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

OF THE CITY OF KODIAK
HELD THURSDAY, JULY 25, 2013

IN THE BOROUGH ASSEMBLY CHAMBERS

7712

I. MEETING CALLED TO ORDERIPLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCEIINVOCATION

Mayor Pat Branson called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. Councilmembers Randall C. Bishop,
Charles E. Davidson, Terry 1. Haines, Gabriel T. Saravia, Richard H. Walker, and John B.
Whiddon were present and constituted a quorum. City Manager Aimee Kniaziowski, City Clerk
Debra L. Marlar, and Deputy Clerk Michelle Shuravloff-Nelson were also present.

After the Pledge of Allegiance, Salvation Army Sergeant Major Dave Blacketer gave the invoca
tion.

II. PREVIOUS MINUTES

Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to approve the minutes of the July 11,2013, regular meeting
as presented.

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed.

III. PERSONS TO BE HEARD

a. Public Comments

None

IV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a. None

V. NEW BUSINESS

a. First Reading, Ordinance No. 1310, Amending Kodiak City Code 3.08.025, Allocation
of Tax Proceeds, to Eliminate the December 31, 2013, Sunset Date for a Portion of the
City Sales Tax

Mayor Branson read Ordinance No. 1310 by title. There is language in the City's sales tax code
that states the special allocations of sales tax currently appropriated to roads, parks, and harbor
capital improvements will expire by December 31,2013, unless extended or deleted. Staff dis
cussed the implications of the sunset provision with Council at their July 9, 2013, work session,
and Council voiced consensus to bring an ordinance forward to remove the sunset provision.
This ordinance will amend sections (a) and (b) ofKCC 3.08.025 to remove the sunset provision.
If passed by Council, the new ordinance will go into effect in enough time to avoid implementa
tion of the sunset provision on December 31, 2013.

1



JULY 25, 2013 7713

Councilmember Haines MOVED to pass Ordinance No. 1310 in the first reading and advance to
second reading and public hearing at the next regular or special Council meeting.

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed.

b. Resolution No. 2013-23, Authorizing Payment of Fiscal Year 2014 Nonprofit Organiza
tion Grants

Mayor Branson read Resolution No. 2013-23 by title. Each year the City Council authorizes
grant payments to local nonprofit organizations. The types and levels of funding are based on the
City Council's nonprofit funding policy guidelines adopted by Resolution No. 2011-10. The pol
icy also stipulates the total amount available for nonprofit grants in a given fiscal year, which
equals the maximum of one percent of budgeted general fund revenues, exclusive of any fund
balance appropriations. The amount budgeted for FY2014 for nonprofit grant payments is
$158,800. The City received 17 applications from nonprofit organizations that provide services
to Kodiak, for a total requested amount of$120,671. Council reviewed the applications at the Ju
ly 9, 2013, work session and indicated support to award requested funding to all FY2014 appli
cants.

Councilmember Walker MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2013-23.

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed.

c. Resolution No. 2013-24, Requesting the Governor and Legislature to Develop a Long
Term Solution to Ensure Full and Uninterrupted Ferry Service to Kodiak

Mayor Branson read Resolution No. 2013-24 by title. Mayor Branson and City Council mem
bers have expressed serious concern over the recent news that the return to service date for the
MN Tustumena was delayed again. The Tustumena was removed from service for scheduled re
pairs on November 1, 2012, at the Seward Ship Dry-dock. The latest delay is to correct repairs
that didn't meet safety inspection requirements. The Tustumena has been out of service for al
most ten months, causing economic harm to the communities it serves. The Kodiak community
businesses, especially the tourism-based businesses, have experienced cancellations due to the
lack of ferry service. Other businesses that rely on the ferry to transport fish, equipment, and
supplies have also been affected.

Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to adopt Resolution 2013-24.

Councilmember Whiddon said he strongly supports this resolution. He stated the ferry delay has
had an adverse affect for Kodiak. He stated that the Council should work with the Alaska Munic
ipal League (AML) and Southwest Alaska Municipal Conference (SWAMC) to align strategies
to address the ferry delay with the Legislature and Governor.

Councilmember Walker said he supports this resolution and voiced his concern about the ferry
delay. He said the delay will negatively impact the construction projects on the island, as well as
travel for school based activities.

2



JULY 25, 2013 7714

Mayor Branson shared the infonnation she received from the Marine Highway System General
Manager Captain John Falvey about the ferry delay and the proposed schedule for the Kennicott
to substitute some the Tustumena's scheduled trips for the remainder ofthe year. She said a press
release is scheduled for Friday.

Councilmember Haines said that the Kennicott will not be able to dock at certain locations due to
its size. He stated it is not an optimal solution to replace the Tustumena's ferry schedule with the
Kennicott for several locations in Alaska.

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed.

d. Authorization of Change Order No.2 to Aleutian Homes Water and Sewer Phase V,
Segment A, Project No. 7026/10-03

Aleutian Homes Water and Sewer Replacement Phase V, Segment A is a continuation of the up
grade of utilities, pavement, and sidewalks in the Aleutian Home Area. The award for construc
tion for this segment of the upgrade project was issued to Brechan Enterprises, Inc. on March 18,
2013. Change Order No.2 is for rock trench excavation, sanitary sewer service connect, footing
drain services, resetting fence, and modular block retaining wall.

Councilmember Bishop MOVED to authorize Change Order No.2 to Brechan Enterprises in the
amount of $87,675, with funds coming from the Water Capital Improvement Fund, Aleutian
Homes Water and Sewer Project, Phase V Segment A, Project No. 7026/10-03, and authorize the
City Manager to sign the documents on behalfof the City.

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed.

e. Authorization of Vehicle Purchase for Kodiak Police Department

This action authorizes the replacement of one older and high mileage police patrol vehicle that
has been recommended for replacement in FY2014 with a 2014 model all-wheel-drive Police
Utility Vehicle. The existing vehicle has been in service beyond its useful life and has been eval
uated for replacement, consistent with the Council's Vehicle Replacement Policy.

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to authorize the City to attach to the State of Alaska Light
Duty Contract to purchase one 2014 model year Ford all wheel drive Police Utility Vehicle in the
amount of $25,830, with funds corning from the FY2014 Kodiak Police Department Operation
Budget, Unifonn Patrol Sub-department, Machinery and Equipment line item.

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed.

f. Authorization of Ambulance Purchase

3



JULY 25, 2013 7715

One of the three ambulances used in the Fire Department, a 1997 International, was evaluated
and identified for replacement. Staff submitted a grant through the State of Alaska Code Blue
Phase 11 funding, and in 2012 the City was notified of a partial award of up to $35,000 to be ap
plied toward the replacement cost of a new ambulance. In April of this year, staff was informed
that reallocated USDA funds in the amount of $61,000 were also available for the ambulance
purchase. The Code Blue and USDA grants provide combined funding of $96,000, and the
City's matching grant funding of $105,000 will cover the remaining cost to purchase a new am
bulance.

Councilmember Haines MOVED to authorize purchase of a 2013 North Star 167-1 ambulance
through Braun NW in the amount of $201,000, with funds coming from the FY2014 General
Capital Project Fund, Fire Department Ambulance Replacement Account.

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed.

g. Authorization of Fire Truck Purchase

One of the fire pumper trucks used in the Fire Department, a 1986 E-One Cyclone pumper, was
evaluated and identified for replacement in 2011 and was budgeted as a capital purchase in the
FY2012 budget. Staff looked for grant funding, and the City Council identified the pumper as
one of its state legislative priorities during that time, but no funding was available. In October
2012, the fire pumper was decommissioned due to severe mechanical, pump, and electrical is
sues that were not cost effective to fix. The City's budget identifies a replacement fire pumper as
a capital purchase in the amount of $450,000.

Councilmember Walker MOVED to authorize purchase of a replacement fire pumper manufac
tured by the Pierce Manufacturing Company through its distributor, Hughes Fire Equipment, in
the amount of $450,000, with funds coming from the General Capital Project Fund, Fire De
partment Engine Account.

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed.

h. Authorization of Bid Awards for Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment for the New Li
brary, Project No. 6012/12-02

This recommendation is to authorize the awards of two contracts for furniture, fixtures, and
equipment (FF&E) for the new library facility. The first is the authorization to award a procure
ment bid contract to Capital Office Systems in the amount of $251,554.97, and the second is to
authorize a sole source procurement contract for the custom fabrication of the circulation desk to
Demco Interiors in the amount of $48,348.90.

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to authorize award ofthe bid procurement contract for furni
ture, fixtures, and equipment to Capital Office Systems in the amount of $251,554.97, and a sep
arate procurement contract to Demco Interiors for the circulation desk for the quoted price of
$48,348.90, with funds coming from the Building Improvement Fund, New Library, Project No.
6012/12-02 and authorize the City Manager to execute the contracts on behalf of the City.

4



JULY 25, 2013 7716

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed.

i. Authorization of Document Production Equipment Lease

The City's contract with its current vendor for document production equipment (copy machines)
for City Hall, Kodiak Police Department (KPD), Harbor, and Library ended in April 2013, and
the contract has been carried over on a month-to-month basis until a new contract is authorized.
A request for proposals for a new five-year lease was issued in March 2013. Two proposals were
received and were opened and scored in June 2013. One proposal was submitted by Frontier
Business Systems, the City's current vendor, for Konica machines and one proposal was submit
ted by OfficeTECH for Xerox machines. Frontier Business Systems received 74 points and
OfficeTECH received 84 points.

Councilmember Haines MOVED to authorize a sixty-month lease agreement with
OfficeTECHIXerox Corporation for:

• 1 Xerox Colorqube 9303 in the amount of $462.75 monthly, with funds coming from the
General Fund, Non-Departmental, Administration Account;

• 1 Xerox W7855PT with professional finisher in the amount of $229.37 monthly and two
Xerox Colorqube 8700 machines in the amount of $80.50 each monthly, with funds com
ing from the General Fund, Police, Police Support Services Account;

• 1 Xerox W7855PT in the amount of $171.23 monthly, with funds coming from the En
terprise Fund, Boat Harbor, Administration Account; and

• 1 Xerox 5855A in the amount of $195.47 monthly, with funds coming from the General
Fund, Library, Administration Account

and authorize the City Manager to sign the lease on behalf of the City.

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed.

j. Authorization of Postage Machine Agreement

The City Hall postage machine is leased from Pitney Bowes through an ongoing rental agree
ment. The agreement was originally entered into under the City Code Chapter 3.12.070(c)
through the Western States Contracting Alliance (WSCA). At the time the packet was prepared,
Pitney Bowes was the only known vendor who supplies postage machines suitable to meet the
City's needs and participates in the WSCA. Pitney Bowes offered the City the option of upgrad
ing to a new postage machine, while at the same time lowering the monthly lease payment from
$529.30 to $474.81. The total cost ofa five-year rental agreement would go from $31,758.00 to
$28,488.60 for an overall savings of $3,269.40. Recently, staff received an unsolicited proposal
from another vendor that also participates in the WSCA. Due to the late arrival of this proposal,
staff recommends the Council postpone action until the August 8, 2013, meeting.

Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to approve the five-year postage machine replacement
agreement with Pitney Bowes for the total amount of $28,488.60 for the five-year term begin-

5



JULY 25, 2013 7717

ning August 1, 2013, through July 31, 2018, with funds coming from the Finance Department,
Utilities operating budget in the General Fund.

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to postpone the vote on this motion until the August 8, 2013,
regular meeting.

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and
Whiddon in favor. The motion to postpone passed.

VI. STAFF REPORTS

a. City Manager

Manager Kniaziowski announced that the Planning and Zoning Commission approved the City's
land application to lease land for composting. Manager Kniaziowski thanked Public Works Di
rector Mark Kozak for his work on the land application packet. Manager Kniaziowski said she
was pleased to meet with the Kodiak Island Borough (KIB) staff, Peter Olson, CH2MHill and
Sara Barton, the consultant of the composting community outreach program. She said it was
good to have all the key players together; they created a 12-month outline of objectives and those
responsible to meet the objectives.

Manager Kniaziowski said she has been asked about the water supply in Kodiak and reported it
is satisfactory at this time. She checked with the Public Works Director and he indicated the dai
ly usage is 4.5 million gallons, which is manageable. Manager Kniaziowski said if the warm
weather continues for the next month they will review the water supply again.

She said the Library construction is moving along as planned. She is working with staff on a
transition plan to relocate to the new Library.

Manager Kniaziowski said the Shelikof Road slide repair is progressing as planned and should
be open to thru traffic within the next two weeks. She said the Aleutian homes repair is on
schedule with a projected completion by mid-September.

She indicated the work on the baseball outfield is progressing. She said the turf will be installed
mid-August and should be completed by mid-September.

She said the Downtown Revitalization Committee will be scheduled soon and Police Chief T.e.
Kamai will attend to give an overview of the legal parameters for the downtown area.

b. City Clerk

City Clerk Marlar informed the public of the next scheduled Council work session and regular
meeting.

Clerk Marlar announced the October 1,2013, election preparation is occurring in the Clerk's Of
fice. She indicated to the public they will need to be registered to vote by September 1, 2013, to
vote in the October 1, 2013, election. She informed citizens if they have moved from an area in
the Borough to the City they will need to register to vote within the City. She stated the two-year

6



JULY 25, 2013 7718

Mayoral seat and two three-year Councilmember seats will be up for election in October. The
candidate packets are available in the Clerk's office. The declaration of candidacy opens on Au
gust 1, 2013, and closes on August 15, 2013, at 4:30 p.m. Clerk Marlar let the public know the
City needs election workers. She encouraged the public to call the Clerk's office if they have any
questions.

VII. MAYOR'S COMMENTS

Mayor Branson said she was disappointed with the ferry delay and has discussed her concerns
with Borough Mayor Selby. She said they plan to discuss their concerns together with the Gov
ernor and the Department of Transportation Commissioner regarding the delay and the replace
ment of the ferry for southwest Alaska. She mentioned that the Alaska Marine Highway System
has a board seat available and encouraged local applications.

Mayor Branson congratulated the U.S.C.G. on their anniversary and thanked them for the service
they provide. She voiced appreciation of the Council supporting the nonprofits and the quality of
life that the nonprofits bring to the community. She mentioned that several of the nonprofits have
coordinated grief services for the recent tragedies in the community.

Mayor Branson said she was pleased with the progress of the Library building, stated Jerry
Laktonen's artwork has been hung in the building, and she stated she looks forward to the next
tour of the building.

She announced Relay for Life was occurring this weekend. She said the donations go to the
American Cancer Society. She plans to walk to honor those affected by cancer and encouraged
the public to participate.

VIII. COUNCIL COMMENTS

Councilmember Walker stated he has been out reviewing the construction projects and expressed
his appreciation to Manager Kniaziowski for work on these projects. He thanked Chief of Police
T.C. Kamai and Fire Chief Rome Kamai for their hard work and dedication. He said his thoughts
and prayers go out to the two families who have lost children. He shared that there will be a din
ner fundraiser for the Matuatia family at the Elks Lodge next Thursday.

Councilmember Bishop offered his condolences to the two families who have lost children. He
encouraged everyone to practice safety in their daily activities.

Councilmember Haines expressed his condolences to the families who have lost children. He
said he appreciates the nonprofits within the community and the services they provide. He shared
his concern regarding the delay of the Tustemena. He said he feels it is the time to let the Legis
lature know how important the ferry system is for the community and is pleased the Council has
adopted the Resolution No. 2013-24.

Councilmember Saravia thanked Chief of Police T.C. Kamai and Fire Chief Rome Kamai for the
services they provide. He shared his condolences for the families who have recently lost a child.
He gave a fishing update.

7



JULY 25, 2013 7719

Councilmember Davidson expressed his condolences to the families who have recently lost a
child. He asked campers to be aware of the dryness of the ground when they start camp fires. He
commented on the adverse affect to Kodiak's economy with the delay of the Tustemena. He said
it would be helpful to quantify the impact of the Tustumena delay to the Department of Trans
portation.

Councilmember Whiddon said his thoughts and prayers go out to the families who have recently
lost a child. He said he was pleased with the promptness of the construction projects. He ex
pressed his appreciation for the quick response of KEA workers and the fire department when
the transfonner exploded this week. He expressed his gratitude and thanked the U.S.C.G. for
their 223 years of service.

IX. AUDIENCE COMMENTS

None

X. ADJOURNMENT

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to adjourn the meeting.

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed.

The meeting adjourned at 8:29 p.m.

CITY OF KODIAK

MAYOR
ATTEST:

CITY CLERK

Minutes Approved:

8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

9



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL

To: Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers

From: Aimee Kniaziowski, CityMana~
Date: August 8, 2013

Agenda Item: IV. a. Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1310, Amending
Kodiak City Code 3.08.025, Allocation of Tax Proceeds, to Eliminate the
December 31, 2013, Sunset Date for a Portion of the City Sales Tax

SUMMARY: The current language in the City's sales tax code states the special allocations of sales tax
currently appropriated to roads, parks, and harbor capital improvements will expire by December 31,
2013, unless extended or deleted. Staff discussed the implications of the sunset provision with Council
at their July 9 work session, and Council voiced consensus to bring an ordinance forward to remove the
sunset provision. Council also reviewed and discussed the ordinance when it was introduced at the
regular meeting on July 25. This ordinance amends sections (a) and (b) ofKCC 3.08.025 to remove the
sunset provision. If passed by Council, the new ordinance will go into effect in enough time to avoid
implementation of the sunset provision on December 31, 2013. Therefore, staff recommends Council
adopt Ordinance No. 1310.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:
• May 27, 1993, Council adopted Ordinance No. 964, which dedicated a portion of sales taxes

collected to fund road improvements and capital equipment, park construction and capital
improvements, and port and harbor capital improvements.

• June 12, 2003, Council approved Ordinance No. 1155, which extended the special 2% sales tax
allocation to fund road improvements and capital equipment, park construction and capital
improvements, and port and harbor capital improvements until December 31, 2013, unless
further extended.

• July 9, 2013, Council reviewed and discussed the pending sunset provision to KCC 3.08.025
and, by consensus, requested staff to bring a Code amendment forward to eliminate the sunset
provision.

• July 25, 2013, Council discussed Ordinance No. 1310 and advanced to second reading and
public hearing.

DISCUSSION: The Kodiak City Council initiated the City's first sales tax in 1956 to be used for boat
harbor construction and streets. Since that time, the City has amended the sales tax code many times.
The amendments that are of concern today are 1993 and 2003 ordinances that established three special
revenue funds for capital improvements.

In 1993, Council adopted an ordinance that allocated a portion of the sales tax collected to special funds
for roads, parks, and the harbor. The funds were identified for use in capital improvements and

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item IV. a. Memo Page 1 of 3

10



ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment A: Ordinance 1310

PROPOSED MOTION:

Move to adopt Ordinance 1310.

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item IV. a. Memo Page 3 of3

11



CITY OF KODIAK
ORDINANCE NUMBER 1310

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AMENDING
KODIAK CITY CODE 3.08.025, ALLOCATION OF TAX PROCEEDS, TO ELIMINATE
THE DECEMBER 31, 2013, SUNSET DATE FOR A PORTION OF THE CITY SALES
TAX

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, that:

Section 1: Kodiak City Code 3.08.025, Allocation of sales tax proceeds, is hereby amended
to read as follows:

3.08.025 Allocation of sales tax proceeds. (a) One-sixth of the sales taxes
collected under paragraph (b) of section 3.08.010 of this chapter and one-eleventh
of the sales taxes collected under paragraph (a) of section 3.08.010 of this chapter
shall be allocated to a separate fund or account to be appropriated and utilized
solely for road improvements and capital equipment and for park construction and
capital improvements, provided, however, that the total amount of sales taxes
allocated to the foregoing fund with respect to anyone fiscal year shall not exceed
$500,000. This tax ',vill be collected ootil December 31, 2013, unless further
extended by the City CO\:lncil and is to be allocated as follows:

(l) Ninety percent for road improvements and capital equipment;
and

(2) Ten percent for park construction and capital improvements.
(b) One-sixth of the sales taxes collected under paragraph (b) of section

3.08.010 of this chapter and one-eleventh of the sales taxes collected under
paragraph (a) of section 3.08.010 of this chapter shall be allocated to a separate
fund or account to be appropriated and utilized solely for harbor capital
improvements constructed by or on behalf of the city, provided, however, that the
total amount of sales taxes allocated to the foregoing fund with respect to anyone
fiscal year shall not exceed $500,000. This tax will be colleeted \:lnti! December
31, 2013, \:lnless further eKtended by the City COW'l6il and is to be allocated for
port infrastructure maintenance, repair, replacement, and capital equipment.

(c) Five-elevenths of the sales taxes collected under subsection
3.08.010(a) shall be allocated to a separate fund or account to be appropriated and
utilized solely for increased development of the tourist industry, and is to be
allocated as follows:

(l) Seventy percent or less to a council approved tourism program;
(2) Twenty percent or more for tourism enhancement projects,

such as beautification within the city, development of which shall be
solely at the council's discretion; and

(3) Ten percent for the administrative costs associated with such
programs.

[Bold and underlined added. Deleted lang\:lage stricken thro\:lgh.]

Ordinance No. 1310
Page 1 of2

12

cperkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



Section 2:

ATTEST:

(d) The balance of sales taxes collected shall be deposited to the general
fund of the city to be appropriated as detennined by the council.

(e) There will be an annual public hearing scheduled to discuss the
following fiscal year's priorities for the expenditures of the road and harbor
dedicated sales tax revenues.

This ordinance shall be effective one month after its final passage and publication
in accordance with Kodiak Charter Section 2-13.

CITY OF KODIAK

MAYOR

CITY CLERK

First Reading: July 25, 2013
Second Reading & Public Hearing:
Effective Date:

[Bold and underlined added. Deleted laflgHage striekea through.]

Ordinance No. 1310
Page 2 of2

13



To:

From:

Thru:

Date:

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL

Mayor Branson and City Council71embers

Aimee Kniaziowski, CityMana~
Mary Munk, Finance Director~VW
August 8, 2013

Agenda Item: IV. b. Authorization of Postage Machine Agreement

SUMMARY: The City Hall postage machine is rented from Pitney Bowes through an ongoing rental
agreement. The agreement was originally entered into under the City Code Chapter 3.12.070 (c) through
the Western States Contracting Alliance (WSCA). WSCA, a cooperative purchasing group, has
contracts with two providers (Pitney Bowes and Neopost) for postage machine rentals who are both
represented in Alaska. Pitney Bowes has proposed an option of upgrading to a new postage machine,
while at the same time lowering the monthly rental payment from $529.30 to $480.26. The total cost of
a five-year rental agreement would go from $31,758.00 to $28,815.60 for an overall savings of
$2,942.40. Additionally, Neopost has submitted a proposal for a comparable postage machine with
similar features at a total cost for a five-year rental agreement in the amount of $34,195.44. Staff
recommends Council authorize the replacement agreement with Pitney Bowes for a total of $28,815.60
for the five-year rental term from August 2013 through July 2018.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:
• January 15,2009, Council authorized a five-year postage machine rental agreement with Pitney

Bowes in the amount of $31,758.00 for the entire term ofthe rental.

• July 25, 2013, Council postponed approval of the postage rental agreement until staff could
analyze the last minute proposal for a Neopost postal machine received after the Council packet
was published.

BACKGROUND: WSCA was formed in October 1993 by state purchasing directors from fifteen
western states. The primary purpose was to establish the means by which participating states could join
together in cooperative multi-state contracting in order to achieve cost-effective and efficient acquisition
of quality products and services.

DISCUSSION: The City's original agreement with Pitney Bowes to rent a postage machine was
approved under a provision of the City's purchasing code that allows the purchase of goods or services
without bidding when other units of government have established the lowest responsible bidder or
vendor whose products or services meet the City's needs or specifications.

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item IV. b. Memo Page 1 of3

14



The City received two proposals: one from Pitney Bowes and one from Mail Finance (Neopost), both of
which participate in the WSCA contract. The two proposals compare like equipment and features with a
cost of $34,195.44 for the Neopost proposal and $28,815.60 for Pitney Bowes for a five-year rental.
This new five-year agreement would also fall under City Code 3.12.070(c) Exceptions to bidding
requirements, because both vendors supply postage machines suitable to meet the City's needs and
participate in WSCA.

With the authorization of the rental agreement with Pitney Bowes, the City will save $2,942.40 over the
current five-year rental agreement. The Pitney Bowes proposal is $5,379.84 lower than the Neopost
proposal, as well. The replacement machine is a ConnecH 2000 Series designed for the mid- to high
capacity mailroom. It is simple to operate with a touch-screen and other easy-to-use applications. Its
standard process color printing can simultaneously print messages and postage indicia. The ConnecH
2000 also enables users to download software updates, send reports, check postage rates and get support,
right on the machine. It has the capability to print the City's return address and logo on all envelopes
saving on the cost of pre-printed envelopes. The current machine doesn't have this capability.

Staff believes a replacement rental agreement with Pitney Bowes will upgrade the current postage
machine to a machine that will allow the City to take advantage of the newest technology and save
money. Therefore, staff recommends Council authorize the five-year rental agreement with Pitney
Bowes for a total of$28,815.60 for the five-year term.

ALTERNATIVES:
1. Authorize the replacement rental agreement with Pitney Bowes, which is staffs

recommendation, because it provides the City with an up-to-date postage machine with the
latest technology at a lesser cost.

2. Do not authorize the agreement, which is not recommended because the City will not have
access to improved technology.

3. Authorize the Neopost agreement, which is not recommended, because the proposed cost for the
five-year term is greater than the Pitney Bowes agreement for a comparable machine.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: This rental agreement is budgeted in the FY2014 budget and the
Finance, Utility operating budget. The annual budget detail for this line item is $6,360 and the annual
cost for the replacement rental agreement is $5,763.12. The Pitney Bowes replacement rental agreement
is lower than the FY2014 budget.

LEGAL: Acquisition of the new Pitney Bowes postage machine is consistent with City Code Chapter
3.12.070(c), Contract, Purchase, and Sale Procedures. Section (c) states that an exception to the bidding
requirements may take place when contracts for property or services where other units of government,
through their formal bidding process, have established the lowest responsible bidder and where the

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item IV. b. Memo Page 2 of3

15



property or service meets or exceeds the city's specifications, when the best interests of the City would
be served and is in accordance with City and state laws.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council authorize the five-year replacement rental
agreement with Pitney Bowes in the amount of $28,815.60 for the five-year term of the agreement with
funds coming from the Finance Department, Utility Division operating budget in the General Fund.

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: Staff evaluated the proposals from Neopost and Pitney Bowes
and believe the Pitney Bowes agreement costs less and their machine best serves our needs. The new
five-year agreement with Pitney Bowes and the upgraded machine are good for City operations. The
new machine will be user friendly, less expensive, and more versatile than the one we currently rent. I
support staffs recommendation and would like Council to authorize the rental.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment A: Pitney Bowes Proposal
Attachment B: Neopost Proposal

Clerk's Note: The motion to approve a jive-year postage machine replacement agreement with Pitney
Bowes, for the total amount of$28, 815. 60, is already on thejloor. It was postponed at the July 25, 2013,
meeting. If the Council is ready to move forward with this recommendation, the motion may be further
discussed before the roll call vote.

PROPOSED MOTION:
The motion is on the jloor for discussion before vote.

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item IV. b. Memo Page 3 00

16



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

17



• PitneyBowes
1+ /I!+L NlLtlV I /1

WSCAINASPO Term Rental Installment Option A Agreement
Account # 60
Your Business Infonnatlon

CITY OF KODIAK

Agreement Number

FWll-a&! Name Df Culll>mlr

PO BOX 1397

aOng COlIIaa Name

710 MILL BAY RD
lnslslls~on AdcInIa, (If ddf'm",t from blUrng sddf9S1il. Slrat

InsIal81lon COlIl8ct N'1fIII

F_I Pencd {ftDm • taJ

DBA...... of Cuelomer Ta ID • (I'I!INlTINI

KODIAK AK
City SI8t8

15405845874
BiIlllll Conl8ct Phone. a,AIng CAN.

KODIAK AK
Cily Slate

50153280206
IIIIleU.~on Conl8ct Phone' IMldation CAN •

Cullomar PO • DalV8/YCAN.

99615-1397
~t4

99615-6340

Your Business Needs

__.. lapuollll _

~ .. _ lot poll8ge,__1IOl ........_--rwpodlrlg--

Qty Business Solution Description
Mall Stream SOluUon • 1
Connec:tt 2000 Series

Conned+ Series Mater
180/115 LPM Feature
151b Interfaced Weighing
300 Dept Accounting -INVIEW TMR required
Color Graphics Prinllng
.-Return RlICIIIpt Feature
15 In. DlsPIIY - High ReI Apps Center
Conned+ 2000 Color Prlnler
Connec:t+ Drop Slacker
Additional Items on following page

Check Items to be lnaluded In austomer's parmento Equipment Maln18nlnn (11t Yllllr fnc:luded)
PIlMd8lIss1VlDtl -/lIlllI 'ndUr1iJJQ~ pa1tI and »bot

o 80ltware MalnteRlnce (1lt year Included)
PlDvidIIIltWIilJIIu~ eM/edI~...../Q

IE] Soft-4ue.... SullllCflpllan {Included wltIl your m8t8r renlal)
ProvidN pMtal atld C8ffiIH IIpdalBs

r;t IntllllllnkllD SUbllcrlpClon/Metef Rentel
~ PrrwItIas *'PNIfId bIanIl- IrrdlIdH I J_III fIIIr,.....

(x)e_........
( )P.__"

Your Payment Plan

Number Of Months

First 60

Monthly Amount·

$480.26

( ) RequRd 8d¥InCB c:tIack of S
TBll Exempli
( ) Tax Exempt CeltiRcate Attached
( ) TBll Exempt Cel1J1icale Nol Required

rtIC8IVed
Slale TIIll IN /JPpliaJblrJl

Your Signature Below
By Ilgnlng t.low, you liS.... eo lie bound by this Tenn RlIIll.llt lnllallmenl Option A Agl'II8ment (this "RBIIaI"). This Rental II 1IIIId. .nd Inti... Into
purwuBnl tD your S....'lIEntIly·. PlrtlCllpltlns Addendum, wtIIch 111 midI In CIllnneo1lon wltJl the WSCAlNA8PO Cantrect • AD8P011~11·1

{nA!l"lemlnU"), III or which ... Ivellallla It www.pb.comlltBtes. The Ianat and condlllon, of the AS'"mentl gonm thla IrIIl18CIIon, lIRd In the
fient of any fncorm-tllney with tHa Rente" the AgnNImenta will IUplreed8 thl. Rantll. T1lIs Rintli will be binding on P8GFS only after PBGf8 ""
compl.eed ltI el'lldlt Ind documlnlatlon IIppIOVlI proc.. end In authollllld PBGFS amplgyM.a bIIow.

WN2012MAILOOO4

eullIllnar Signalure Slale'sIl!nllly'l Perllr:ipaUng AddImd.....

PI1nI Nanli Tille

Sales Infonnatlon

Curtis W Lynn II 021
Ac:ciounl Rep Name Dlslrict Offloe PBGFS AcceplBnce

"" _.pll.101111ebtu for addlllanalltnna Ind ooodllll"l
P..". ,(C0174811 2)

WSCA I NASPO Tena Rtn.... In...Umtnl OptIon A AtI I_1lI (Vne" 3113)
alIi2 p",,~ ......... AI r1ghtlt ............ PItney Sotl4uan1. InltlHUnk and Pur...... P_r_ nsPtll'lld ltad.....rb awn'" by I'IIn.y a_.......

18

cperkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



• PitneyBowes
WSCA/NASPO Term Rentallnatallment Option A Agreement
Account # 60
Your Business Infonnatlon

CITY OF KODIAK

Agreement Number

POBOX 1397

IlIIng ConI8ct NIl""

710 MILL BAY RD
IMlllIllIllon Add.... (II dtll8tenl from blPmg 8ddJ&ssl. S\IelII

FIIc8I PeriDd (hili • m,
Your Business Needs

1 Conned+ VBS Training
1 Conned+ VBS Welcome KIt
1 InlelllUnk Subscription

1 1S1b Scale PlatfBrmlStand

1 INVIEW TMR wIh Web Accounting

1 INVlEW TMR conned+ •Single Melar

1 INVIEW Subscription

1 INVIEW Training

DBA N8m. af CUIIamer Ta ID 'I~EINITIN)

KODIAK AI(

caw SlIIle

15405845874
I!IIwIg CarMet Phane • O;n;ngCAN'

KODIAK AI(

CIty 8....

50153280206
......" CGnI8ct Phone. .....IIonCAN •

cu.n.PO. D....."CNf.

99615-1391

9961~

(C01T"'121 PI" t , ... _ ...........__ -.Nilan" ..""..............".

WlCA I NAlPO T."" _"t11II",IeI"".", 0IMIen A~..(V.....,. 11I'1
e201l PllMt ..... InL All It.........",.... PIney a-leftoGunI, IIIOllILll* "'" PIn........." u. ,.......... Inld.melb_d 117 "lin.,1_In..

19



Product Lease Agreement
with Meter Rental AgrcflmCnl

MailFinance
" N('nrn~'1 II~,' I.nmpillll/

_ SecUon (AJ Deelor Inlormation
I Phnn,.; . -_.. - --- . _ ... -_. . -1-,,··, c --.-

--- .,....,I ,., ~ .~II!"l"'dt'''1

(_~-:Y1~._jfo',:-~-sJS' S 0.__

Section CB) Billing Inlormahon

1""'"1"111"'-)70 INnMru 'wJI;. i'~~.P::k j .- - -
Jn~I.llI'l,nnG,ly KoJ"a!< ~ '-l~JJ'~('i~Sto I
In~,.'L't"". en,,'''''! "'-,nln •.~I:"n ...""~~= I
InMnnahon COfl1nct rll~ I .u Nil"'"'' f 1

I---------L.-..--.... _
Inw.aba.,nn CnnlAC' rn\illl Ml1rP.!to.lI '1

Coqtatl F.az Number

P••c""", QUIRI N'wnber

H~It' Protr.f;ltOl" • Onllnp. Pn~l,;tl fCah!s Cr'''I'II.,., P".I'II!

o Her> ISI"lI/)/!II Up<I.u'·1
o Nrmr.

o ~r.·'s

o Ev.... ttrlll

• POC

• N~w

Section (Hl Services

Art"ch '.ISI'S r;I~'
Aflff,olll'.,fJOII/p.I,e,

o OMA.<; Ir.PlI

r""ngn I uodln!1 'Jnl~l)ol

o BdIM"

o Prepay by enr.,.

o ACH OP.bil
JlIl.w:nACH
tt"'/lt;ftl..'tlIOu FOfrtl

Monthly ?~ym"n1

Tax Slillllfi P"rlOll I/nfMr.nlh!\ (plllS nlJl,l'cailln r".~~l __

0 T">;Ihl" f',r.;! l~ 4;;.1." t.f• T.'I.·EJl(mlrl -
C:'!fbf,r.i1,piI/I,,,;r''''f Np.., lfP: (6.'l., t:t7

B'Jbng F r(!~,,(!nc.y

• Mnnlt~v Nn'l

0 Quartc"y

0 I\I1I11h'UV W"xl

DoIiln!! MIllhntJ

0 Stallllmd Cullenl I e."'K1! Nunl~t

0 GOvP./,IC'l'''''(

PaY"'''''1 In flJrl'i1f5 Npw l r .."r Mumbf;oJ

,M"ler I\flJl5. • Onllnp. Pn~I;III"IlC'Il~f' M.w.II/"",,,,,1
o O'N"" E·5,,' .....:"5

• Onlmr. F. Sm",CP5 with FIr.I'ttn'lU" (.{f"lllJIl '~""'I'f''f''

Section (Fl ACH Direet Oebil lot Lease Payments (II/1nr.h Vo~fed CheCk)

I80,111</11_,. Ilan" Contael N.,me-

t

0.1011. edt. Slme A('"r'i. Conlact Phtme' ~~ln1her

. '.

f n:tnll nOtJhnp NlJmlW't O"nII ,\(co..", ~hrnbr.r

Sohwam.

Ocaler SetV'cPs

o $ollwilt" I\cJVantil!ll'

• M"tnlcnanr.r-

Seclion (I) Approval

e"!II'''fJ r,,~I"'''I)r< ""hll ",,,,,lilly r"I~II""PO!\lago ar.ca"nl lIy lIel< 00111\ ",,"I nol M tnnW'Tlm' In ""oFunds/Toltlll'"",ls \ '.'1.... In,I·;II,,<Illr.ft'

ThI!t dncul"P.nt tn,,~a~.~ I)' .. Protlucl l~asr. rle;l5c"') WJth MiUIFJniU\C1! roe .and/or i\ l"nslfllJC! M'"h"1' Hrnlnl I\gft'!:'!nlP.'''' rl~~',"'" AcJrM"l''''''1 ) ill'l{l an OI'~111~ $"r",,~.'·' .Jltll &.IIlVl.u/'
~~nvml ...dll Np.np«l..t IJ.51\ lor. . ;t,.r .1 ncnFundfJ'Tm..,fFurvfllt At:r.:n,..' I\nrf!ement Wllh Mlllll'oom Frttaner. II¥': Ynul Stgn.'IlJf~r;O~1fhilP'"~n n'fl'f It~ Pr'I..,( Inhl II,,,, lift,ISI' .,,"l ,I 1(1(1ltl .11'1·- I

dlt! oUlr.t' dur"'~l'CI'l(!r.. ilt'''' tlr....r'OwH~d9n~ \hill Y:lli l\;lye rrceI\'ed. cead. ~ agree 10 all .,pphr.abln Ic.rn't$ """. r.OIwkll{..... ("P.f~l",~ o·n.i 11) ~/tllC.:" tVP '1:-." .\V.1I1,1N~ .••
~nft ...\.1'.',...... .!2...c.utlO~{,ft'':".f9J..!..!!.!.C'!rl.I?!Qp1!!~I·Lc;l'::,~·02-lli~l!. 4,,,tJ llta. yoU Am aUllwv"P.f1 If) SI!.!rt lha anrccI11(\'nl~nn br.h,,11 nl tI'Ir o.l!tlOll\r.r Irie-nt,h....1t ;lhovr. Ttl,· apJ,hr.;,ltI.· .....l('·I·II'rnlo, "',,111 I

bIIellO'O b,NI",,! III' 1m tOO1~MIr.s.nn"t,l",~a!lIlVe only aIle< an allll'nrancl,M,."',,al ilCl'upl$ your ~lfr.' hy ''0"'''11 bulOW. lit ....""III<> "']1111"",,"1" .1"1\1'""111 VIII'

1\f".nfllf"lllv~r~""11M~:"."~• .'.:I'~I,:..:,,~,~r'~::":::I~;::·;~. ~ _

20



MailFinance
ANeapost USA Company

Product lease Agreement
with Meter Rental Agreement

Section (D) Proctu~ COIItlnulllan Schedule (CDII~ued)

Quanllty MDcI•• t Pal\ Number DISCtipdlln (Include 8eri1l NumIIIr. IIl1pp~Q1b1B)

I , TJlJ.::~AlH) :u( 'l., ~kl¢.<: A-b SforuJIA l'V,'Q 1\.. •.• oad)
7 , I!lll. lhl c- o .~ -'so F&~:j.(.H'd 'i A..:.'!"voft6t- ~:4- -·.J.:i,u("lw .. /t,&. coJ..
• c- TN_C:;1J-;.,C. ).s;o E-R~ 'Ro-f.v ~..t(£ 15.~ .... 1't"(:'''_A .Ca.-_
I .pj",_-I-"ol~ "(6L...f"" (';)00'. ~.c:;;"..t.~--fUl.b C~..~.(:J .. ::'.."",,~ J_I-fr -:;',~J
10 (Sf>O) Cl..C~+;.Qed ./(QLor's
11

12 I ~t-S'Jt~c. -.4JJ"~..·c 'Pt\: lA··hu,. .Cl. ,fl.fe 11.,.,( Full Ce/f!J'" I' ./L ...
13 I 'TIJ.05Cf D. .. _~c.nol: (I~a..~~:+ M- c\
14 • V /

15

1.

17

1.

18

20

21

22

23

24

25

21

21

21

211

3G

31

32

3.3

34

35

38

37

31

39

40

.1

.2

Product Lease Agreement Continuation Schedule

MailFinance Inc.• 478 Wheelers Farms Road. Milford, CT 06461
Form l51186e-03-11 revision 08/11

21



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

22



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

23



To:

From:

Thru:

Date:

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL

Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers

Aimee Kniaziowski, CityMan~
T.C. Karnai, Chief ofPOliCf}/L-W--rz:-
August 8, 2013 [I

Agenda Item: V. a. First Reading, Ordinance No. 1311, Amending Kodiak City Code 5.40.010,
Businesses on City Property Prohibited; Repealing and Reenacting Kodiak
City Code Chapter 10.08, Motor Vehicle and Driving Offenses-Rules of
the Road; Enacting Kodiak City Code Chapter 10.16, Stopping, Standing,
and Parking; Repealing and Reenacting Kodiak City Code 10.40.010,
Impoundment; Repealing Kodiak City Code 10.44.020, Failure to Obey
Citation; Repealing and Reenacting Kodiak City Code 10.44.030, Vehicle
and Traffic Offenses-Fine Schedule; to Provide for a Civil System for
Parking Enforcement

SUMMARY: An amendment to District Court Criminal Rule 8 for minor offenses by the Alaska
Supreme Court seriously impacted the police department's ability to enforce parking rules in the city.
This ordinance would create a civil penalties section to remedy this and allow the Police Department to
resume parking enforcement in the City. This ordinance also proposes increasing the fine amount for
parking violations to $20 per violation. This sum will enhance cost recovery and support a new civil
penalties section of Code City that staff will administer. In addition, this ordinance adopts, by reference,
Title 13 AAC Chapter 02, Motor Vehicle and Driving Offenses: Rules of the Road, and promotes
consistency and continuity when enforcing all common driving offenses occurring within the City. Staff
recommends Council advance Ordinance No. 1311 to second reading and public hearing at the next
regular or special Council meeting.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: Earlier this year, Council was briefed on the effects Alaska
Supreme Court Order No. 1794 would have on the City parking supervision program. Council was also
infonned that staffhad begun to work with the City Attorney to develop solutions for continuing parking
supervision within the city. Staff introduced this proposed ordinance at the July 23, 2013, work session
where Council expressed consensus to bring the ordinance forward.

BACKGROUND: In December 2012, the Alaska Supreme Court issued Order No. 1794 amending and
adopting a new District Court Criminal Rule 8 for minor offenses. A review of Order No. 1794 revealed
that the majority of the amendments made would not affect the Kodiak Police Department because they
involved administrative matters such as citation fonnatting, procedures for processing citations and
collecting fines. However, one portion would; Rule 3(g) provides: an officer must deliver a citation to
the defendant personally in accordance with Alaska Statute 12.25.175-190. This meant that under the
new rule, citations may not be served by any of the following:

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. a. Memo Page 1 of 5

24



• By certified mail
• By being left on a vehicle or the door of a house

• By an officer, other than the issuing officer

• By a process server

In other words, the adoption of this rule made the practice of leaving a parking citation on an unattended
motor vehicle no longer permissible. Based on this rule change, the Chief of Police was left with the
following choices:

• Suspend all efforts to enforce local parking rules

• Require police and community service officers to wait next to vehicles that were parked in
violation of local parking rules for the purpose of personally serving citations

• Make all local parking rules not subject to District Court Rules

The Chief of Police believes that suspending parking enforcement was not a solution. Parking can be a
contentious issue within the City. Each year the police department responds to dozens of parking
complaints, and each year they issue dozens of citations for parking violations, making enforcement
necessary. The Chief also believes that it's not practical for members of the police department to have to
wait next to a vehicle for an undetermined amount of time to issue a parking ticket. This would be a
poor use of resources. Instead, the Chief worked with the City Attorney to create a civil penalties section
that establishes a mechanism to enforce local parking rules outside the jurisdiction ofthe District Court.

Under this new civil system, a parking ticket would become a violation. All current local parking
violations would remain in effect. Violations would carry fines, but no point assessment would be made
against the violator's driver's license. In this new civil system, violators would have the choice of
resolving the violation by paying the fine amount at the police station within 30 days of the date of the
violation, or appealing the violation before an administrative hearing officer within the same time frame.

The administrative hearing officer would be appointed by the City Manager. The role of the
administrative hearing officer would be to exercise judgment to the weight of evidence supporting or
refuting the violation, and exercise independent judgment on legal issues raised by the parties involved.
Hearings may be governed by such rules and procedures as the hearing officer may establish, except that
the violator may appear in person or by telephone. They may also present witnesses and evidence at the
hearing and cross examine opposing witnesses. Under this system, the violator may appeal the final
decision of the hearing officer to the superior court within 30 days after the date the final decision was
made.

Also proposed in this ordinance is a recommendation that city parking fines be increased from $10 to
$20 a violation. Staff acknowledges that by establishing this civil system to address local parking
violations, they will be taking on greater administrative responsibilities to facilitate this program. Costs
associated with implementing this new system, which were once shared with the District Court, will be

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. a. Memo Page 2 of 5

25



performed entirely by city staff. The recommendation to increase the fine amount is deemed necessary
to enhance cost recovery efforts in support of enforcing local parking rules.

This ordinance also proposes adopting by reference Title 13 AAC Chapter 02, Motor Vehicle and
Driving Offenses: Rules of the Road. This chapter contains all of the rules and regulations for the most
common driving offenses, to include, but not limited to: traffic control devices; rights of way; pedestrian
rights and duties, turning, starting and stopping; and speed restrictions.

This change is requested by the Chief of Police to achieve consistency and continuity in addressing
driving offenses currently being enforced in the city. At the present time the city has adopted portions of
this chapter but not all of it. If approved, this ordinance would incorporate by reference all of Title 13
AAC Chapter 02 and enhance the police department's traffic enforcement efforts. By incorporating this
chapter into City Code, any fines and fees collected would be remitted to the city and help with the
city's cost recovery efforts when enforcing common driving offenses.

DISCUSSION:
Establishing Civil Penalties Section: In December 2012, the Alaska Supreme Court issued Order No.
1794 amending and adopting a new District Court Criminal Rule 8 for minor offenses. A review of the
order revealed that the majority of the amendments would not impact the police department. However,
one portion would; Rule 3(g) provides: an officer must deliver a citation to the defendant personally in
accordance with Alaska Statute 12.25.175-190.

The Chief worked with the City Attorney to create a civil penalties section that establishes a mechanism
to enforce local parking rules outside the realm of the District Court.

This proposed civil system provides a violator with the option of paying the fine amount, or appealing
the violation to an administrative hearing officer designated by the City Manager. This system also
allows the violator to contest the final decision of the administrative hearing officer to the superior court.

Increasing Fines: Staff acknowledges that by establishing a civil penalties system to address local
parking violations, they will be taking on greater administrative responsibilities. Costs associated with
implementing this new system, which were once shared with the District Court, will be performed
entirely by city staff. The recommendation to increase fines from $10 to $20 per violation is deemed
necessary to enhance cost recovery efforts in support of enforcing local parking rules.

Adoption of Title 13 AAC Chapter 02, Motor Vehicle and Driving Offenses: Rules of the Road:
This ordinance also proposes adopting by reference Title 13 AAC Chapter 02, Motor Vehicle and
Driving Offenses: Rules of the Road. This chapter contains all of the rules and regulations for the most
common driving offenses, to include, but not limited to: traffic control devices; rights of way; pedestrian
rights and duties, turning, starting and stopping; and speed restrictions.

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. a. Memo Page 3 of 5

26



This change is requested by the Chief of Police to achieve consistency and continuity in addressing
common driving offenses being enforced in the city. At the present time the city has adopted portions of
this chapter but not all of it. If approved, this ordinance would incorporate by reference all of Title 13
AAC Chapter 02 and enhance the police department's traffic enforcement efforts. By incorporating this
chapter in its entirety into city code, fines and fees would be remitted to the city and help with the city's
cost recovery efforts for enforcing common driving violations.

ALTERNATIVES:
1. Authorize this ordinance, in which case parking supervision would resume, and continuity and

consistency would be enhanced through the adoption of expanded "Rules of the Road," and the
city would be in better position to recover its costs through increased fines. This is the
recommendation staffmakes to Council.

2. Do not authorize this ordinance. The city's parking supervision program would be
unenforceable; the police department would continue to experience problems with consistency
and continuity in its traffic enforcement program. Community quality of life, health and safety
would be negatively impacted.

LEGAL: The City Attorney worked with staff to review the impacts of the Alaska Supreme Court
actions, recommended these repeals and enactments, and prepared Ordinance No. 1311 to reestablish
adequate traffic and parking enforcement in the City.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council advance Ordinance No. 1311 to second
reading and public hearing at the next regular or special Council meeting.

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: The changes the state made to the District Court Criminal Rule 8
seriously limited KPD's ability to enforce local parking plans and regulations. The only way to provide
continued enforcement is to amend the Code to allow for a local civil process, which Ordinance No.
1311 provides. I support Police Chief Kamai's approach and recommend Council advance this
ordinance through to adoption and implementation. I've also attached copies of the two parking
resolutions that set plans for the Harbor and downtown areas per Council's request. Both plans seem to
be working well.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment A: Ordinance No. 1311
Attachment B: Resolution No. 2011-01, Revised Harbor Parking Plan with maps
Attachment C: Resolution No. 2012-29, Revised Downtown Parking Plan with map

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. a. Memo Page 4 of 5

27



PROPOSED MOTION:
Move to pass Ordinance No. 1311 in the fIrst reading and advance to second reading and public
hearing at the next regular or special Council meeting.

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. a. Memo Page 5 of 5

28



 

Ordinance No. 1311 

Page 1 of 8 

  

CITY OF KODIAK 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 1311 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING KODIAK CITY CODE 5.40.010, BUSINESSES 

ON CITY PROPERTY PROHIBITED; REPEALING AND REENACTING KODIAK 

CITY CODE CHAPTER 10.08, MOTOR VEHICLE AND DRIVING OFFENSES—

RULES OF THE ROAD; ENACTING KODIAK CITY CODE CHAPTER 10.16, 

STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING; REPEALING AND REENACTING KODIAK 

CITY CODE 10.40.010, IMPOUNDMENT; REPEALING KODIAK CITY CODE 

10.44.020, FAILURE TO OBEY CITATION; REPEALING AND REENACTING 

KODIAK CITY CODE 10.44.030, VEHICLE AND TRAFFIC OFFENSES—FINE 

SCHEDULE; TO PROVIDE FOR A CIVIL SYSTEM FOR PARKING ENFORCEMENT 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, that:  

 

Section 1: Kodiak City Code 5.04.010, Businesses on city property prohibited, is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

 

5.04.010 Businesses on city property prohibited.  Except where permitted under 

the provisions of this chapter, no person may park, place, erect, or construct a 

building, structure, tent, trailer, bus, or other enclosure, or a stand or table, on a 

street, alley, sidewalk, parking lot, or other public place in the city for the purpose 

of displaying for sale, selling, or soliciting the sale of goods or services, nor may 

any person park a vehicle bearing a for sale sign in any city parking lot or other 

public place for a purpose of soliciting buyers or otherwise offering the vehicle 

for sale. It shall be conclusively presumed that any vehicle bearing a for sale sign 

which is parked in a city parking lot for more than 48 consecutive hours is parked 

with a purpose of soliciting buyers or otherwise offering the vehicle for sale (see 

also section 10.16.020(f)(3) of this code 10.08.030(f)(3)).  

 

Section 2: Kodiak City Code Chapter 10.08, Motor Vehicle Driving Offenses—Rules of the 

Road, is hereby repealed and reenacted to read as follows: 

 

CHAPTER 10.08 

MOTOR VEHICLE AND DRIVING OFFENSES— 

RULES OF THE ROAD 

 

10.08.010 Rules of the road 

10.08.020 Basic rule and maximum speed limit 

10.08.030 Limited use of vehicular ways and areas 

10.08.040 Skateboards and similar devices 

 

10.08.010 Rules of the road.  (a)  Except as provided in subsection (b) of this 

section, 13 AAC Chapter 02, titled "Motor Vehicle and Driving Offenses: Rules 

of the Road," is adopted by reference, subject to the local amendments set forth in 

this chapter.  

29

cperkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



 

Ordinance No. 1311 

Page 2 of 8 

(b)  The following provisions of 13 AAC Chapter 02 are not adopted by 

reference in subsection (a) of this section: 

(1)  Article 8 of 13 AAC Chapter 02, titled "Stopping, Standing 

and Parking."  

(2)  13 AAC 02.480, “Unattended motor vehicle.” 

 

10.08.020 Basic rule and maximum speed limit. 13 AAC 02.275(b) is amended 

to read as follows: 

(b)  Except when a special hazard exists that requires a lower speed for 

compliance with (a) of this section, the maximum lawful speed on city streets is 

twenty (20) miles per hour, and no person may drive a vehicle at a speed in excess 

of this maximum limit, unless a different maximum limit is otherwise posted.  

 

10.08.030 Limited use of vehicular ways and areas. 13 AAC 02.482(a) is 

hereby amended to read as follows: 

(a) No pedestrian, rider of a bicycle, or driver of a vehicle may travel on a 

vehicular way or area as defined in AS 28.90.990(a)(30) when it is designated for 

use by a different mode of travel than used by a pedestrian, rider of a bicycle, or 

driver of a vehicle.  

 

10.08.040 Skateboards and similar devices.  (a)  No person may ride or operate 

a skateboard, unicycle, coaster, scooter, roller skates, in-line skates, or a similar 

device upon any sidewalk, plaza, parking lot or vehicular way or area within or 

immediately adjacent to the area bounded by Center Avenue from West Rezanof 

Drive to and including the Alaska Marine Highway System ferry dock (also 

known as City of Kodiak Pier 1), Marine Way from Center Avenue to West 

Rezanof Drive, and West Rezanof Drive from Marine Way to Center Avenue. 

The area described in the foregoing sentence includes St. Paul’s Plaza, the ferry 

dock and the parking area immediately adjacent to it, the small boat harbor 

parking lots on the south side of Marine Way, and the west side of West Rezanof 

Drive. 

(b)  Every person using a device described in subsection (a) of this section 

on a sidewalk, public path, roadway or other public property, where not 

prohibited, shall use such device in a careful and prudent manner and at a rate of 

speed no greater than is reasonable and proper under the conditions existing at the 

point of operation, taking into account the amount and character of pedestrian 

traffic, grade and surface, and shall obey all traffic control devices. Every person 

using a device described in subsection (a) of this section on a sidewalk or public 

path shall yield the right-of-way to a pedestrian  

(c)  Every person using a device described in subsection (a) of this section 

on a roadway shall obey all traffic control devices applicable to vehicles and 

bicycles on a roadway except those which by their nature can have no application 

to the device. 

(d)  An officer issuing a citation for a violation of this section may seize 

and impound as evidence or instrumentality of the offense a device utilized by the 

cited offender in violation of this section. A device seized under this subsection 

30



 

Ordinance No. 1311 

Page 3 of 8 

shall not be returned to the offender or owner until and unless the violation has 

been properly adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction, and the offender 

or owner provides evidence of the adjudication.  

 

Section 3: Kodiak City Code Chapter 10.16, Stopping, Standing and Parking, is hereby 

enacted to read as follows: 

 

CHAPTER 10.16 

STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING 

 

10.16.010 Stopping, standing and parking 

10.16.020 Additional parking regulations 

10.16.030 Restricted parking; designation 

10.16.040 Limited time parking 

10.16.050 Parking in city parking lots 

10.16.060 Motor vehicles used as living or sleeping accommodations 

10.16.100 Notice of violation 

10.16.110 Owner of vehicle presumed responsible for violation 

10.16.120 Civil penalties for parking violations 

10.16.130 Appeals 

 

10.16.010 Stopping, standing and parking.  Article 8 of 13 AAC Chapter 02, 

titled "Stopping, Standing and Parking," and 13 AAC 02.480, titled “Unattended 

motor vehicle,” are adopted by reference, subject to the local amendments set 

forth in this chapter.  

 

10.16.020 Additional parking regulations.  Subsections (f) and (g) of 13 AAC 

02.365 are hereby amended to read as follows: 

(f) No person may park a vehicle upon a street, roadway, alley, vehicular 

way or area, or a municipal parking lot for the purpose of: 

(1)  Washing the vehicle if the person parking the vehicle is a 

dealer, agent, or employee of a garage, filling station, or car wash; 

(2)  Repairing or performing maintenance work on the vehicle 

except repairs or maintenance work necessitated by an emergency; 

(3)  Displaying the vehicle for sale or hire in the regular course of 

the person's business except that a motor bus, sightseeing vehicle, airline 

service vehicle, or taxicab may park in accordance with the provisions of 

13 AAC 02.372 (see also sections 5.04.010 and 5.04.015 of this code); 

(4)  Storing or parking, without being attended by a driver, a 

vehicle to be used for hire to another person; or 

(5)  Commercial advertising. 

(g) No person may park a vehicle on a street, highway, public way, or 

area, or other public property, including a city parking lot, for more than twenty-

four consecutive hours unless the location where the vehicle is parked is 

designated by an official traffic control device for parking for a different 

maximum time.  

31



 

Ordinance No. 1311 

Page 4 of 8 

 

10.16.030 Restricted parking; designation.  For the purpose of 13 AAC 02.340, 

the following official traffic control devices have the following meanings: 

(a)  Parking is prohibited next to a curb that is painted red. 

(b)  A curb that is painted yellow designates the adjacent parking space as 

a taxi or loading zone. 

(c)  A parking space designated with a sign bearing the federal 

handicapped symbol, and with the federal handicapped symbol painted on the 

parking space, is a designated handicapped zone.  

 

10.16.040 Limited time parking.  (a)  The chief of police may designate, by 

placing official traffic control devices, time limits for parking on those parts of a 

street, roadway, alley or vehicular way where the chief of police has determined 

that demand for parking warrants the designation. No person may stop, stand or 

park a vehicle in violation of such an official traffic control device. 

(b)  The chief of police may issue permits to occupy parking spaces on a 

street, roadway, alley or vehicular way for the duration that the applicant 

demonstrates is necessary to accommodate a temporary activity such as a special 

event, construction project, or loading or unloading.  

 

10.16.050 Parking in city parking lots.  (a)  The council by resolution may: 

(1)  Establish time limits for parking in city parking lots; 

(2)  Designate city parking lots for paid parking, and establish fees 

for paid parking in city parking lots; and  

(3)  Designate city parking lots for permit parking, and the fees and 

qualifications for obtaining a permit. 

(b)  The city shall notify the public of time limits in city parking lots, fees 

required to park in city parking lots, and permit requirements for parking in city 

parking lots by the placement of official traffic control devices.  No person may 

stop, stand or park a vehicle in violation of such an official traffic control device.  

 

10.16.060 Motor vehicles used as living or sleeping accommodations. No 

person may occupy or utilize any motor vehicle or trailer as living quarters or 

sleeping accommodations while the motor vehicle or trailer is parked on any 

public or private property in the corporate city limits, nor may any person park or 

leave standing a motor vehicle or trailer utilized or prepared for utilization as 

living quarters or sleeping accommodations through having been connected to any 

water, sewer, electric, or other utility lines or having been rendered incapable of 

immediate movement under its own power through the use of jacks, blocks, 

leveling devices or any other devices, except as provided in section 14.20.030 of 

this code.  

 

10.16.100 Notice of violation.  A vehicle parked, stopped or standing in violation 

of this chapter is a public nuisance. Upon discovery of a vehicle abandoned, 

parked, stopped or standing in violation of this chapter, a police officer or 

community service officer may issue a notice of violation, and deliver it to the 

32



 

Ordinance No. 1311 

Page 5 of 8 

operator of the vehicle or affix it to the vehicle if it is unattended at the time of 

issuance. The notice of violation shall identify the vehicle, the nature of the 

violation and the means of resolving it.  

 

10.16.110 Owner of vehicle presumed responsible for violation.  It shall be 

presumed that a vehicle which is found to be parked, stopped or standing in 

violation of this title has been so operated by the registered owner thereof or has 

been operated by another person with the consent of the registered owner, the 

vehicle to which a citation pertains being a public nuisance for which the 

registered owner holds legal responsibility. That presumption may be rebutted by 

presentation of satisfactory evidence that the vehicle was being operated by 

another person at the time of the violation without the consent of the registered 

owner and beyond the control of the registered owner.  

 

10.16.120 Civil penalties for parking violations.  (a)  A person who violates a 

provision of this chapter pertaining to parking, standing or stopping a vehicle 

shall be subject to a civil penalty in the amount stated in the following table: 

 

Code Section Description of Violation Penalty 

10.16.010 Adoption by reference of state statutes 

and regulations regarding stopping, 

standing and parking 

Corresponding 

amount in state traffic 

bail forfeiture 

schedule 

10.16.020 Additional parking regulations $20.00 

10.16.040 Limited time parking $20.00 

10.16.050 Parking in city parking lots $20.00 

10.16.060 Motor vehicles used as living or 

sleeping accommodations 

$100.00 

 

(b)  In addition to any other penalty provided by law, a person who fails to 

resolve a notice of violation under this chapter within the time stated on the face 

of the notice shall be subject to a civil penalty in the amount of $15.00 in addition 

to any other penalty provided by law. Failure to resolve a notice of violation 

within 30 days after imposition of this civil penalty may also result in legal and 

collection fees. A notice of violation is resolved by payment of the amount due 

under this section on the earlier of:  

(1)  The date the payment is received at the Kodiak Police 

Department; or 

(2)  The legible postmark date on a payment received at the Kodiak 

Police Department.  

 

10.16.130 Appeals.  (a)  A person who has been issued a notice of violation for 

vehicle parking, stopping or standing in violation of this chapter may appeal that 

action to the a hearing officer designated by the city manager by completing a 

violation appeal form approved by the city manager and delivering the form to the 

city manager no later than 30 days after the date of the notice of violation.  

33



 

Ordinance No. 1311 

Page 6 of 8 

(b)  The hearing officer shall schedule an appeal hearing no more than 10 

business days after the date of delivery of the violation appeal form.  

(c)  The appeal hearing shall be conducted informally and may be 

governed by such rules and procedures as the hearing officer may establish, 

except that:  

(1)  Each party may appear in person or by telephone. 

(2)  Each party may present witnesses and evidence. 

(3)  Each party or the party’s counsel may cross examine opposing 

witnesses on matters relevant to the issues, impeach witnesses regardless 

of which party first called the witness to testify, and rebut evidence against 

the party.  

(4)  Relevant evidence shall be admitted if it is the sort of evidence 

on which responsible persons are accustomed to rely in the conduct of 

serious affairs, regardless of the existence of a common law or statutory 

rule which makes improper the admission of the evidence over objection 

in a civil action. Hearsay evidence may be considered provided there are 

guarantees of its trustworthiness and that it is more probative on the point 

for which it is offered than any other evidence which the proponent can 

procure by reasonable efforts.  

(5)  The hearing shall be open to the public.  

(6)  An electronic recording shall be made of the hearing.  

(d)  The hearing officer may exercise independent judgment as to the 

weight of evidence supporting or refuting the notice of violation or impoundment, 

and may exercise independent judgment on legal issues raised by the parties.  

(e)  No later than 15 days following the hearing the hearing officer shall 

issue a written decision based on findings and conclusions adopted by the hearing 

officer. Such findings must be in writing and must be reasonably specific so as to 

provide interested persons and, where appropriate, reviewing authorities, a clear 

and precise understanding of the reasons for the decision entered. The decision, 

findings of fact and conclusions of law shall be forwarded to all parties to the 

appeal. A final appealable decision must indicate that it is a final order and that a 

party disputing the decision has 30 days to appeal.  

(f)  A final decision issued under subsection (e) of this section may be 

appealed to the superior court within 30 days after the date the decision was 

issued. For the purposes of this section the date of issuance is the date upon which 

the decision was mailed or delivered to the parties.  

 

Section 4: Kodiak City Code 10.40.010, Impoundment, is hereby repealed and reenacted to 

read as follows:  

 

10.40.010 Impoundment. A police officer or community service officer may 

direct the removal and impoundment by towing to an approved impound area or 

facility of a motor vehicle that is: 

(a)  Abandoned, wrecked, dismantled, or inoperative; 

(b)  Involved in a collision or a police investigation;  

34



 

Ordinance No. 1311 

Page 7 of 8 

(c)  Located or standing upon any street or alley right-of-way or public 

property in violation of the provisions or this title;  

(d)  Located or standing upon any street or alley right-of-way or public 

property and found to be mechanically unsafe to operate;  

(e)  The driver of which is found to be incapacitated or is taken into 

custody for an offense involving driving under the influence of intoxicating liquor 

or drugs, reckless driving, negligent driving, or any felony;  

(f)  Located on private property for over 24 hours without the consent of 

the owner or person in control of the property notifies after written notice to the 

chief of police requesting its removal; or 

(g)  The subject of four or more unresolved citations for parking, stopping 

or standing in violation of this title. 

 

Section 5: Kodiak City Code 10.44.020, Failure to obey citation, is hereby repealed.  

 

Section 6: Kodiak City Code 10.44.030, Vehicle and traffic offenses; fine schedule, is 

hereby repealed and reenacted to read as follows: 

 

10.44.030 Vehicle and traffic offenses; fine schedule.  (a)  Pursuant to AS 

28.05.151, the following vehicle and traffic offenses are amenable to disposition 

without court appearance upon payment of a fine in the amount listed below. The 

fine amounts listed below are doubled for violations committed within a highway 

work zone, as that term is defined in AS 28.90.990 and 13 AAC 40.010(b). 

(b)  Pursuant to AS 28.15.131 and 13 AAC 04.008, a citation for an 

offense listed as "Corr" must be dismissed (or voided) if proof of correction is 

presented to an inspection official within the time allowed. If the required repair is 

not made, the offense may be disposed of without court appearance upon payment 

of the fine amount listed. 

 

Code Section Description of Violation Penalty 

10.08.010 Adoption by reference of 13 AAC 

Chapter 02, titled "Motor Vehicle and 

Driving Offenses: Rules of the Road," 

subject to local amendments. 

Corresponding 

amount in state traffic 

bail forfeiture 

schedule 

10.08.040 Skateboards and similar devices: 

First offense 

Second offense 

Third and subsequent offenses 

 

$20.00 

$40.00 

$60.00 

10.12.030 Transportation of hazardous material $20.00 

Chapter 10.28 Snowmobiles and other off-road 

vehicles 

$20.00 

10.32.100 Confinement of loads $50.00 

10.32.110 Removal of dirt and debris $50.00 

Chapter 10.36 Abandoned vehicles $100.00 

 

35



 

Ordinance No. 1311 

Page 8 of 8 

Section 7: This ordinance shall be effective upon the date that is one month after its final 

passage and publication in accordance with Kodiak Charter Section 2–13. 

 

CITY OF KODIAK 

 

 

 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

CITY CLERK 

 

 

First Reading:   

Second Reading:  

Effective Date:  

36



CITY OF KODIAK
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2011-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK
ESTABLISHING TIME LIMITS AND PERMIT REQUIREMENTS FOR
PARKING IN PARKING LOTS AT ST. PAUL HARBOR AND ST. HERMAN
HARBOR

WHEREAS, KCC 10.08.055 authorizes the Council by resolution to establish
time limits for parking in city parking lots, designate city parking lots for paid parking,
establish fees for paid parking in city parking lots, designate city parking lots for permit
parking, and establish the fees and qualifications for obtaining a permit; and

WHEREAS, the Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the public
and the users of City harbor facilities to establish time limits for parking in City parking
lots and designate City parking lots for permit parking at St Paul Harbor and S1. Herman
Harbor.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the council of the City of Kodiak,
Alaska:

Section 1. Time limits for parking in City parking lots at S1. Paul Harbor shall be
as shown on Attachment 1 to this resolution, which is incorporated by reference herein.

Section 2. Time limits for parking in City parking lots at S1. Herman Harbor shall
be as shown on Attachment 2 to this resolution, which is incorporated by reference
herein.

Section 3. No person may park a vehicle in the City parking lots at St. Paul
Harbor and St. Herman Harbor that are designated for 30-day vehicle parking on
Attachments 1 and 2, respectively, unless the vehicle bears a current permit issued by the
Harbormaster under this section; provided that a permit shall not be required to park a
vehicle, and shall not authorize the parking of a vehicle, in a parking lot at S1. Paul
Harbor during the Crab Festival.

The Harbormaster shall administer the permit program, which shall be subject to
the following terms and conditions:

1. Application for a permit shall be made in writing on a form provided by
the Harbormaster at the Harbormaster's office.

2. Permit applications will be accepted only from slip holders and paid-up
transient vessel operators; except that, permits may be issued to the general public in the
30-day lot north ofRamp I, St. Herman Harbor.

3. The fee for parking in 30-day permit areas is $1.00 per day, payable at the
harbor office or designated self-pay kiosks.

4. No person may be issued more than two permits.
5. Permits are subject to the following regulations:

Resolution No. 2011-01
Page 1 of4

37

cperkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment B



a. No pennit may be used for the parking ofa for hire vehicle.
b. No pennit may be used to park a vehicle that is inoperable or that

does not bear a current registration tag.
c. A pennit does not guarantee the availability ofa parking space.
d. No pennit may be used to park a vehicle longer than 23 feet, or a

trailer.

Section 4. This resolution shall become effective upon adoption.

CITY OF KODIAK

ATTEST:

CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 1011-01
Page1or4

Adopted: March 31, 2011

38



Attachment 1

Attaclunent 1

Resolution No. 2011-01
Page30r4

St Paul Harbor Pal'ldn8layout" 3-1-2011

c=:J 12 hr porIdnJ

c:::::J 72 hr porIdn.

c=::J JO Avhlmltp~
(lmW-DIlIrI

c:::::=J n IIrYeNde wiIll tnllor....,...

39



Attachment 2

Resolution No. 2011~1
Page 40r4

40



CITY OF KODIAK
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2012-29

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AUTHORIZ
ING REVISIONS TO THE DOWNTOWN PARKING PLAN

WHEREAS, KCC §10.08.0S5 authorizes the Council by resolution to establish time lim
its for parking in City parking lots, designate City parking lots for paid parking, establish fees for
paid parking in City parking lots, and designate City parking lots for permit parking, and

WHEREAS, Council adopted a parking plan for the downtown parking lots in the 1990s
that provided 566 free off-street parking spaces with more 2-hour parking spaces and limited
longer-tenn parking, which met the needs of the downtown businesses at that time; and

WHEREAS, the COWlcil authorized designation of paid, pennit parking in several areas
adjacent to the City's harbors for harbor users by resolution in 2011 which may have displaced
some downtown business users; and

WHEREAS, the City has received numerous complaints from businesses and tenants of
the main downtown parking lots after having received parking citations due to enforcement of
the existing parking plan; and

WHEREAS, the complainants identified. the current plan as having inadequate provisions
for longer-tean parking to meet business, employee, and tenant needs in the downtown lots; and

WHEREAS, the Kodiak Police Department conducted a study of the large downtown
parking lots in July 2012 to identify usage patterns md found that the majority of 2-hours
parking spaces were underutilized, that there is a need for more 9-hour parking spaces in the
Mall parking lot. and that parking signage should be improved; and

WHEREAS, the July review showed that parking needs in the downtown lots have
changed since the downtown parking plan was implemented in the 19908; and

WHEREAS, based on City stairs findings and recommendations, the Council has deter
mined that it is in the best interest of the public and the users of the downtown parking lots to
revise the downtown parking plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska,
tha~ the City's Downtown Parking Plan will be revised as follows:

1) The designation of36. 2-hour parking spaces in the downtown Mall parking lot will be
increased to 36 9-hour parking spaces, with the location of these parking spaces to be
designated by staff; and

Resolution No. 2011-29
Page 1 on

41

cperkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment C



2) Elimination of 2 reserved paddng spaces located in the State Courthouse parking and
the creation oftwo additional 2-hour parking spaces in the same location; and

3) Pennit staffto improve parking regulatory siguage throughout the downtown area.

MAYOR

CITY OF KODIAK.

(]flX~
ATI'EST:

CITY CLERK
Adopted: September 27. 2012

llaolutloa No.1Ot~2'
Pap2or2

42



43



To:

From:

Thru:

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL

Mayor Branson and City Council~~ers

Aimee Kniaziowski, CityManag~

Glenn Melvin PE, City Engineer and Mark Kozak, Public Works Director

Date: August 8, 2013

V. b. Resolution 2013-25, Appropriating Funds for Additional Construction
Agenda Item:

Expenses Related to the Shelikof Pedestrian Improvement Project

SUMMARY:The Shelikof Street Pedestrian Improvement project was awarded to Brechan in
September 2012. The major rock cut that was a critical part of the project was completed in mid-May.
Roughly one week later on the night of May 20, there was a rock slide just below the Petro Star fuel
tanks. Council approved an emergency repair contract with Golder Associates at the June 13 meeting.
That approval depleted funds budgeted for the project and could not cover additional costs associated
with the ongoing work, including costs to being the shotcrete crew to Kodiak and other costs expected to
complete the repairs. Therefore, staff recommends that Council authorize the transfer of $100,000 from
the Pavement Repair project into the Shelikof Pedestrian Improvement project by adopting Resolution
2013-25 so these and other construction related expenses can be covered.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:

• August 2011: Council adopted Resolution 2011-27, accepting a $1,600,000 legislative grant for
pedestrian improvements and parking improvements between Pier II and downtown

• October 2011: Council awarded final design of the Pedestrian Improvements to DOWL/HKM
• September 27,2012: Council awarded the construction contract to Brechan Enterprises
• June 13,2013: Council authorized an emergency repair contract to Golder Associates

DISCUSSION: On the night of May 20,2013, a section of the rock cut below the Petro Star fuel tank
broke loose creating a rock and dirt slide. This was in the area of a fault that was laying in a different
direction from the surrounding rock. On June 13,2013, Council approved the emergency repair contract
to Golder Associates to repair the slide area, including covering the remaining rock cut with a shotcrete
wall. However, the approval for that work did not include additional costs to complete repairs such as
bringing the shotcrete crew to Kodiak from Seattle to perform the work, including costs for
transportation, housing, and equipment. Staff also expects additional costs from Brechan as they perform
repair related tasks.

The City has paid for the initial work performed on the project, but must also cover costs associated with
the repair-related work not known when Council approved the emergency repair authorization to Golder
Associates in June. As a consequence, the budget for the Shelikof Pedestrian Improvement project,
Project No. 8016/13-10, has been depleted, and additional funds must be appropriated to cover costs

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. b. Memo Page 1 of2

44



associated with the specialty crew and other costs related completing the emergency repairs. The
attached resolution authorizes the transfer of $100,000 from the Pavement Repairs project to the
ShelikofPedestrian Improvement project to complete this work.

ALTERNATIVES:
1. Adopt Resolution 2013-25, which authorizes the transfer of funds from the Street Repairs

project to the Shelikof Pedestrian Improvement project to cover projected remaining costs to
complete the Shelikof Street project repairs. This is staff's recommendation because it will
reestablish the project fund and allow costs to be charged to and paid for through the correct
fund.

2. Do not adopt Resolution 2013-25, which is not recommended because additional funds must
be budgeted to the project to complete the emergency repairs and pay for the various costs
associated with that work.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The project requires additional funds to cover all costs associated
with the specialty repairs needed to complete the project. Staff recommends Council authorize the
transfer of $100,000 in funds from Pavement Repairs, Project No. 5025, to the Shelikof Pedestrian
Improvement project, Project No. 8016, by adopting the attached resolution. This transfer will exhaust
funds budgeted for pavement repairs so the work planned for FY2014 will have to wait until FY2015.

LEGAL: Article 5 of the City Charter requires an appropriation of funds outside the budget process to
be made by resolution.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council adopt Resolution 2013-25.

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: This slide was completely unexpected and has been addressed as
expeditiously as possible. Staff has been working closely with Golder Associates, DOWL, and Brechan
to complete the repairs. Despite the emergency nature of the repairs, work has been going very well. The
project budget was used up with the award of the Golder contract in June. Funds must be reallocated
from another project to continue the work and pay for the costs associated with the repairs. Staff feels a
transfer of $100,000 will be adequate to complete the work and this reappropriation must be done by
resolution. Therefore I encourage Council to adopt Resolution 2013-25.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment A: Resolution 2013-25

PROPOSED MOTION:
Move to adopt Resolution 2013-25.

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. b. Memo Page 2 of2

45



CITY OF KODIAK
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2013-25

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK
APPROPRIATING FUNDS FOR ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION EXPENSES
RELATED TO THE SHELIKOF IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

WHEREAS, in 2008 the City identified the need for pedestrian improvements
from Pier II to downtown along Shelikof Street; and

WHEREAS, the City received state legislative grants in 2009 and 2011 through
the state's cruise ship excise tax fund for pedestrian improvements along Shelikof Street;
and

WHEREAS, Brechan Enterprises was awarded the bid in September 2012 to
provide these improvements; and

WHEREAS, the major rock cut, which was a critical part of the project, was
completed in mid-May 2013 and the geo-tech report indicated the rock should have
remained stable; and

WHEREAS, a section of the rock cut gave way on May 20,2013, that encroached
into Petro Star's property; and

WHEREAS, the City awarded an emergency engineering and construction
services contract to Golder Associates Inc. to complete the rock slide repairs as soon as
possible; and

WHEREAS, this specialty work required to bring a shotcrete crew to Kodiak to
perform the work, which includes costs for transportation, housing, equipment rental, and
other expenses; and

WHEREAS, an additional appropriation is needed to fund these and other repair
related expenses; and

WHEREAS, Article 5 of the City of Kodiak Charter requires an appropriation of
funds outside the budget process to be made by resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak,
Alaska:

Section 1. The Fiscal Year 2014 Capital Project Budget is amended by
appropriating the use of additional funds in the amount of $100,000 from the
Street Improvement Capital Project Fund to the Cargo Improvement Capital Fund
as follows:

Resolution No. 2013-25
Page 1 of2

46

cperkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



Appropriation / Use of Fund Balance:

Account
5025 Pavement Repairs

301.001.390.100 5025.6

100.190.198.490.300

Expense Account:

Account
8016 Shelikof Pedestrian
Improvements

Description Amount

Transfer from General Fund $100,000

Transfer to S1. Capital Imp. Fund

Description Amount

$(100,000)

307.001.390.1008016.6

100.190.198.490.307

Transfer from General Fund $(100,000)

Transfer to Cargo
Capital Imp. Fund $100,000

Section 2. The City Manager is authorized to execute all related documents.

Section 3. This resolution shall become effective upon adoption.

CITY OF KODIAK

MAYOR
ATTEST:

CITY CLERK
Adopted:

Resolution No. 2013-25
Page 2 of2

47



To:

From:

Thru:

Date:

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL

Mayor Branson and City counciy\~~bers

Aimee Kniaziowski, City Mana~../
Glenn Melvin, City Engineer, and Marty Owen, Harbormaster 1J1,1Y/~

August 8, 2013

Agenda Item: V. c. Authorization of Professional Services Contract for Pillar Mountain Slide
Analysis, Project No. 8013/11-07

SUMMARY: As the City has moved forward with the Pier III replacement project it was discussed by
the PN&D design team, Project Manager Roe Sturgulewski, and City staff that it was prudent to review
the Pillar Mountain slide history to determine if additional study needed to be performed with regard to
the slide area and how it relates to the Pier III project. The former City Engineer made a
recommendation in 2002 that the City should perform additional geotechnical analysis to quantify the
risks of slope failure. The City did not pursue the study and further analysis was not considered. Since
the Pier III replacement project is the largest project for the City and is located near the slide area, it is
recommended that an analysis should be done to identify and mitigate potential risk of damage to Pier
III from a slope failure. Staff recommends that Council authorize the professional services contract with
Golder Associates for engineering assessment of the Pillar Mountain slide area as it relates to the Pier III
replacement project in an amount not to exceed $45,000.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: There was no previous Council action taken regarding a study of
the Pillar Mountain slide area following the former City Engineer's recommendation in 2002. At the
June 11,2013, work session, Council was advised that the slide analysis be done given the proximity of
the new pier to the slide area.

DISCUSSION: The initial framework for this action regarding the Pillar Mountain slide area is
included in the former City Engineer's memo to Council dated October 3, 2002 (Attachment C). It
provides a historical perspective of the slide and studies dating back to the late 1950s. The memo
presents reasoning for the need for further study of the slide and how further study is necessary to more
accurately quantify the risk of slope failure. It is recommended that Council review this memo to
become familiar with historic slide activity, slide monitoring, assessment of previous studies, and the
2002 recommendations.

Project manager, Roe Sturgulewski, is also in support of this study, his recommendation memo is
attached (Attachment A). He discussed this with the Council during the work session on June 11,2013,

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. c. Memo Page 1 on

48



project update. He also has discussed the issue with the Pier III design consultant PN&D, and they
concur with the recommendation.

The Golder Associates proposal for the study is attached (Attachment B). It outlines a three phase
approach which includes LiDAR imagery, new ground reconnaissance, and analysis incorporating rock
structure. The LiDAR imagery and new ground reconnaissance will begin immediately to establish the
baseline for the rock structure analysis. LiDAR imagery is a relatively new technology using digital
imagery which provides a detailed look at the rock surface of the slide area. The detailed 3D Imagery
will allow Golder to accurately cut sections, model rock profiles, and study tension cracks known from
previous reconnaissance. The analysis will help the City identify and mitigate potential risks of slide
activity given the proximity of the new Pier III to the slide area. The Golder proposal provides a detailed
scope of work, work plan, and estimated cost for the work. The result of Golder's work will be
integrated into a written report which will be made available to the City for planning related to the Pier
III project.

ALTERNATIVES:
1. Authorize the professional services contact with Golder Associates. Staff and the project

manager recommend this alternative as it will finalize previous work and provide an updated
analysis of the slide risk potential.

2. Do not authorize the contract. This is not recommended because if left undone, the City would be
unable to complete its due diligence to update and quantify the potential risk of Pier III damage
as a result ofmajor a slide on Pillar Mountain.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: At over $33 million, the project budget for Pier III is more than
adequate to award this contract.

LEGAL:N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council authorize the professional services
contract with Golder Associates to perform an analysis of the stability of the Pillar mountain slide area
as it relates to work associated with Pier III replacement in an amount not to exceed $45,000, with funds
coming from the Cargo Development Fund, Pier III project, Project No. 8013/11-07.

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: I support the recommendation of our staff and project manager,
Roe Sturgulewski, to complete this analysis. Pier III is the largest and most complex project the City has
undertaken. Given its proximity to the slide area on Pillar Mountain, it is prudent to complete this
analysis as we move forward with the design and construction of Pier III. I recommend we also share
information from this study with the State Department of Transportation so they can apply the
appropriate information to their operations and maintenance of RezanofDrive and its ROW.

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. c. Memo Page 2 of3

49



ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment A: Recommendation memo from Roe Sturgulewski, dated July 29,2013
Attachment B: Golder Associates Proposal letter dated July 29, 2013
Attachment C: Memo from former City Engineer regarding slide study, dated October 3, 2002

PROPOSED MOTION:
Move to authorize a professional services contract with Golder Associates to perform an analysis
of the Pillar Mountain slide area as it relates to the Pier III replacement work in an amount not to
exceed $45, 000, with funds coming from the Cargo Development Fund, Pier III project, Project
No. 8013/11-07 and authorize the City Manager to execute the documents on behalf of the City.

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. c. Memo Page 3 on

50



51

cperkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



The first phase is onsite observation by an experienced geologist prior to establishment ofthe
quarrying operation proposed by the State ofAlaska. This is being done to get a clearer understanding
ofthe makeup and location ofthe existing talus and other factors. This will help identify the source of
the rock falling from the slope.

The second phase would be to acquire LIDAR survey information for the area. This effort would be
performed by a subconsultant, currently working for the Borough on other tasks. Their current
mobilization will result in cost savings for this data acquisition. Use of the data would be two-fold.
LIDAR provides survey data that eliminates the effects of vegetation. The primary purpose for this
effort would be to provide data for use in engineering analysis by Golder in order to better understand
the slope failure potential and help quantify the risk of major slope failure. A secondary benefit is that
the data would provide a detailed baseline understanding ofthe slope. This information could be
compared to existing data and, more importantly, would be able to serve for comparison in the future
to better understand soil transport.

The third phase involves engineering analysis to quantify the risk of slope failure. While the results of
this study cannot be known in advance, the expectation of the project team is that the results will likely
validate the preliminary conclusions defined in the 2003 Golder report. At the minimum, it will help
the City better understand the risks associated with the pier construction. In the less than likely event
the study identifies a significant risk element, the acquired data will provide a framework to potentially
mitigate the concern.

Please contact me at (907) 343-3013 if you have any questions.

2

52



f!IIGOlder
~Associates

July 29, 2013

Mr. Glenn Melvin
City of Kodiak
2410 Mill Bay Road
Kodiak, Alaska 99615

P1300823

RE: PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE AN ENGINEERING ASSESSMENT OF THE CURRENT STABILITY
OF THE PILLAR MOUNTAIN SLIDE IN KODIAK, ALASKA

Dear Glenn:

At your request we have prepared this proposal to provide further geologic and engineering evaluations of
the Pillar Mountain Slide. The slide area is located south of the City of Kodiak along Rezanof Drive and is
adjacent to and above the new pier you are planning to construct. In 2002 Golder Associates Inc.
(Golder) conducted a geologic reconnaissance of this slide. In the brief report of this reconnaissance, the
significant rock fall risk at the site and the lack of any clear indications of any deep-seated movement of
the slope were both noted. The work proposed herein is to further assess the possibility of deep-seated
movements of this slope using new technology than had not been previously available. This proposal
presents the cost and approach for assessment of the slide.

1.0 SCOPE OF WORK

1.1 LiDAR Imagery Acquisition

Since the 2002 report, LiDAR imagery and newer rock engineering analytical procedures have become
more available. The proposed scope would include acquiring and analyzing LiDAR data to document and
identify surface features in the slide area. Old slide surfaces, loose boulders, ground cracks, rock
exposures, and other features could likely be identified on the LiDAR imagery.

A ground control survey will be performed using a Kodiak-based survey firm (yet to be determined) to tie
the features on the LiDAR to GPS coordinates. This should make it possible to use periodic acquisitions
of LiDAR data to monitor any significant future movements or slides on Pillar Mountain.

1.2 New Ground Reconnaissance

Because the current gabion rock fall containment system has some damage and is nearly full in some
locations, it needs at least some maintenance. As a first step in this work a geologist familiar with the
slope, will conduct a new reconnaissance of the slide area to:

• Document the condition of the gabion walls and note the amount of rock fall currently
being retained.

• Note any changes in the surface of the slope since the 2002 inspection.

A second inspection may be needed to document the results of any maintenance done on the gabion
walls. We understand that the Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (ADOTPF), who
controls the right of way where the gabion wall is located, plan to do some maintenance there this
summer.

Shelikof Street Slide

Golder Associates Inc.
2121 Abbott Road, Suite 100
Anchorage, AK 99507 USA

Tel: (907) 344-6001 Fax: (907) 344-43011 www.golder.com

Golder Associates: Operations In Africa, Asia, AustralasIa, Europe, North America and South AmerIca

Golder, Golder Associates and the GA globe design are trademarks of Golder Associates Corporation

53



Glenn Melvin
City of Kodiak 2

July 29, 2013
P1300823

1.3 Analyses incorporating Rock Structure

R&M's stability checks where undertaken in 1982 assuming a series of failure planes.They assigned
various strength parameters to shallow and more deep-seated failure planes. We propose updating this
analysis based using Phases 2 software developed by Rocscience - which allows for the inclusion of rock
structure and strength estimates for pervasive bedding and fractures, and for the intact strength of the
rock in the geological model. While this is still a 2D analysis, Phases 2 uses a modem code that has the
advantage of providing a method to validate the assumed rock mass failure mechanism envisaged by our
team.

Once we have an accurate 3D survey done in LiDAR, it will be possible to cut accurate sections for input
into the Phases 2 model. Previous observations indicated a series of tension cracks that exist at the top
of the failed scarp suggesting that there may still be some instability developing in the slope over time.
The 1982 study analyzed a series of discrete failure planes that varied from shallow to deep-seated. We
plan on back analyzing the existing failure area in 2D using the code provided in Phases 2 to generate a
representative rock mass failure. Once we have validated the rock mass failure mechanism and updated
strength criteria for the rock mass, we will superimpose seismic loading to determine the worst-case
event. Depending on the results, and if the failure is significant (impacts the highway below and
infrastructure further downslope), we may model the stabilizing influence of potential mitigating measures.

The result of this work will be integrated into our report and any conclusion regarding required mitigation
measures.

2.0 PROPOSED PROJECT STAFF

This project will be managed and coordinated by Bucky Tart, a Principal Geotechnical Engineer. Bob
Dugan, a Principal Geologist who did the 2002 reconnaissance, will perform the 2013 ground
reconnaissance. He will also lead the analyses of the LiDAR data. Both he and Bucky are from the
Anchorage office of Golder Associates.

The rock engineering analyses will be done under the direction of Paul Schlotfeldt, a Senior Rock
Engineer from our Squamish, BC office. These analyses will be reviewed and checked by both Bucky
and Bob.

3.0 PROPOSED WORK PLAN

The work of the Golder team would consist of the following:

• Perform a geologic reconnaissance of the Pillar Mountain Slide Area.

• Acquire and analyze LiDAR imagery of the slide area.

• Acquire ground control for the LiDAR.

• Perform stability analyses incorporating rock structure.

• Prepare a geologic/engineering report presenting our findings.

The reconnaissance and LiDAR would be started as soon as possible after notice to proceed (NTP). The
ground reconnaissance should be complete within two weeks of the NTP. We should have the LiDAR
data within a month of NTP. The report should be available about 3 months after NTP. We will likely
have some preliminary information for you as we progress.

4.0 COST ESTIMATE

The costs for this work have been calculated based on our Standard rates according to the Golder
Professional Rate Schedule for Calendar Year 2013 for engineering design and other professional
services required. A copy of this rate schedule is attached.

Shelikof Street Slide "'Golder\:r!IASSOCiates

54



Glenn Melvin
City of Kodiak 3

July 29,2013
P1300823

We have also attached the City of Kodiak Agreement for Professional Services we used to perform the
Periodic Dam Safety Inspections PN 05-03/7034 for you earlier this year. We assume this agreement
with the included changes would be used for the work in this proposal.

Our estimated cost breakdown for the scope of work outlined above is as follows:

• Site reconnaissance - $5,000

• LiDAR Acquisition - $13,140

• Ground Control Survey - $5800

• Engineering Analyses - $11,000

• Report Preparation - $9,000

• JOB TOTAL· $43,940

5.0 CLOSING

These costs are our best estimate at this time for performing the evaluation of the Pillar Mountain Slide. If
additional work is necessary beyond that described in our scope then we may request your approval for
additional funds.

If you are in agreement with our scope of work and estimated costs, we can do this work under the Terms
and Conditions in our current contract with the City of Kodiak.

Sincerely,
GOLDER ASSOCIATES INC.

~
Rupert G. Tart, Jr., PE
Principal and Senior Consultant

Attachments: City of Kodiak Agreement for Professional Services
Golder Associates Inc. 2013 Rate Schedule

RGT/mlp

Shelikof Street Slide

55



/"

...'"M A

Bob Dugan
Andrew Garrigus
Golder Associates, Inc.
2121 Abbott Road, Suite 100
Anchorage, AK 99507

PILLAR MOUNTAIN SLIDE ZONE

KODIAK ALASKA

536 E. Fireweed Ave.
Palm~r, Alaska 9964!HJ628
Tel: 907.746.1405

\\0 ,vw.l\odiakmapping.com

JUNE 16, 2013

Mr. Dugan

Thank you for the opportunity to propose on your Pillar Mountain Slide Zone project.
Kodiak Mapping, Inc. (KMI) has taken the time to develop a comprehensive acquisition plan which
we've outlined in the attached scope ofwork.

The project flight plan and methodologies were developed with consideration to the extreme verti
cal grade of the project area. The acquisition plan was constructed to achieve the highest level of
product accuracy and point density while still maintaining a minimum safe flight altitude.

Your project was planned in conjunction with other acquisition projects in the region. Your project
cost will benefit from reduced mobilization rates for both acquisition and control, but it will also be
confined by the other project's schedule. We anticipate that the Kodiak Island Borough will collect
data during the month ofAugust and mobilization decisions will be based on their projects magni
tude and geographic location.

We look forward to the possibility ofworking with you on this project.

Regards,

Jeremy Smith
Lead Acquisition Specialist
Kodiak Mapping, Inc.

56

cperkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment B



PROJECT ABSTRACT

Kodiak Mapping (KMI) was tasked with planning the aer
ial acquisition of LiDAR and Ortho Photography for the
Pillar Mountain slide zone near the City of Kodiak. The
area of interest is approximately 2000-ft either side of
the landslide scar on the southern face, and extends from
the approximate waterline to the summit of the ridge.

ApPROACH & PLANNING

KMI has prepared the following project parameters
based on our understanding of the project goals.

We will simultaneously acquire LiDAR and Digital Im
agery to produce a LiDAR derived Bare Earth Surface in
LAS format with approximately 45 - 75 points per meter.
Point Density will vary throughout the project with more
emphasis given to the scar and the steeper faces of the
slope. Digital Imagery will be acquired simultaneously to
support the generation of a 1.5-inch pixel orthophoto.

LiDAR Collection

We propose a LiDAR nominal point density of 25 points per meter native. We
have stepped each flight-line to account for the elevation changes in the project
area. Additionally, we have planned our flight lines at with 60%- 80% overlap to
increase aggregate point densities in focus areas. The region in the Vicinity of the
scar should exceed 75-ppm density while areas on the summit of the ridgeline
and along the shore may only see an aggregate value of 45-ppm.

Kodiak Mapping Inc. I ML&P TRANSMISSION L1NE- LiDAR and Ortho Photography 2

57



SCHEDULE & TIMElINE

Aerial Photography

In addition to the LiDAR data KMI will simultaneously collect digital metric quali
ty 4-band imagery. The imagery will be used in conjunction with the LiDAR to
support surface model production, including the generation of break lines, and
man-made planimetric features, etc.. The imagery that we will collect will be con
trolled using post photo identification points. The pixel resolution of the imagery
collected during the LiDAR mission will be approximately l.5-inch. pixel.

Project Control

KMI will utilize USKH, Inc. for the ground control component of this project.

This project will require that 4 photo identification points be measured after the
project is flown. This control will be used for the Aero-Triangulation of the pho
tography as well as a control basis for LiDAR adjustments.

During the flight missions KMI will run two GPS base stations at the Kodiak Air
port.

The LiDAR and aerial photography is planned for acquisition immediately follow
ing and NTP and receipt of contract. Photo ID control points will be selected after
acquisition from the project imagery.

Mapping will be completely no later than 6 weeks from time of acquisition and
receipt of suitable control.

DELIVERABLES

KMI will provide the follOWing products for this project:

• LAS point cloud data: All Points, First return data, and Bare-Earth return in
LAS format.

• Orthophoto - Natural Color RGB with a l.5-inch pixel resolution, tiled to 250
MB (tile naming and sizing can be adjusted to accommodate project require
ments)

• Orthophoto - Color Infrared Imagery NIR with a l.5-inch pixel resolution,
tiled to 250 MB (tile naming and sizing can be adjusted to accommodate pro
ject requirements)

Kodiak Mapping Inc. I Ml&P TRANSMISSION lINE-liDAR and Ortho Photography 3

58



PROJECT ESTIMATE

Project Costs will be provided at a later date. We are currently waiting to receive subcontractor fees
for the ground control component of the project.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide possible solutions for your project If we did not sufficiently ad
dress any ofyour concerns in our scope ofwork we would be happy to make the necessary revisions to fa
cilitate your needs. If you have any questions regarding this proposal or its technical content please contact
me directly.

Regards,

Jeremy Smith
Kodiak Mapping, Inc.
P:907.746.140S

Kodiak Mapping Inc. I ML&P TRANSMISSION L1NE- LiDAR and Ortho Photography 4

59



TO:

FROM:

DATE:

RE:

MEMORANDUM

Linda L. Freed
City Manager

Howard K. Weston, P.EA l;J
City Engineer 'r
October 3> 2002

PiIIar Mountain Slide

Thirty-five survey monuments were set on Pillar Mt. above and around the slide area in 1978.
The monuments were re-surveyed twice more in 1978, three times in '79, twice in '80, and once
in '86. It has been suggested that the location of the monuments be surveyed again. This led me
to take another look at the Pillar Mountain slide.

The existing monuments have limitations such that another stand-alone survey would not serve
any constructive purpose at this time. However, I do believe it is time to take another serious
look at the Pillar Mountain slide.

History of the Pillar Mt. Stide

The foIIowing is taken from the «Pillar Mountain Slope Stability Study, Final Project Report" by
R&M Consultants, Inc. dated July 1982.

3.2 Prior to 1971

A bedrock exposure with active rockfall has existed for many years at the toe of
the Pillar Mountain Slide and is flanked to the northeast and southwest by
prehistoric landslide debris. The stability of these debris is low; fresh slump
features and continuous open ground fractures in the revegetated slide debris are
clearly visible in a 1962 air photo extending 1200 feet northeast of the rockfall
area along the Abbert Highway and varying from elevation 300 feet near the
rockfall area to elevation 175 feet northeast ofCity Dock 2.

In 1962, the area of apparent rockfall consisted of an irregular exposure of
bedrock approximately 1400 feet wide BIld up to approximate elevation 300 feet.
Partially revegetated shallow surface deformation scars extending up to elevation
750 feet are clearly visible on airphotos as are several lineaments on the slope
above the rockfall area that became open ground fractures in 1971 (see Section
3.3).

Prior to 1957 or 1958, the Abbert Highway was constructed along the flank of
PiIIar Mountain and cut across the face of the Pillar Mountain Slide at an
elevation of 125 to 160 feet (KarchadooriBll and Slater, 1978). This highway was

60

cperkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment C



Pillar Mt. Slide
August 17, 1002
Page 2 of5

subsequently abandoned due to rockfall related maintenance problems and
relocated along the beach at the base ofthe mountain.

3.3 December 1971

The City of Kodiak and others have long been using the flanks of Pillar Mountain
as a source of borrow rock for riprap and fill material. Excavations into bedrock
have generally been made without producing any detrimental effects. In 1971 a
quany was developed along the abandoned highway; excavated material was
utilized in construction of City Dock 3. Approximately 300,000 cubic yards of
material had been removed by the contractor before Sunday, December 5, 1971,
when large amounts of rock debris began falling from a vertical gully in the
exposed bedrock above the abandoned highway. The gully progressively raveled
over the next four days from an elevation of 300 feet to approximately 775 feet.
Aerial observations of the slope revealed that the gully was developing along the
northeast lateral scarp of a major sliding block. Several days after the onset of
slide activity, heavy rockfall was noted in from the center and southwestern edge
of the sliding block. On Thursday, December 9, extensive development of open
transverse ground fractures was noted on the slope above the rockfall area up to
an elevation of approximately 1125 feet. Ground inspection on December 9 and
again on December 14 revealed that these fractures were widening. Rockfall
activity peaked in intensity on Friday, December 17 and then tapered off. At the
culmination of the December 1971 event, [an] estimated 600,000 cubic yards of
rock had fallen.

3.4 Post-1971

Activity of the Pillar Mountain Slide has remained low in the years following
1971. Small showers of rock and occasional large blocks intermittently fall from
the face of the bedrock exposure. Protective gabion walls constructed at the base
of the rockfall area prevent most ofthe falling debris from rolling onto the Abbert
Highway. Many of the ground fractures upslope of the rockfall area observed
during the present study have become partially to completely filled with slope
wash soils and are revegetated; however, many fractures still appear open and
fresh.

The Last 20 Yean

The slide has continued to ravel in the 20 years since the 1982 R&M Report,. The quantity of
rockfall has been relatively small. The rock collecting behind the gabion wall has effectively
reduced the height of the barrier. Rocks rolling down the debris slope are able to bounce over
the gabion wall with greater frequency than in the past. It is expected that the gabion wall barrier
will continue to become less effective with time and more and more rock will land on the
highway.

61



Pillar Mt. Slide
August 27, 2002
Page 3 of5

Existing Monuments

R&M placed approximately 20 survey monuments on Pillar Mountain in 1971 and 1972.
Ecklund Survey placed an additional 35 monuments in the vicinity in 1978. The accuracy of
these surveys was ±O.3 feet (±3.6 inches). By the time of the 1982 R&M report, the best that
could be concluded from the survey data was that maybe there had been some slope movement.
The data was simply too imprecise to allow small movements to be detected with any degree of
confidence.

The last survey data we have is dated 1986. That data indicates that Point 2, closest to the top of
the mountain, was located less than one inch to the side of its original position. This is less than
the accuracy level of the survey, so this point can not be considered to have moved. Point 26,
just above the rockfall area, was located about 3 inches uphill and 10 inches to one side of its
original position. Obviously movement uphill and sideways does not make sense and is likely
just survey error.

Plots of the measured "movement" ofPoints 2 and 26 are attached. These plots clearly show the
futility ofevaluating small slope movements with this survey technique.

Findings and Recommendations of the 1982 R&M Report

The 1982 R&M Report was the culmination of an extensive engineering investigation. The
inconclusive nature ofthe findings is clear in the Report's summary statement (emphasis added):

The interpreted aerial extent of the Pillar Mountain Slide is shown on Figure A
02. However available evidence presented here are not sufficient to dermitely
determine the failure mechanism(s) and subsurface geometry of the Slide.
Apparent movement zones occur at 96-106 feet and 176-190 feet. Possible zones
occur at 272-286 feet, and 414-424 feet. The possibility of deeper zones of
movement has not been eliminated. The orientation of these zones is not known
[emphasis in original]~ their orientation may be similar to Joint set F presented in
Section 9.0 has been made under these limitations, with the intent of supporting
meaningful conclusion on which to base future decisions and actions.

As implied, the mechanisms may be complex since movements (based on
inclinometer data) may be occurring at several depths within DH No. 1-80.
Further, analysis of the ground fractures clearly reveals domains of upslope and
downslope facing scarps. Nea....surface toppling has been documented,
translation sliding may be occurring, and the possibility remains that
"sackung" type movement as described by Radbruch-Hall, (1978) may be
occurring.

In other words, the studies found that the rock slide really did happen~ a bigger slide might be
occurring; and a really big catastrophic slide might be possible. R&M handled the inconclusive
findings by proposing a stabilization method that would stop the rockfall and stabilize any large
or catastrophic slide that might be occurring. R&M's solution was to excavate the upper portion

62



Pillar Mt. Slide
August 27, 2002
Page 4 of5

of the slide area and place it, as a buttress, on the lower part of the slide. The buttress would fill
the area between Pier IT and Pier ill and extend 600 feet up the mountain. R&M estimated that
roughly 3 to 4 million cubic yards of rock would have to be moved with the project cost being on
the order of$20,OOO,OOO.

Limitations of the Previous Study

The objective of the previous study was to detennine if action needed to be taken to protect
people and property. This objective was not met. Construction of a buttress was recommended
on the basis of technically tenuous data. The cost of the buttress was so outrageously high that
its construction was clearly not justified by the inconclusive findings.

The three slope failure types R&M reports may be possible are:

1. The toppling and raveling of rock from the face of the mountain as occurred in the past
and is still occurring;

2. A larger deep--seated slide that could cover the road with a large quantity ofrock; and

3. A massive deep-seated slide that could fail suddenly and plunge into the water creating a
tsunami.

The gabion wall adequately controls the toppling and raveling. R&M recommended the
expensive buttress to control the larger slides. The limitation of the report was that the risk of
sliding was not quantified. Without knowing the level of risk, it is impossible to rationally
decide whether the cost ofthe buttress is acceptable. Furthermore, the buttress would only lower
the risk of sliding, not eliminate the risk. And again, the amount the buttress would lower the
risk was not quantified.

For example: If the risk of a massive landslide that would cause extensive loss of life is high and
a buttress would reduce the risk significantly, then it would be justified to spend tens of millions
ofdollars on constructing a buttress. On the other hand, if the risk of a catastrophic slope failure
is low to begin with and a buttress would only marginally reduce the risk, then obviously
construction of a multi-million dollar buttress is not justified.

The previous study has placed the City of Kodiak in a very uncomfortable position. The R&M
report leaves a perception of pending catastrophe hanging over our heads with a recommendation
to construct an extremely expensive buttress. Past City Councils have obviously decided not to
take any action, but this is contrary to the recommendations of the R&M report prepared as the
culmination ofan extensive exploration and analysis program.

A New Slope Study

Based on my review of the previous work and my knowledge of the local geology, I predict that
a thorough analysis of the existing data, that takes advantage of the advancements in rock
mechanics and earthquake engineering developed over the last 20 years, will find that the risks of
a significantly dangerous slide occurring, particularly a slide that could generate a tsunami, are

63



Pillar Mt. Slide
August 27, 2002
PageS 0[5

so low that no further action will be required. I expect that an analysis could be performed with
sufficiently accuracy without any new field explorations.

If my prediction is correct, then the 'do nothing' approach taken for the last 20 years will be
shown to be justified. If I am mistaken and there is a significant risk of a tsunami generating
slide, that can be prevented, then the Council will be justified in funding the construction of the
buttress.

I propose that a new analysis be performed to quantifY the risks. The scope would be limited to a
few days of site observations and a review and r~analysis of the existing data. It is pOSSIble, but
in my opinion not likely, that additional field exploration or monitoring may be required to more
accurately quantity the risks of slope failure. If the analysis finds that more exploration is
necessary, and cost effective, the scope and cost of that exploration will be determined for our
budgeting purposes.

Recommendations

I recommend Golder Associates be contracted to do a new analysis of the Pillar Mountain slide.
Golder is one of preeminent rock mechanics and geotechnical engineering firms in the world.
This type of analysis is exactly in-line with the expertise of the company. I have discussed the
Pillar Mountain slide with Bucky Tart and Frank Shoo of Golder Assooiates and they have
reviewed the 1982 R&M report. They agree with the approach I am proposing.

I recommend that an expenditure of $5,000 be authorized at this time to have one of Golder's
senior geologists visit Pillar Mountain and observe the existing condition of the slide. The slide
observations would be easiest at this time of year when the grass and leaves are down and before
the area has any snow cover. The purpose of the site observation would be to look for any
change in the surface features since the last thorough exploration of the site. This is a prudent
precedence to r~analyzing the existing data. This work could be funded using the Engineering

I Department's professional services account and should only be performed if we intend to fundl the new analysis.

I recommend an additional $35,000 be authorized in the next supplemental budget to fund
Golder's analysis of the data, preparation of a report, and a presentation of the findings to the
City Council.

64



65



66



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

67



68



tennis court repairs, and permanent bleachers at the track and field. A RFQ was issued at the end of June
and four quotes from various suppliers were received on July 29,2013. The four quotes responses were
as follows:

Southern Bleacher Company $64,840.00
Nor-Pac Seating Company, Inc $67,900.00
Outdoor Aluminum Inc $100,000.00
International Design & Construction LLC .. $112,315.00

Southern Bleacher Company was the apparent lowest cost bidder and staff recommends Council
approve the purchase from that company.

Need for Permanent Bleachers at the Track and Field: Parks and Recreation currently manage seven
fields and three other outdoor facilities that require bleachers for spectator seating. To date, this need has
been satisfied with an insufficient inventory of portable bleacher assemblies of different sizes, which
must be relocated multiple times during the course of various seasons. The constant relocation of
bleachers causes damage to the bleachers themselves, risk during transport, and unreasonable labor
impacts. Additionally, the bleachers are not handicap compliant and present hazards due to the lack of
grab rails and gaps between foot treads. The installation of permanent bleachers (Attachment A) with a
seating capacity of approximately 700 people will significantly reduce operational costs and risks to the
department. The bleachers will also complement the nature of the park itself as it is has a relatively low
profile and fits within the current footprint established between the skate park/tennis court and track.
The bleachers will be handicap and code compliant and add a nice finishing touch to the athletic use of
the portion of the park that has the most spectator demand.

Staff is recommending Council approve the purchase of bleachers from Southern Bleacher Company.
Staffwill proceed with the purchase and installation of the bleachers upon approval.

Impact to Remaining Elements within final phase of Baranof Improvement Project: The timing for
approval of the bleachers is appropriate. The largest element of the overall project was the multipurpose
synthetic outfield which has made it past the highest risk phase of construction without issue, namely
excavation. All contemplated change orders for the outfield have been priced and are within the project
budget. Additional funds will not be needed thereby freeing up the other elements to move forward. The
other elements are in process and fall within the City Manager's purchasing authority.

ALTERNATIVES:
1. Authorize the purchase of bleachers from Southern Bleacher Company, which is recommended

by staff because it will provide a code compliant bleacher system, reduce operational costs and
risk, and provide a vital component to a very important community asset.

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. d. Memo Page 2 of 3

69



2. Do not authorize the purchase of the bleachers, which is not recommended as it does not meet
community need and is operationally problematic.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: At the time of this memo and pending pay requests already
encumbered, the City has $1,806,619 remaining in the project budget, of which $85,000 was identified
for new bleachers. The funds are adequate to cover the purchase of the bleacher system and the purchase
meets the state's grant reimbursement requirements.

LEGAL:N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council authorize the purchase of bleachers as
identified in (Attachment A) from Southern Bleacher Company in the amount of $64,840, with funds
coming from Parks Capital Improvement Fund, BaranofPark Improvements, Project No. 9001/12-05

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: The existing bleachers at the track and field complex are
inadequate and don't meet code or ADA compliance minimums. Therefore, I support staffs
recommendation to purchase a new 700 seat capacity bleacher complex from Southern Bleacher
Company. Once approved, staffwill arrange the purchase and install them upon arrival.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment A: Schematic design bleacher drawings

PROPOSED MOTION:
Move to authorize the purchase of bleachers from Southern Bleacher Company in the amount of
$64,840, with funds coming from Parks Capital Improvement Fund, Baranof Park Improve
ments, Project No. 9001/12-05.

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. d. Memo Page 300

70



L

M
!
q
-
A
L
§
~
E

IN
S

TA
Ll

A
TI

O
N

P
E

TA
IL

2
PI

(C
E

C
O

N
T

lU
sn

J«
:

•.
5

tJ
j

-,
~
~

M
D

5
IC

4
t

,""
"N

O
A

A
Il
C
O
N
t
'
l
E
c
n
O
~
~

U
a.

A
¥P

.
J
/I

"X
f
C~

~;
~;

';
;I

~r
S

C
M

'W
_

/
JC

I.
NU

T
~

A
N

G
LE

FR
A

M
E

U
N

IT
S

M
U

S
T

B
E

AN
C

H
O

R
ED

TO
R

ES
IS

T
W

IN
D

LO
AD

S,
N

3
PR

ES
C

R
IB

ED
BY

BU
IL

D
IN

G
C

O
D

E.

.
.
.

J
X

10
AN

O
D

IZ
ED

AL
U

M
IN

U
M

SE
AT

I
•

1
a

,1
"'

n.
t

Al
.U

M
IN

UN
TR

EA
D

C
-

I
•
•

M
1U

AW
W

fN
U

Io
l

IT
IP

N
O

S(
(K

t)
TR

EA
D

D
-

,
•
•

t/
2

AN
O

O
IZ

ED
/L

U
U

IN
IA

I
f'L

\T
RI

SE
R

E
•

IL
C

Il
CO

N
'1'

RA
Sl

tN
G

A
W

r.o
w

uU
~
L
.
£

H
O

SI
N

G

-
-
-
-
-

_
lO

G

~
...

A
nc

I1
0f

C
8p

ac
ll

y
sn

d
D

rtv
!n

g
th

e
A

ne
IlC

l'

g :r
L····

·L
··

..
..

..
..

.
.

"
.

'h
e

~
n
c
h
o
n
l

0
"t

I
I'1

Ite
d

'"
o

n
o

w
ro

o
t

(C
IO

$5
S

)
.
.

C
Q

nd
lU

cn
.

Ilg
a

Ir
\

hl
Q

he
t

C
G

D
C

C
itie

s
C

G
I'l

b
e
a
~
t
e
d

.
.
.
.
.
.
.

~
1
s

an
d

tm
re

r
cv

po
ci

U
n

'n
so

tw
so

ils
.

Th
e

rv
tIn

9
..

I'N
IIr

lIy
..

.r
\I

en
•

,e
'e

re
ft

ce
lo

r
on

ct
to

r
.e

le
ct

io
n.

P
ro

of
lo

G
di

nO
is

th
e

on
ly

.
.
,

to
In

",
"

tM
ao

ct
co

p
o

cl
ty

of
..

..
JI

1s
to

no
tlo

l\.
T

h
it

is
tr

u
e

10
1'

o
Q

a
n

ch
o

rs
a

n
h

"'
ri

1:
;t

to
dc

Jy
.

e
w
~
.
"
.
~

o
n

y
~

..
tD

..
..

..
1M

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.
D

Ie
,.

.
k
-.

..
..

..
.

th
e
~

ID
od

~
f
f
t
f
o
d
d
o
"
-
"
"
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
,

g
J
M

N
C

T
H

E
N

¢
H

Q
R

Th
e

Q
l1

C
K

B
lL

lD
ec

n
b

e
dr

iY
er

'l
ti

t
a

lm
o

st
on

y
d

ep
th

o
t

01
'1)

'
0

"9
'"

trw
gu

y
o
~
l
i
(
C
1
t
i
O
M

..
..

on
Q

le
_

th
e

.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

s'1
ou

fc
1

C
lO

S
el

y
m

o
le

n
th

e
O

I"I
Q

le
o

f
th

e
qu

.,n
,...

S
ta

rt
b)

o
IM

e
rf

ln
9

It.
.-

d'
ri

w
st
..

1
Il'

\to
Ib

'
t
I
~
l
t
I
"

bo
dy

.
u

sa
a

sl
e

ll;
e

h
a

m
m

e
r,

fe
n

ce
p

o
s'

dr
iY

er
o

r
•

po
w

er
d
~

/o
ek

tlo
lT

W
M

f'
e.

d
'..

...
tt

l"
.
.
,
.
,

ti
t

th
e

I)"
'O

pc
r

de
pt

h.
F1

I
~
c
.
:
r
.

cm
c:

"o
r

w
it!

't
so

il.
'»

li
,

..
..

I'IO
t

01
10

"
w

o
C

f'
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

to
,h

.
G

Id
a
'.
~

~
e

ou
t
..

PL
AN

K
AF

lR
AN

G
eM

EN
T

r.
2

4
"

/l
tS

ro
rA

L
N

Il
f'

'S
·

S
IU

f'
B

--
-L

.f
'D

J'
A

L
N

If
'

S
S

·
tr

1l
E

8L
C

11
A

1R
S
P
~
C
Z
S

lU
ff

ro
rA

L
s
~
J
'
1
N
G

C
A

P
A

C
rr

r

I
lb

j
~

u
~

u
W

J
sl

l'
-O

·
I

II
·-

J·
4·

...
3

1
'-

'"
4·

...
3

1
<

-'
·

~
~

J1
<

-'
-

f
~

7'-
'-

.>
0

-
0 2

9
'-

""

S
'-

J"
I~r

-..
"

5
'-

0
"

15'
-O~

5
'-

0
"

"-
0

"
,

'
~
'
-
6
"

I
mn

mE
I

I
I

I
:

I.
*1:

i
-

-
.

.._
--

"-
._

_.
-

-

8
'-

3
'

"'
-1

5"

:i
1

'-
O

"

2
5

'-
6

"

fL
:£

l

"-'
-1

·'·
U

I

S
E

A
TI

N
G

LA
Y

O
lJ

T
S

6
U

1}
'.'

4f
6

9
6

TO
TA

L
SE

A
T

IN
G

C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y

4
1

7
TO

TA
L

N
Il

T
'S

·
S

IU
I'

S
--

L
J'

O
T

A
L

N
E

T
S

S
·
J
f
I
I
~
/
U
l
R
S
P
~
C
Z
S

4
8

'
TO

TA
L

Sl
lA

rr
N

G
C

A
P

A
C

rr
r

§ • .. ~ 4 iI
~

!~
.
i

II
~

10
0

.....
- 1 1 11 t l::.

'1ft -

71

cperkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



S
ID

E
V

IE
W

@
8

R
O

W
S

C
M

£:
IlO

T
TO

SC
H

.E

~
~

"
'P

R
£

S
U

(l
1

l£
Jl

lI
).

J
..

..
,
5

I
!
"
,

(
I
T

_
,,

'.
2

"

A
U

,
I
D

_
O

!..
C

I{
B

1l
l

N
C

H
D

R
.....

S
ID

E
V

IE
W

@
5

R
O

W
S

O
U

:
lO

T
TO

K
A

lE

\;' ..

Y
A

A
l[S

P
[1

l
0

C
4

H
[[

J

S
E

C
TI

O
N

V
IE

W
@

4
R

O
W

/P
R

E
S

S
B

O
X

P
lA

TF
O

R
M

S
C

A
l.E

:
N

O
T

TO
SC

A.
L.

E

l
'
d
~

ll1
W

tD
IU

)
51

.1
"
',

(
1

1
'-

8
'-

3
"

1
I1

1
it

D
D

'S
.
,
,
"
.

n
·

J
I'

-,
,"

S
'-

2
"

1
4
'
-
1
~

S
E

C
TI

O
N

V
IE

W
@

PR
ES

SB
O

X
PL

AT
FO

R
M

SC
M

.£
:

NO
T

TD
K

A
L

l

~ ~ "'<
;

~ ,. J S . - ~

2
.;

§

lO
P

O
F

GR
AD

E
m

y
,

•
0

'·
0

'

TO
P

\;' ..

e'
·"

5
;
'
-
I
O
~

•
<
I'

e'
-"

'2
'-

0
"

.
'
-
o
~

,
H

¥
"

11
.1

I
'.

f'
·.1

,•
P

M
)

E
U

V
.

-
0'

-0
"

72



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

73



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL

To: Mayor Branson and City Council Members

From: Aimee Kniaziowski, City Managtlt-

Thru: Mark Kozak., Public Works Director, and Glenn Melvin PE, City Engineer

Date: August 8, 2013

Agenda Item: V. e. Authorization of Bid Award for Annual Sidewalk, Curb, and Gutter
Repairs, Project No. 5003/14-01

SUMMARY: Annually, the City issues bids for the repair and replacement of damaged sections of
sidewalk, curb, and gutters at various locations throughout the City. Actual quantities of each bid item
will vary in response to need and approved FY2014 budget. Bids were issued in June and opened on
July 29, 2013. Two bids were received. Staff recommends Council authorize the bid award to Belarde
Custom Concrete, the low bidder, in the amount of $65,31 O.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: The City puts this project out to bid on an annual basis, and the
City Council makes the award to the lowest responsible bidder.

DISCUSSION: During the course of winter maintenance, some sidewalks and curbs are damaged from
snow removal and, through freezing and thawing cycles, the concrete structures shift. This project is
used to correct damaged areas that may create a hazard to pedestrian use of the sidewalks as well as
drainage and ADA compliance issues. Both the water and sewer fund contribute funds to this project for
replacement of sidewalk, curb and gutters that need repair or replacement from sewer and water repair
work.

The project runs from August 9, 2013, through June 30, 2014. Areas of work are identified and then
given to the contractor for repair or replacement. This project has evolved into the current format in
order to reduce the amount of engineering, design and survey required. As staff becomes aware of areas
that need repair or replacement, the work is coordinated with the contractor. Work is then laid out in the
field with the contractor and performed on a unit price basis.

The project went out to bid in June and bids were opened on July 29,2013. Two bids were received. The
bid results are summarized below and complete bid tabulation is attached (Attachment A).

Belarde Custom Concrete $65,310.00
DRW Construction $73,797.10
Public Works Director Estimate $75,380.00

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. e. Memo Page 1 of2

74



ALTERNATIVES:
1. Award the Sidewalk Curb and Gutter project to the lowest bidder. This is the recommended

option; it allows us to keep our pedestrian walkway safe and accessible to the community.
2. Not award and just hire out small repairs as necessary. This option is not recommend because of

the difficult process of handling each repair separately and complying with Alaska Department
of Labor requirements.

3. Not award, this would allow continual deterioration of existing facilities and increase the risk for
liability claims against the City. This approach is not recommended.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: There is $127,900 available in the Street Improvement Capital Fund,
Annual Sidewalk, Curb, and Gutter project which is adequate to approve this bid award.

LEGAL: N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council award the Annual Sidewalk Curb and
Gutter project, Project No. 5003/14-01 to Belarde Custom Concrete in the amount of $65,310, with
funds coming from the Street Improvement Capital Fund, Annual Sidewalk Curb and Gutter project,
Project No. 5003/14-01.

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: I support the staff recommendation to award the annual sidewalk,
curb, and gutter bid to Belarde Custom Concrete as the lowest bidder. They have performed this work
for us in the past, and Public Works has been pleased with their work.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment A: Bid Tabulation Sheet.

PROPOSED MOTION:
Move to authorize the bid award for the annual sidewalk, curb, and gutter project to Belarde
Custom Concrete in the amount of $65,310, with funds coming from the Street Improvement
Capital Fund, Annual Sidewalk Curb and Gutter project, Project No. 5003/14-01 and authorize
the City Manager to execute the award documents on behalf of the City.

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. e. Memo Page 2 of2

75



IA
tta

ch
m

en
t:

A
I

20
13

Si
de

w
al

k,
C

ur
b

an
d

G
ut

te
r

P
N

14
-0

1
B

id
T

ab
B

id
D

at
e:

M
on

da
y,

Ju
ly

29
,

20
13

~

B
id

E
ng

in
ee

rs
E

st
im

at
e

B
el

ar
de

C
us

to
m

D
R

W
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

It
em

D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

Q
ua

nt
it

y
U

ni
ts

C
on

cr
et

e
C

om
pa

ny

R
em

ov
al

o
f

S
id

ew
al

k
24

50
sq

ua
re

$2
.0

0
$4

,9
00

.0
0

$2
.0

0
$4

,9
00

.0
0

$7
.0

0
$1

7,
15

0.
00

fo
ot

2
R

em
ov

al
o

fc
ur

b
an

d
54

0
li

ne
ar

fo
ot

$1
2.

00
$6

,4
80

.0
0

$1
2.

00
$6

,4
80

.0
0

$9
.0

0
$4

,8
60

.0
0

gu
tt

er

3
C

ur
b

an
d

gu
tt

er
54

0
li

ne
ar

fo
ot

$5
0.

00
$2

7,
00

0.
00

$4
7.

00
$2

5,
38

0.
00

$2
9.

00
$1

5,
66

0.
00

4
P

C
C

S
id

ew
al

k
27

0
sq

ua
re

$1
00

.0
0

$2
7,

00
0.

00
$7

5.
00

$2
0,

25
0.

00
$9

1.
83

$2
4,

79
4.

10
ya

rd

5
P

C
C

C
ur

b
R

am
p

50
sq

ua
re

$1
20

.0
0

$6
,0

00
.0

0
$1

00
.0

0
$5

,0
00

.0
0

$1
91

.6
6

$9
,5

83
.0

0
ya

rd

6
D

et
ec

ta
bl

e
W

ar
ni

ng
s

50
sq

ua
re

$8
0.

00
$4

,0
00

.0
0

$6
6.

00
$3

,3
00

.0
0

$3
5.

00
$1

,7
50

.0
0

fo
ot

G
ra

nd
T

ot
al

$7
5,

38
0.

00
$6

5,
31

0.
00

$7
3,

79
7.

10

20
13

Si
de

w
al

k,
C

ur
b

a
n

d
G

ut
te

r
P

N
14

-0
1

P
ag

e
1

o
f1

76

cperkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

77



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL

To: Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers

From: Aimee Kniaziowski, City Manag{)jt,.

Thru: Lon White, Deputy a:r~rmaster & Glenn Melvin, City Engineer

Date: August 08, 2013

Agenda Item: V. f. Authorization of Bid Award for Harbor Projects 2013, Project No. 14-02

SUMMARY: Four harbor facilities need minor repair. Years of use plus damage done by the State ferry
MN Kennicott require heavy-lift cranes and other equipment to remove and install pile and lift and
repair fender units. There are several components of this project at four different city-owned facilities:
Pier II, Dock 1 (St. Paul Harbor), L-Float (St. Herman Harbor), and the Channel Transient Float (CTF).
They all require equipment (i,e, cranes on barges) which are not available to the Harbor Department's
in-house maintenance team. Pier II repairs have been deferred two years awaiting contractor availability.
Two bids were received on July 31, 2013, and staff recommends Council authorize award of the bid to
the lowest responsible bidder, Western Marine Construction for $75,925.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: Council approved funding for these repairs in several Harbor
accounts over several fiscal years.

DISCUSSION: There are four Harbor facilities at which repairs are needed. All were included in one
bid for improved bid responses and similar repairs and equipment needed. Damage to Pier II was
sustained to fender unit "F" in July 2011 by the MN Kennicott. The incident was well documented
(Attachment B). Bids were solicited after the incident, but the sole bidder was unavailable due to other
project commitments. The repair work needed includes lifting the fender, replacing three broken
timbers, repairing possible damage to the steel frame, and reinstalling the fender. The Alaska Marine
Highway System (AMHS) will reimburse the City for repair to the damage caused by the MN
Kennicott.

The CTF requires the removal of two steel pilings from the southwest end of the Channel Transient
Float. These piles were originally at the end of CTF which is/was located on submerged property owned
by Petro Marine Services (PMS). Twenty-seven feet of CTF was recently removed by the harbor
department; only the pile remain to be extracted to make room for PMS's new floating fuel dock to be
installed late this summer.

Dock 1 in St. Paul Harbor has two broken wood piles. They will be replaced with the salvaged piles
from CTF.

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. f. Memo Page 1 of3

78



One steel pile at the end of finger L25/26 in the St. Herman Harbor broke three feet above the mud line
and must be replaced.

Staff opened two bids on July 31, 2013; one from Western Marine Construction and the other from
Pacific Pile & Marine. Both companies have provided quality work for the City of Kodiak in the past.
Western Marine Construction is currently doing the dredge work in Kodiak harbors for the Army Corp
ofEngineers. The bids for Harbor Projects 2013 were:

Western Marine Construction $75,925.00
Pacific Pile & Marine $230,000.00
Engineer's Estimate $95,000.00

ALTERNATIVES:
1. Award the bid to the lowest bidder, Western Marine Construction which is recommended. This

will provide cost reductions to the project and allow the project to move forward while the
contractor is working on other projects within the harbor.

2. Do not authorize award of the bid, which is not recommended. This would further delay repairs,
delay AMHS reimbursement for damage to Pier II, and impact the installation schedule of Petro
Marine Services' new floating fuel dock. This approach is not recommended.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: These individual repairs are budgeted in various accounts. Funding
for repairs for Pier II will come from the Cargo Fund, Cargo Terminal, Pier II repair and maintenance
line item, account 500.510.302.450.540. Funding for the work to the CTF is coming from the Harbor
and Port Capital Improvement Fund, Channel Transient Float project, Project No. 8521. Repairs to Dock
1 fender piling are funded through the Boat Harbor Fund, Boat Harbor Administration repair and
maintenance line item account, account number 510.520.100.450.510. Funding for the replacement piles
at St. Herman Harbor will come from the Harbor and Port Capital Improvement Fund, SHH Repairs,
Project No. 8520.

LEGAL:N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends City Council award the Harbor Projects 2013,
Project No. 14-02 to Western Marine Construction in the amount of $75,925, with funds coming from a
combination of various Harbor Department accounts as listed above.

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: These repairs have been needed for some time. It was in the
City's best interest to bundle the various projects into one bid. I support staffs recommendation that
Council approve this bid award to Western Marine Construction.

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. f. Memo Page 2 00

79



ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment A: Bid Tabulation Sheet
Attachment B: Incident Report, M/V Kennicott, July 24, 2011

PROPOSED MOTION:
Move to authorize the bid award for Harbor Projects 2013, Project No. 14-02, to Western Marine

Construction in the amount of $75,925, with a combination of funds coming from the Harbor and
Port Capital Improvement Fund, Project No. 8520 and 8521; the Boat Harbor Fund, repair and

maintenance line item; and the Cargo Fund, Cargo Terminal repair and maintenance line item;
and authorize the City Manager to execute the necessary documents on behalf of the City.

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. f. Memo Page 3 of3

80



B
id

T
ab

B
id

D
at

e:
W

ed
ne

sd
ay

,
Ju

ly
31

,2
01

3

H
ar

bo
r

P
ro

je
ct

s
20

13
A

tt
a
c
h

m
e
n

t
A

P
N

14
-0

2

B
id

E
ng

in
ee

rs
E

st
im

at
e

W
es

te
rn

M
ar

in
e

P
ac

if
ic

P
il

e
&

M
ar

in
e,

It
em

D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

Q
ua

nt
it

y
U

ni
ts

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
L

.P
.

P
ie

r
2

F
en

de
r

R
ep

ai
r

1
L

um
p

$3
8,

00
0.

00
$3

8,
00

0.
00

$4
0,

42
5.

00
$4

0,
42

5.
00

$5
2,

00
0.

00
$5

2,
00

0.
00

Su
m

2
C

T
F

D
em

ol
it

io
n

1
L

um
p

$2
1,

00
0.

00
$2

1,
00

0.
00

$9
,5

00
.0

0
$9

,5
00

.0
0

$4
9,

00
0.

00
$4

9,
00

0.
00

Su
m

3
D

oc
k

1
F

en
de

rs
1

L
um

p
$1

6,
00

0.
00

$1
6,

00
0.

00
$1

3,
50

0.
00

$1
3,

50
0.

00
$7

5,
00

0.
00

$7
5,

00
0.

00
Su

m

4
L

25
/2

6
F

in
ge

rP
il

e
1

L
um

p
$2

0,
00

0.
00

$2
0,

00
0.

00
$1

2,
50

0.
00

$1
2,

50
0.

00
$5

4,
00

0.
00

$5
4,

00
0.

00
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

Su
m

G
ra

nd
T

ot
al

$9
5,

00
0.

00
$7

5,
92

5.
00

$2
30

,0
00

.0
0

H
ar

bo
r

P
ro

je
ct

s
20

13
P

N
14

-0
2

P
ag

e
1

o
f1

81

cperkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



CITY OF KODIAK
HARBORMASTER
403 MARINE WAY, KODIAK, AK 99615
TELEPHONE (907) 486--8080
FAX (907) 486-8090

INCIDENT REPORT

CASE NUMBER: 3780

SUBJECT: Pier 2 Damage/ KENNICOTT DATE 7-24-11 TIME:2055

NAME/VESSEL: KENNICOTT SLIP # OIN N6513

OWNER: Alaska Marine Highway System PHONE NO.

STREET ADDRESS Box 25535

CITY: Juneau ISTATE:AK IZIP CODE: 99802-5535

WEATHER: Calm/ Clear

REPORTEDjRCVD BY: Ryan Emmert H 10

SYNOPSIS: On July 241h at 2055 the ferry KENNICOTT damaged fender unit "F" at Pier 2 while making
an approach.

DETAILS: While maneuvering to berth at Pier 2 the KENNICOTT approached at an angle and fast rate
of speed impacting fender unit "F' causing damage. The vessel ChiefMate Gary Palmer reported the
vessels bow thruster malfunctioned. Harbor Officer Ryan Emmert (H10) observed the incident and
notified Deputy Harbormaster White via phone.

Photos of the damage were taken by H10 and an accident report was completed by Gary Palmer. The
fender was inspected by H10. The transition plate was bent and broke loose, sheering its connection bolt
and the transition plate landing was bent. Two 24'x12"x12" treated fender timbers were crushed and
broke, a third was crushed approximately 30%. One sign was damaged. H10 positioned line and orange
cones at the damaged fender for public safety then delivered the damaged transition plate the
Harbormasters repair shop.

7-25-11, Harbor maintenance staff repaired and reinstalled the transition plate. Deputy Harbormaster
White inspected the damage and took additional photos. To replace the broken and crushed timbers (3
each) the fender unit will need to be removed at which time a further inspection of the fender and pin piles
can be conducted to verify if additional damage occurred from the incident. Estimated cost to repair
known damage is $10,000 to $25,000, assuming a land based crane is available to lift the fender out of the
water. Ifnot, a crane barge operation will likely exceed $40,000.

Case is pending further investigation and repairs.

Harbor Officer: Officer #:
DATE: _

APPR~~

Harbormaster / Deputy Harbormaster laN A. wl[' \fe.....

Page I of I 7/2512011

82

cperkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment B



PERSONAL FLOTATION DEVICES FIRE EXTINGUISHERS

WAS THE BOAT ADEQUATELY EQUIPPED WITH WERE FIRE EXTINGUISHERS USED?

COAST GUARD LIFESAVING DEVICES?

~Yes --NO --Yes ~No ~Not Applicable

WERE THE ACCESSIBLE?
LYes --NO WHATTYPE?

WERE THEY USED

Yes ~NO

PROPERTY DAMAGE

PROPERY DAMAGE (Est.) DESCRIBE PROPERTY DAMAGE

This boat S -I> ~

Other Boat $ ·-c ,,-

J/~/1-~t.E )Other Property S' ECf'-'fJe,.'7L On 1)(.'';'1{ SI>... (,.. j'bC.C1)r~(d-t-

NAME AND ADDRESS OF OWNER (Damaged Property)

PtT£r a~ tG,/)tkK

DECEASED

NAME ADDRESS DATE OF BIRTH DEATH CAUSED BY
__Drowning
__Disappearance

__~ther (Specify)

INJURED

NAME ADDRESS DATE OF BIRTH NATURE OF INJURY

VESSEL No.2

NAME ADDRESS BOAT NUMBER

BOAT NAME

NAME AND ADDRESS OF BOAT OWNER

5'"'TJI-fF G'F A-L.<r,J(Cv!-

WITNESSES

NAME ADDRESS PHONE NUMBER

NAME ADDRESS PHONE NUMBER

NAME ADDRESS PHONE NUMBER

ACCIDENT DESCRIPTION

DESCRIBE WHAT HAPPENED (Attach Sketch if Necessary)

/It'fJ,(tJ~tft tvt l)""'-~J<,. /....~lr 8iSl-J n/~ffl:7'( S'f'0>l ~. 0 ~ t/-. r Ah"I>~,J DOlI<,'
I

Ff::7o;',) tn1- cAvt.#t.. IAJ/tv/) ro SPLuvl'b(

PERSON COMPLETING REPORT

NAME AND ADDRESS
flt-~

IPHONE NUMBER
r;....t-.,

~ 'tt .. 'l.'2JJ ... 5'11 J'Hr""'1

QUALIFICATION t!-#-11::F- p-t~ ..... fI't/l"f/CtC. LII" ~"1. c:~

__Operator --Owner __Investigator Other--

IJ, &,; ?jn{Uil 1/""'I/-z..(ulSIGNATURE DATE
7

ReVised 1/7/2009

83



.., ) 'f - VJ I,;! ~ "" v AI" ,'1 II "'...-, /.
~,

CITY OF KODIAK
BOATING ACCIDENT REPORT ORDINANC

SMALL BOAT HARBOR No. 18.28.29

The operator of any vessel involved in an accident within the Kodiak Harbor resulting in the death or Injury of any person or damage to property in excess of

$100 shall immediately give oral notice of the accident to the Harbormaster or, if he is not available to the Kodiak Police Department. In addition the operatc

shall Within 24 hours after the aCCident file a written report with the Harbormaster

OPERATOR'S NAME & ADDRESS ·Mr OWNER'S NAME &ADDRESS
S"r?n(:" t.~ r- /h../l? t,(.vt- 75>9 AI. ~~t~rfllw7 tJ~ c.fr /1-u-s Ie. /f

/(:.t-.v.v, c..,r17
f<..c-~ofy I~ I 4-1<- t<c: /111\1 J a Ii C!fo7~ t1..t. s- 71t ...

OPERATORS EXPERIENCE RENTED BOAT NUMBER OF PERSONS ON BOARD

Under 20 hrs. 100·500 hrs. Yes 13~ p~S Ji:;# "at.. J
-- -- -- ''!?if C/l.t:J.J--20·100 hrs. --.A-Over 500 hrs ~ No

VESSEL No.1

OFFICIAL NUMBER OF BOAT AK OR OTHER NUMBER MAKE & MODEl OF BOAT

/ t: ~ 3 4 L/-'f 1 M () q { 'f 5"'J-d S- FI:?ttLy

TYPE OF BOAT HUll MATERIAL

(omm. Fish __Open Motorboat --Comm. Tow __Wood __Aluminum--
(omm. Freight Cabin Motorboat --Comm. Charter LSteel __Fiberglass--

LatherSale __Other (Specify

ENGINE DATA BOAT DATA

Outboard --Inboard Gasoline ~No. of Engines '57~ Horsepower--
..Llnboard Diesel --Inboard - Outd rive ()U::.l ttrype of Fuel tift' Year Boat Was Built

~~~Length O.A. ,.~ Width Beam ~'__Other (Specify I.::?--.Depth

ACCIDENT DATA

DATE OF ACCIDENT TIME NAME OF BODY OF WATER LOCATION OF NEAREST LANDMARK

7/1-f-1z.n1
__A.M.

P01U I<!m,,,./<.. PISIh:7(.I'--#M. J' fJ"b~
j C~'P.M. ~r

-
LOCATION (Give precise location)

,-

WEATHER WATER CONDITIONS VISIBILITY

v"Clear __Fog --Snow __Strong Current __Very Rough
.,/" GoodV ca1m __Rough __Choppy --Fair --Poor

__Cloudy --Rain __Hazy

WIND WEATHER ENCOUNTERED

V' None __Light 0·6 mph) __Moderate (7·14 mph) --As Forecast --Not as Forecast

__Strong (15-25 mph) __Storm (over 2S mph) ~__No Forecast Obtained

ACCIDENT DATA

OPERTION AT TIME OF ACCIDENT TYPE OF ACCIDENT

__Cruising __At Anchor __Grounding __Hit by Boat or Propeller

__Fueling __Skin Diving __Flooding __Collision with fixed object

__Fishing __Hunting __Fire or Explosion __Collision with floating object

__TOWing __Drifting --Fails in Boat __Collision with vessel

--Tied to Dock 7APproaching Dock __CapsiZing __Falls Overboard

__Being Towed __Other (Specify) __Sinking __Other(S 4-1-t-/~(en., ......". / rN
ON-I( ~ c:" f) OJ FtN1)t7(

WHAT IN YOUR OPINION CAUSED THE ACCIDENT

Weather Conditions --Hazardous Waters __ExceSSive Speed )( Fault of Equipment i...dj~ 6F 8t!w hi-t..IJttbt..-- -- .
Restricted Vision __No Proper lookout --Fault of Hull __Other (Specify)--

__Improper loading __Fault of Machinery __Overloading

ReVised 1/7/2009

84



P
ie

r
2,

K
en

n
ic

o
tt

D
am

ag
e

7-
24

-1
1

;)
je

r2
,

K
en

ni
co

tt
D

a
m

a
g

e
7-

24
-1

1
7/

25
12

01
13

:3
1:

15
P

M

85



P
ie

r
2,

K
en

ni
co

tt
D

am
ag

e
7-

24
-1

1

'I
e

r
2,

K
en

ni
co

tt
D

a
m

a
g

e
7-

24
-1

1
71

25
12

01
13

:3
1:

22
P

M

86



P
ie

r
2,

K
en

ni
co

tt
D

am
ag

e
7-

24
-1

1

:li
er

2,
K

en
ni

co
tt

D
am

ag
e

7-
24

-1
1

71
25

12
01

13
:3

1:
31

P
M

87



P
ie

r
2,

K
en

ni
co

tt
D

am
ag

e
7-

24
-1

1

"
"

•
.-

1
~.

,
\
.
~

)

'.
,

'.
."

"
-"

t
~
~
·
·
~
~

,
•

l'
~

,"
'.

".
.~

',
'

l
.•
~·

,:
.

..
-i

•
•
•
•
~~

t
p;

:"
....
~
,
,
,

~
,,
;~

.
•f
'
'
'
'

'
,
.
,
.

.
f<

l'
"';'

.~:'
..

..
.
"~~

'"
.\

I
\
:
:

'i
e

r
2,

K
en

ni
co

tt
D

a
m

a
g

e
7-

24
-1

1
7/

25
/2

01
1

3:
31

:4
1

P
M

88



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

89



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL

To: Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers

From: Aimee Kniaziowski, CityManag~
Thru: Glenn Melvin, City Engineer

Date: August 8, 2013

Agenda Item: V. g. Authorization of Bid Award for Demolition of Old Kodiak Police Station
and 1118 Mission Road Buildings, Project No. 4035/13-06

SUMMARY: This memo recommends the authorization of award of a single contract to demolish the
old Kodiak police station building and the abandoned house at 1118 Mission Road. Project bids were
received on July 29, 2013, and publically read at the City Manager's office. The City received five bids.
The bids have been reviewed, and Golden Alaska LLC is considered to be the lowest responsible bidder
per Kodiak City Code Section 3.12.080. Staff recommends Council authorize the bid award to Golden
Alaska LLC for the demolition of both structures for a total lump sum amount of$349,551.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:

• In early 2004 Council selected USKH to prepare a feasibility study for the replacement of aging
City facilities, including the old Kodiak police station building.

• In September 2005 a Hazardous Material Report for Municipal Buildings was prepared by
USKH for the City and included the fire station, the old police station and jail, and the library.

• On December 13,2012, Council authorized a professional AlE services contract for old Kodiak
Police Station Building Demolition Project No. 13-06.

DISCUSSION: Former Building Official, Leonard Kimball, sent a letter to the property owner on
August 21,2001, identifying the Mission Road house as a dangerous building. Notifications were sent to
the property owner on several occasions over the years, but no response was received. The house
continued to deteriorate, becoming a more serious hazard and neighbors continued to complain about the
condition of the property. After consultation with the City Attorney, the Public Works Building Division
filed court paperwork on January 10, 2012, (Attachment B) designating the property as a dangerous
building.

The City appropriated funds to assess the level of hazardous materials in the building, and Council
approved a contract with TC Enterprises on April 18, 2012, for $6,475. In 2012 funding for the house
demolition was combined with the capital project to demolish the old Kodiak police station and jail.
This was done to improve the potential number of bidders. The key concern as the demolition moves
forward is to ensure procedures are followed so the City can file the lien on the Mission Road property
to cover all City costs associated with the assessment and demolition. The City's long-term plan has

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. g. Memo Page 1 of3

90



been to demolish the old police station building to reduce liability and costs and to make more space
available for construction of a new fire station in that immediate area. The demolition of that building
required special engineering analysis, because it shares a wall and other utilities with the fire station.

The demolition project was bid in June, and five bids were submitted on July 29,2013 (Attachment A).
The engineer's estimate for the project was $530,000 and fell within the range of bids. The bid average
for the five bids was $462,689. All bids were reviewed and found to be responsive; therefore, staff
recommends the project be awarded to the lowest bidder, Golden Alaska LLC.

ALTERNATIVES:
1. Authorize the bid award to Golden Alaska Excavating LLC. Staff believes this alternative will

allow the demolition to be performed before the onset of winter weather and will meet the
project goal.

2. Do not authorize award of the contract. This alternative is not recommended because it would
allow known dangers to persist, create additional costs for the City, and impact completion of the
project.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The Council approved funding for this project in the FY2014 budget
is $615,500. The current balance, $580,299, is sufficient for this award and leaves sufficient contingency
funding for City administration costs and possible change orders.

LEGAL: The legal implications regarding this project are specific to the demolition of the house on
Mission Road. The process used is consistent with City Code and Section 402 of the 1997 Uniform
Code of Abatement of Dangerous Buildings, which the City used to file the required court documents.
The City will place a lien on the property once the demolition is complete and all costs are known. The
value of the lien will include all expenses associated with the house demolition.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff, recommends Council authorize a contract with Golden Alaska
Excavating LLC in the amount of$349,551, with funds coming from the General Capital Projects Fund,
Demolition of Old Kodiak Police Station and 1118 Mission Road, Project No. 4035/13-06.

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: The demolition of these two buildings is important and beneficial
to the City despite the costs associated with each. The old police station and jail has been vacant since
KPD services transitioned to the new facility. We've incurred expenses with boiler problems and frozen
pipes despite winterizing the building, and we've paid for insurance and utilities. It will be good to have
this building tom down and done so in a way that does not compromise the shared wall and utilities with
the fire station. The Mission Road house is not owned by the City, but we are ultimately responsible to
remove it as an identified dangerous building. It is in very bad shape and has become a nuisance and a
danger. As mentioned above, we will file a lien on the property for all costs associated with the work

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. g. Memo Page 2 of3

91



and legal actions the City has incurred. Therefore, I recommend Council authorize a contract with
Golden Alaska LLC to remove both buildings as outlined.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment A:

Attachment B:

City of Kodiak Bid Tabulation, Demolition of Old KPD Building and 1118
Mission Road House
Recording of 1118 Mission Road as a Designation of a Dangerous Building

PROPOSED MOTION:
Move to award the bid for Demolition of Old Kodiak Police Station and 1118 Mission Road to
Golden Alaska Excavating LLC in the amount of $349,551, with funds coming from the General
Capital Projects Fund, Demolition of Old Kodiak Police Station and 1118 Mission Road, Project
No. 4035/13-06 and authorize the City Manager to execute the documents on behalf of the City.

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. g. Memo Page 300

92



Project Name:

CITY OF KODIAK
BID TABULATION

Demolition of Kodiak Police Dept. and 1118 Mission Rd. Buildings
PN 13-06

Date:
Time:
Date of Invitation:
Opened By:

July 29,2013
2:00p.m.
June 28, 2013
Aimee Kniaziowski

Addendum No. Date Issued
Addendum No. 1 July 11, 2013
Addendum No.2 July 16,2013
Addendum No.3 July 22, 2013

BIDDER

ENGINEERS ESTIMATE

GOLDEN ALASKA EXCAVATING LLC
X Addendums Acknowledged
X Bid Bond & Business License
X Contractors Certificate

CENTRAL ENVIRONMENTAL INC.
X Addendums Acknowledged
X Bid Bond & Business License
X Contractors Certificate

RED HOOK CONSTRUCTION LLC
X Addendums Acknowledged
X Bid Bond & Business License
X Contractors Certificate

BRECHAN ENTERPRISES
X Addendums Acknowledged
X Bid Bond & Business License
X Contractors Certificate

ANDERSON CONSTRUCTION LLC

TOTAL LUMP SUM BID LUMP SUM

$ 530,000.00
1. Demolition ofOld KPD Bldg 1. $ 450,000.00
2. 1118 Mission Rd. Building: 2. $ 80,000.00

$ 349,551.00
1. Demolition ofOld KPD Bldg 1. $ 331,551.00
2. 1118 Mission Rd. Building: 2. $ 18,000.00

$ 371,895.00
1. Demolition ofOld KPD Bldg 1. $ 286,650.00
2. 1118 Mission Rd. Building: 2. $ 85,245.00

$ 459,000.00
1. Demolition ofOld KPD Bldg 1. $ 375,000.00
2. 1118 Mission Rd. Building: 2. $ 84,000.00

$ 534,000.00
1. Demolition ofOld KPD Bldg 1. $ 468,000.00
2. 1118 Mission Rd. Building: 2. $ 66,000.00

$ 599,000.00
X Addendums Acknowledged
X Bid Bond & Business License
X Contractors Certificate

1. Demolition ofOld KPD Bldg
2. 1118 Mission Rd. Building:

1. $ 551,000.00
2. $ 48,000.00

93

cperkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



A
L
A
S
K
A

2012-000377_0
Recording Dist: 303 - Kodiak
2/10/2012 10:55 AM Pages: 1 of 1

11111I111'111111111'"111111~1111111111111111111I~11/11111111'I"'11111f1m11I1

DESIGNATION OF DANGEROUS BUILDINGS
Kodiak Recording District 303

Pursuant to Section 402 of the 1997 Uniform Code for the Abatement of Dangerous Buildings,
which has been incorporated into the Kodiak City Code by KCC 14.04.010,G, I Douglas Mathers, in my
capacity as Building Official of the City of Kodiak herby certify that the building described below is a
dangerous building and the owner thereof has been so notified.

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY:

Parcel #1: Lot 2, Paul's Subdivision, United States Survey 1681, according to
plate 40-1 located in the Kodiak Recording District, Third judicial District, State of
Alaska

Parcel # 2: Lot 2 Block 35A East Addition to The Townsite Of Kodiak, United
States Survey Number 2538B, according to plat 86-6, located in the Kodiak
Recording District, Third JUdicial District, State of Alaska.

DESCRIPTION OF BUILDING:

One abandoned single family dwelling

OWNER OF RECORD:

Dolores Kairiuak aka Dolores Kairaiuak

Dated January 10. 2012 0 fk.t, £?~
DoUgl~athers,
BUilding Official,
City of Kodiak

After Recording, please return to:
Douglas Mathers
City of Kodiak
PO Box 1397
KodiakAK
99615 NENITA S. NICOLAS

Notary PUblic
State of Alaska

My Commission Expires
April 24.2013

~~l~
Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska
My commission Expires t/ -~ -/3

94

cperkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment B



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

95



To:

From:

Thru:

Date:

Agenda Item:

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL

Mayor Branson and City Councilmtj~ers _

Aimee Kniaziowski, CityManage~

Mark Kozak, Public Works Director

August 8, 2013

V.h. Authorization of the Re-plat of Lot lA, Block 30 and Lot 9, Block 31, East
Addition Subdivision, Including the Vacation of Portions of the Stellar
Way Right-of-Way According to KIBC 16.60, Creating Lot IB, Block 30
and Lot 9B, Block 31, East Addition Subdivision

SUMMARY: The Steller Way Improvement Project, Project No. 03-15, begin in the summer of 2004.
As part of the improvement the City negotiated with the owner of 816 Rezanof Drive to purchase
approximately 727 square feet of property in exchange for a portion of the vacated Right-of-Way
(ROW). The property purchase agreement was signed and the property assessment was adjusted. The
City was responsible for replatting of the property and vacated ROW. The preliminary work was
completed; however, the replat work was not. The property owner called this spring and requested that
the City complete the work so he could utilize the property for further development.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:
• Council approved the Steller Way Improvement Project Assessment District in April 2004.
• Council approved the construction contract with Brechan in May 2004.

DISCUSSION: As part of the Steller Way Improvement project, the City requested to purchase a
section of property from the owner of 816 Rezanof Drive. The existing cul-de-sac at the end of Steller
could not be developed due to the slope of the terrain without extensive retaining walls and completely
blocking off of access to the back of 816 Rezanof. By purchasing a section of property from 816
Rezanof, the City was able to build a turnaround and provide access to the back of 816 Rezanof. The
existing driveway is pretty much in the same location as it was prior to the project.

Part of the purchase agreement was that the City would vacate a portion of the ROWand convey it to
newly created Lot lA and Lot 9B. The preliminary work was completed, and the first steps of the
Planning and Zoning process were completed. Staff does not know why the replat was not finalized or
the necessary signatures gathered.

Mr. Frank Abena, the owner of Lot 1 A, 816 Rezanof, called the Public Works Department this spring
and requested the City complete the work per the property agreement. Mr. Abena provided some of the

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. h. Memo Page 1 of2

96



information to staff who contacted St Denny Survey and requested that he refresh the work on the
original replat and submit to the Borough to go to the Planning and Zoning Commission for approval.

The replat was heard on the July 17 Planning and Zoning meeting, and the Commission approved the
replat based on the previous recommendations from January 2004 and the fact that the work was
completed in 2004 and 2005.

ALTERNATIVES: There is only one alternative for Council to consider, which is to authorize the City
Manager and Mayor to sign the replat, creating Lot 1B, Block 30 East Addition, US Survey 2538 B and
Lot 9B, Block 31 East Addition, US Survey 2538. That is staff's recommendation to complete the
Planning & Zoning process, the City's obligation on this issue, and the property owner's request.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Because this was a street improvement project, funds from the Street
Capital Improvement Fund, Project No. 5029/13-03 were used to pay for the $5,250 cost of replatting
and Borough fees.

LEGAL:N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council approve the replatting of the above
mentioned lots and the vacation of a portion of the Steller Way ROWand authorize the City Manager
and Mayor to sign the replat documents so they can be recorded.

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: I support staffs request to close out this replat and recommend
Council authorize the actions.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment A: Kodiak Island Borough Planning and Zoning Packet and Approval
Attachment B: City ofKodiak Agreement to Purchase Right-of Way

PROPOSED MOTION:
Move to approve the replat of Lot lA, Block 30 and Lot 9, Block 31, East Addition Subdivision,
including the vacation of portions of Stellar Way Right-of-Way According to KIBC 16.60,
creating Lot 1B, Block 30 and Lot 9B, Block 31, East Addition Subdivision and authorize the
Mayor and City Manager to sign the replat documents prior to recording.

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item V. h. Memo Page 2 of2

97



IAttachment A

KODIAK ISLAND BOROUGH
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

MINUTES

July 17, 2013 Regular Meeting 6:30 p.m. in the Assembly Chambers

CALL TO ORDER

CHAIR TORRES called to order the July 17,2013 regular meeting ofthe Planning and Zoning
Commission at 6:34 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

CHAIR TORRES led the pledge of allegiance

ROLLCALL

Commissioners present were Alan Torres, Alan Schmitt, Rick Vahl, Kathy Drabek, Frank
Peterson, and Jennifer Richcreek.

A quorum was established.

C) Case S13-028. Request Preliminary approval, according to KIBC 16.40, of the replat
of Lot lA, Block 30 and Lot 9, Block 31, East Addition Subdivision, including the
vacation of portions of the Stellar Way right-of-way according to KIBC 16.60, creating
Lot lB, Block 30 and Lot 9B, Block 31, East Addition Subdivision. The applicant is the
City of Kodiak and the agent is Mark Kozak. The location is 816 Rezanof Drive & 816
Stellar Way Right-of-Ways and the zoning is R3-Multi-family Residential & R2-Two
family Residential

Lydick reported this subdivision application is for the purpose of tying up loose
administrative ends left dangling for a number of years. It is a request for a vacation and re
plat is a reprise of Case S04-023. The Stellar Way improvement and re-alignment project
precipitated the request. The project was completed in the 2004, early 2005 time period. The
Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on this request January 19, 2004 and
was granted approval unanimously by the Commission. The vacation and re-plat had acquired
all the necessary approvals to proceed to the final Plat process, but for unknown reasons, the
City of Kodiak did not complete the paperwork. Forty-five public hearing notices were mailed
on June 11, 2013. No negative comments were returned. Staff recommended approval.

COMMISSIONER SCHMITT Moved to grant preliminary approval, approval, according to KIBC
16.40, of the replat of Lot 1A, Block 30 and Lot 9, Block 31, East Addition Subdivision,
including the vacation of portions of the Stellar Way right-of-way according to KIBC 16.60,
creating Lot 1B, Block 30 and Lot 9B, Block 31, East Addition Subdivision, and to adopt the
findings in that staff dated July 5, 2013 as "Findings of Fact" for Case No. S13-028.

The public hearing was opened: There was no public testimony. The regular meeting was
opened.

There were no questions or discussion

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. This plat meets the minimum standards of survey accuracy and proper preparation of
plats required in Title 16 of the Borough Code.

2. This plat meets all the requirements of Title 17 of the Borough Code.

7/17/2013 P&Z Minutes Page lof2

98



3. This plat provides a subdivision of land that is consistent with adopted Borough plans for
this area.

ROLL CALL VOTE ON MOTION CARRIED 6-0.

7/17/2013 P&Z Minutes Page 2 of2

99



-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

._
._

--
--

--
-
-
-
-

A
tt

a
ch

m
e

n
tA

.... --
-

_lU
ll_C

Ia

_...
.

-
---

---

_.--
'_

c
.-

..
,

'
_

..
..

.-
.
.
.
.
.
_

_
..

TI
lI:

.
.

=
=
2
:
.
&
:
=
=
~

_....
_-

_
Il

_
'-

_
IW

"
I!I

1J

I_
C

II
lt

l1
ll
lJ

a
II

ID
Il

I0
1

IE
_

1
If

1
l(

lIl
.

_
_

_
.
_

.
ll
I
I
ll
lD

lI
r
_

lI
f
ll
E

_

A
lE

"
If

il
l.

TA
X

CE
RT

IFI
CA

TE

S
II

II
C

II
II

lA
lO

_
Il

_
ll
[l

lt
S

llI
l'l

If
lIl1

1

crr
_

ar
t

III
III

lD

CII
Y_

crr
_

_.
_-

'-
--

--
--

--
_

C
ll
IL

..
..

.J
ll1

I
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
lll

II
_

PL
AT

AP
PR

OV
AL

_
_

..-
Ifl

l_
_

-
....

I
.
.
-

o
m

'-
,

1
I
I
l
5
I
l
l
8
l
F
l
1
l
l
l
_
M
S
I
l
l
l
'
_
.
~
I
I
1
l
I
.
_
1
l
U
I
I
l

_
_

_
_

_
DI

l'I,,
lt1

3

~
~

~
~
~

~:
_~
~.
~.
::
~~

h:
··..L

·.
..

··.:
..l

I(
~.
.,
":
:.
~.
;:
i:
l

~
60

'

10
'

'M
O

E
ST

RI
P

O
f

LA
ND

IlE
C

O
Ill

li
PO

RT
IO

N
or

~
W

AY
IlI

G
IIT

O
f

W
AY

I
~
R
I
C
H
T
O
r
~

4
)'

So

21
)'--
-

LO
T

08

_
g

lA
Y

B
LO

C
K

31
I I I I I -J

C'

ID
R

IV
E

z-
~
1
"
O
-
,
1
!
!
~

g
~
~

~
~
'
;
~
"
"
'
3
1
1
~
~

=
-P

""
"'-

R
IG

H
T

or
~

O
R

IG
IN

Al
.

LO
T

LI
N

E
I

VA
CA

TE
O

""
IS

SU
R

V
[Y

C
"
:
C
E
N
T
E
R
U
~

LO
T

2A

R
E

Z
A

N
O

F

1 -
,..

B
LO

C
K

3
0

...~I'"0}
p

i

S
&

~"
"' -
'"

"
~

-
-
-
~

C
£/

jT
f:I

iU
N

(

-
----

---
-

-
..

./

Jr -- ----~
•

2"
A

l.U
Ill

N
U

Io
I

C
A

P
TO

lIE
SE

T

(h
l)

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
D

D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N

(R
l)

R
E

C
O

R
D

D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
P

LA
T

7
7

-1
3

(R
2

)
R

E
C

O
R

D
D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

P
LA

T
6

7
-0

6

-:::
J\

'3
-0

.2
CO

';>
0

...
..L

:::
RI

G
H

T
or

W
AY
~

II
V

IC
IN

IT
Y

M
A

P
I

T
-

IRE
FE

RE
NC

ES
:

I,
1.

Pl
.U

[I
IQ

IU
D

'P
U

.T
C

lf
D

Sf
A

lX
lT

tlI
l"

"O
O

IS
I'I

lA
JS

IJ
.U

SU
lD

II
O

.2
5J

I1
_

_
_

A
P

O
lll

D
llI

f
u.s

.S
U

lM
:II

l.
2

5
J
U

a
B

ll
ll
O

.
.D

Ili
R

Il
'te

1
_

V
A

C
A

T
fO

N
O

F
I

I
L

IU
lI

lll
lU

ll
_

_
..

..
_

_
lU

!I
lA

PA
RT

or
ST

EL
lA

R
W

AY
'A

LL
E

Y
-

RI
G

H
T

O
f

W
AY

,
Il

ID
_

J
l1

ll
l.

1
Il

l)
•
•

a
a

a
A

S
P

II
lI

l.
.

~
_

B
LO

C
K

S
3

0
.

EA
ST

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

.U
.S

.
SU

RO
JE

Y
2

5
3

8
B

I
H

"
'I

..
11

IU
Il

'll
l!

'l>
m

fl
l£

S
U

lM
l'l

JU
1'

U
1l

l'/
lI

L
ll

Jl
l-

Io
~

lI
D

""
".

-O
'l
D

I'
O

'l
lf

:l
lU

A
II

_
V

A
C

A
T

IO
N

O
F'

LO
T

IA
o.

nd
LO

T
9:

_
u

s
SU

IM
Y

lS
lI

H
..s

rl
lll

lll
1

N
1

l.
..

.
1

W
II

lI
IL

tl
Il

£
I)

_
2l

l
10

10
..

.~
,
,
3
i

..
.ii,

..
..

.;,
,-.

...
i-
""
""
"'
lI
I-
."
'~
"'
""
'"
'

..Ii
<S

'.>1
.Y"

'."'.
...

I
B

LO
C

K
S

3
0

A
N

D
3

1
,

E
A

S
T

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

.U
.S

_
S

U
R

V
E

Y
2

5
3

6
B

~
1U

l!l
lll

lll
D

'l>
O

'lIW
<f

"
"
,"

"
"
"
U

._
II

L
lS

ll
l.

..
""

,,
,

S
Ill

l>
\lS

O
IlI

fl.
O

l'
O

f1
1(

II
U

II
lII

'II
Q

IN
_

_
"I

lI
~"

"'
''

''
''

''
'C

lJ
I<

R"
".

'u
....

lt
It

to
I"

u
,.

..
."

..
2

Il
H

C
R

E
A

T
IN

G

I_U
.s
.~
i5
l6
-H
AS
I.
ux
Gl
OI
lI
O_
~3
Il
Il
l1
ml
lO

lO
.!

Il
I

=
'
'
:
"
J
'
,
~
J
'
:
.
~
=
~
~
t
'
"
~
'
'
'
'
'
l
l
I
'
'
'
_

_
'''

'_
IIl

'''
''

LO
T

1
8

B
LO

C
K

.3
0

l.
JI

A
lI

lll
U

ll
_

1
If

.l
Il

IS
Il

ID
l!l

llC
llO

tI
S

I.
tQ

lII
Ill

I\
11

1
lI

M
!

III
-
.8

.
LO

T
9

B
B

LO
C

K
31

1
I
J
I
A
T
1
l
t
.
\
l
\
l
l
I
o
\
_
~
I
I
1
_
"
a
l
H
.
I
I
l
l
I
l
l
_
l
l
.
l
l
n

11

1I
lF

\B
l
H

_
1l

5l
III

C
IA

'i1
lll

7l
-1

l
P

R
E

L
1

M
1N

A
R

Y
SU

R
V

E
Y

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

FO
R:

Do
t.T

E:
0

6
-0

1
-2

0
1

3
l.

m
.D

.

NO
TE

:
;
~

::
;L
LK
O:
~~

RO
AD

ST
.

O
EN

NY
SU

R
VE

YI
N

G
.

IN
C

.
,

SU
llJ

EC
T

TO
A

U
.
~
.

SE
R

v.
Tl

lll
E'

s.
£A

SO
ltH

IS
.

Ct
NE

HI
oH

IS
.

'l£
S(

R
Y.

..
..

.
A<

S'
R

IC
I1

Ilt
IS

"'
0

Rl
CH

TS
O

f
w

.y
or

1lI
:C

OR
Il.

K
O

D
IA

K
.

A
L

A
SK

A
9

9
6

1
5

K
O

D
IA

K
.

A
lA

S
K

A
9

9
6

1
5

100



IAttachment A Public Hearmg Item / C

P&Z July 13, 2013

•

•

N

• '
. .

W E. .
S

Subdivision
location

Public Hearing Notice Vicinity Map

I
0~~=::i11.5_1::::=2i30 4.6=0======69.0 920 I_ Feet

I------...J L. ~

Kodiak Island Borough GIS

http:/twww.kodiakak.uslgis (907) 486·9337

Community Development Department
This map is provided for informational purposes

only and is not intended for any legal representations.

"''''''': Access Roads

h::d Unconstructed Right of ways

Case No. 513-028 Introduction Page 1 of 3
101



PubliC Hearmg Item I L
P&Z July 13, 2013

Kodiak Island Borough Zoning Map

Legend

o Lot 1A, R3 Zoningo Lot 98, R2 Zoning ?---SO

6-
?i

1--
;z,

&; rJ.-..(:fJ
~

'"
Zoning Legend

o Public Use Lands 0 Rural Residential 1 0 Multi Family Residential Light Industrial

l22L) Watershed Rural Residential 2 Business 0 Rural Neighborhood Commercial

o Conservation 0 Single Family Residential 0 Retail Business _ Urban Neighborhood Commercial

o Rural Residential 0 Two Family Residential 0 Industrial 0 Natural Use

Kodiak Island Borough GIS
hltp:/Iwww.kodiakak.uslgis (907) 486-9337

Community Development Department
This map Is provided for informational plJ"poses

only and is not intended for any legal representations.

Case No. 513-028 Introduction Page 2 of 3

"'''''''''' Access Roads

HE] UnconslnJcted Right of Ways

102



PubliC Hearing Item I L
P&Z July 13, 2013

II

•

te~""",.,.,..m=ay""s---4

==== Access Roads

bnd Unconstructed RighI of Ways

• • •

o

Community Development Department
This map is provided for informational ptrposes

only and is not intended for any legal represenlaUons.

_P_u_b_1i_C_H_e_a_ri_n_9_N_o_t_i_C_e_V_i_C_in_i_tY_M_a_p_1 W~E
o 45 90 180 270 360 W_-=::::::J_-===- -=======:::JI -.lliiletR S

Kodiak Island Borough GIS

hltp:/lwww.kodiakak.uslgis (907) 486-9337

Case No. 513-028 Introduction Page 3 of 3
103



Publlc Hearmg Item I C

P&Z July 17, 2013

Kodiak Island Borough Community Development Department I
710 Mill Bay Rd. Rm 205, Kodiak, AK 99615
Ph. (907) 486 - 9362 Fax (907) 486 - 9396

http://www.kodiakak.us

Submit by Email I

Print Form I

Subdivision Application
Kodiak Island Borough Code Title 16

Applicant Information:

Property Owner / Applicant:

Mailing Address:

Phone Number:

Other Contact email, etc.:

Agent & lor Surveyor:

Mailing Address:

Phone Number:

Other Contact email, etc.:

CITY OF KODIAK

710 MILL BAY ROAD

486-8065

MARK KOZAK

ST. DENNY SURVEYING INC.

326 CENTER ST - SUITE 102

907-481-3500

stdenny@gci.net

l Lot 'Occ.l
Pcop Xn \ ~qOI

~rty Information:

Current Legal Description{s):

_ 'BlG:> P-a?Cll'"lbP

{.;: ---- 'Q1(B-oi-e1la (
STELLAR WAY RIGHT OF WAY - LOT 1A BLOCK 30 LOT 9 BLOCK 31 EAST ADDITION

U.S. SURVEY 2538 B

Proposed Legal Description{s): LOT 1BBLOCK 30 EAST ADDITION U.S. SURVEY 2538 B

LOT 9B BLOCK 30 EAST ADDITION U.S. SURVEY 2538 B

Waiver Plat per KlBC 16.10.050:

Abbreviated Plat per KIBC 16.30:

Preliminary Plat per KIBC 16.40 (maximum 72 Jots):

Preliminary Plat per KIBC 16.40 (more than 1210fS):

Vacation Plat per KIBC 16.60:

rYes

l)Z No

$ 75.00

CDDStaff:

Si9"~~'~~~
Fee Payable in Cashier's Office Room # 104- Main floor of Borough BUildin~!3;)/r

PAID
$300.00 ~
$350.00 MAY 03 2013 7

$ to be determined~~lS~e,QW sproposed\S'!y RNANCE DEPARTMENT

Areyou requesting a waiver ofanysubdivision requirement according to KJ8C 16.110.01O?

Payment Verification

Date: Jun 3. 2013

Date:

Case No. 513-028 Application Page 1 of 2

104



.....
. r.

"
O

\:
$2

O
C

N
O

'
.....

=
C

n
<"

:::
I:

..
..

(l
)

~-..
...J
~

N
3

o
O

'Q
....

-
1J

J(
i;' 3

om _..-
..--

---
--

.....
.....

.....
...

l
_
~
.
,
l
.
,
.
.
.
.
_

_
.._

.....
....-

..
...

=
r
-
.
:
!
!
.
,
:
=
.
i
~

_
_

_
•

..
-o

r,

_
1

1
_

..
..

..
_Il

ill.
1
I
1
~

1
1

IJ
IB

I1
D

II
Y

1
Il

J
I_

1
II

1
ll
_

lf
ll
(

1l
L

_
_

/
I
I
l
M
_
W
l
l
o
l
l
C
l
l
l
l
l
~
U
I
a
I
l
f
l
£

_

1I
E

1I
Il

I
fi

ll
,

TA
X

CE
RT

IFI
CA

TE

_
M

O
_

lO
_

I
I
E

I
I
l
_

_
\l

ll
lf

10
11

S
Il

\l
lI

II
lI

II
_

1
O

_
1

IE
1

lI
!-

-f
jl

J1
S

.11

ar
r.

...uart
_

ll
lT

-
"

--
-I

I I
tIY

_
~
~

,I

--
--


I

V
A

C
A

Tl
O

N
o

r,
PA

RT
or

S
TE

U
A

R
W

AY
·A

LL
E.

Y"
R

IG
H

T
0

.
W

AY
Sl

O
C

KS
.3

0.
EA

ST
AD

D
m

O
N

,U
.s

.
SU

RV
EY

25
36

a
V

A
C

A
TI

O
N

or
LO

T
lA

<A
nd

LO
T

9:
B

LO
C

K
S

30
A

N
D

3
'.

E
A

S
T

A
D

D
IT

iO
N

,U
.S

.
S

U
R

V
E

Y
2

5
3

8
B

C
R

E
A

TI
IIl

G
'

LO
T

1B
B

LO
C

K
3

0
E

A
S

T
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
,

U
.S

.
S

U
R

V
E

Y
2

5
3

8
B

l.O
T

9
B

B
LO

C
K

31
E

A
S

T
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
,

U
.S

.
S

U
R

V
E

Y
2

5
3

8
8

PL
AT

AP
PR

OV
AL

_
_

_
1l

lII
l

m
x.

G
f.

..
,.

-l
A

ll"
_
Q
D
O
l
~
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

J
ll
ll
G

a
M

m
II

f

-
""'-

I
-

1
>

1
1

_
-
-
-
-
-
-
1

-
II

1
II

_
--

--
-

1
l
I
!
1
"
c
:
u
n
n
"
'
_
P
u
I
I
1
l
l
l
i
_
.
~
"
._

_
_

C
I
ll
I
_

_
D

lfD
t

1l
1>

M
lt

:
0
6
-
0
1
-
~
I
J

ST
_

PE
N

N
Y

S
U
R
V
E
'
!
'
l
~
G
.

IN
C

.
KO

PC
AK

.
A

lA
S

K
A

91
1&

15

60
'

1
0

'
W

lO
E

ST
R

IP
or

lM
O

9
E
C
~
E
S

PO
R

T
IO

'"
or

ST
U1

.A
A

W
AY

RI
G

hT
O

F
'ilA

Y

i--
---

-L
Ill

G
H

T
or

W
AY

4
)'

S
o

2
0

' -----
-
.

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-1 -LO
T

08

_-
i

W
AY

B
LO

C
K

31
I I I I I

--
1

S
U

R
V

E
Y

P
R

B
P

A
Jl

E
D

I'
O

J!
,

C
/7

T
O

F
I!

D
D

IA
K

1
/0

M
IL

L
B

A
Y

R
O

A
D

ItO
D

JA
K.

A
L

A
SK

A
91

11
;'5

c· ---.
.

v
-
v
.

,
.

_
~

-
j

<
1

..
7

6
3

7
'

10
10

'
W

U
ST

RI
P

or
LA

ND
j:;£

$
,,,

.,,
'....

.....
....

Ju
aiC

Ol
ol£

S
PO

RT
1O

Il
or

LO
T

la
l

NO
TA

RY
AC

KN
OW

LE
DG

llE
NT

I
TI

llS
1U

R
'tO

"'-
~Il

l!
i'
:;
J~

__
~

LO
T

10

•.
::

::
.:.

CE
If

f!
Rl

l~

----

R
E

Z
A

N
O

F
D

R
IV

E

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y

-
-
-
-
-
-
l

""'
-a-

_..
."".

.."-
""'

,,""
',"

""
''I

;"T
o-"

W
I"

""
i
J
W
o
,
,
,
-
,
,
~
_
,

I
~
(
f
l
.
D
i
6
.
M
S
:
I
I
I
I
M
l
.
t
S
C
C
I
l
l
C

le
o:

lL
S*

lT
IR

rR
l3

C
l'l

{U
S

S
lf

M
Y

'I
)
~

=
:
r
.
~
I
J
)
I
.
v
I
,
r
~
~
:
;
,
:
t
.
r
'
~
~
t
«
I
~
_
~
D
M
T
C
1
u
s
.
U
I
l
Y
.PA

LO
T

2A

-"
.-

-
-
-
-
-
-

1 "'0

B
LO

C
K

3
0

•z "'
I'"

G
)

S-

~
~ -
"..:: _
_

_
"
r
-
-

C
C

N
1l

:Il
lJ

N
£

-
----

--
----

-
.
/

-- ----~
•

~
"
.
-
w
..

_
eN

'
TO

B
E

SE
T

(M
)

M
EA

SU
R

ED
D

IM
EN

Si
O

N

(R
l)

kE
C

O
R

D
D

IM
EN

S'
O

N
PL

AT
7

7
-1

3
(R

2)
R

EC
O

R
D

D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

PL
AT

67
-0

6

NO
TE

: S
U

B
..I

O
:T

1
0

A
U

.
e:

:a
tD

ft
1Q

N
S

.
S

IJ
M

N
O

('
S

.
f.A

S£
M

CN
J5

.
cC

M
of

rW
lfS

.
R

f:S
[R

V
A

fIO
N

,
~
J
R
J
C
T
K
J
M
5

At
NU

R
l4

:t«
S

O
F

W
AY

O
f

1tI
:C

Of
CD

.

I~
~
?
~

[O
W

N
ER

SH
iP

Af
F.!

PA
VI

T,
1

1
D

II
Y

H
1
•
•
•
.
-
z
C
E
l
I
I
.
.
.
.
.
.
,
~
.
.
.

\
_

"
IlL

IA
ID

IlI
1S

.
.

A
lU

:I
lI

Im
._

1
Il

ft
l,

_
.
-

_
Q

IIO
II8

JC
llU

S
_

_

..
.L

"'
:R

I
G
~
T

O
F

W
AY

II
I

T
--

j I 'IR
EF

ER
EN

CE
S

I
I

N
T

ll
M

a
""

lS
fA

S
I"

,"
",

'!
D

lI
ll
l'
''
''
lI

1
lJ

J
ll
J
,'

''
--

''
'l
S

lI
l

A
lI

C
II

D
tt

lS
.S

lll
llJ

IG
~
a
.
a
:
R
I
l
6
.
I
J

JO
.
.
.
.

I
'

it
G

LI
lA

IIJ
III

lU
JI

'lI
lU

D
I

lI
IJ

II
llU

ll'
.

_
_

:lQ
,.

.I
/l

ll
"
"
'.
.
.
_

&
II

Il
1

6
M

I/
"

1
M

om
n.w

'll
P

O
it

O
IR

C
:S

I.
H

T
.U

S
9.

.'l
M

Y
P

IO
.

tS
JH

.
.
.

IiD
S&

IIC
lM

9I
JI

fft
ar

I
fI

n
t:

1
U

A
lf

G
N

:
.
.

u
.
s
.
~
Z
!
l
.
3
8
·
·
.
E
A
S
l.
.
.

m
lla

lf
Q

('
tt

4
IG

'lL
"'

tm
e

m
-J

11
11

)0

..
fW

9f
flT

UD
"D

iP
OI

£H
rI

«S
lJ

W
(f

'
V.

s.
9J

M
.Y

W
I.
2
5
J
8
~

At
AS

Q"
~
~

t6
LD

I"
•

rt
T

J(
)I

JW
f'
.
.
.
.

.
.

u.s
.S

LM
Y

25
JS

-A
rA

ST
JiI

X
lII

:o
.ID

J<
m

Ill
I

TO
l'N

SI
It
~
W
D
l
l
l
D

10
.

tfl
8

lM
II

lI
II

ll
Il

"
_

IS
,l

G
S

ll
II

ll
_

lt
D

ll
l_

U
ll
ll
tY

.,
2

l3
&

-l
N
w
.
:
'
:
.
&
~
-
=
~
d
W
I
l
l
l
m
_
I
J
.
~
n

n Q
l

V
'l

(l
) Z o V
I .... IJ
J

I o N 0
0 » '0 '0 n Q
l

.-
+ O· :J "'
tl

Q
l

O'
Q (l
)

N o N

105



Public Hearing Item 7 C

P & Z July 17, 2013

MEMORANDUM
DATE:

TO:

FROM:

SUBJ:

CASE:

APPLICANT:

AGENT:

REQUEST:

LOCATION:

ZONING:

July 5, 2013, 2003

Planning and Zoning Commission

Community Development Department

Information for the July 17, 2013 Regular Meeting

513-028

City of Kodiak

Mark Kozak

Preliminary approval, according to KIBC 16.40, of the replat of Lot 1A, Block 30 and Lot

9, Block 31, East Addition Subdivision, including the vacation of portions of the Stellar

Way right-of-way according to KIBC 16.60, creating Lot 1B, Block 30 and Lot 9B, Block

31, East Addition Subdivision.

816 Rezanof Drive & 816 Stellar Way.

R3-Multi-family & R2-Two-family zoning districts.

Forty-five (45) public hearing notices were mailed on June 11, 2013.

Date of site visit: Various

1.

2.

3.

4.

Minimum lot size:

Compliance:

Minimum lot width:

Compliance:

Existing land uses:

Compliance:

Existing structure(s) on the property:

Compliance with setbacks:

Compliance with other zoning regulations:

Encroachments:

7,200 Square Feet

Yes

60 Lineal Feet

Yes

Residential

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

5. Topography:

Provides good building sites:

Provides good parking areas:

Allows driveway construction to meet

Case 513-028 Staff Report Page 1 of 5

Yes

Yes

106



maximum slope requirement:

6. Physical Features:

Wetlands, streams, drainage courses:

Need for driveway/access restrictions:

Adequate line of sight:

Adequate access for additional traffic volume:

Adequate access from a safety standpoint:

Neighborhood character:

Double frontage lots:

Flag lots:

Adequate access for fire apparatus:

Utility installation meets Title 13:

Common wall or zero-lot line:

Public Hearing Item 7 C
P & ZJuly 17, 2013

Yes

No

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Medium / High Density Residential

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

No

7.

Frontage on dedicated public right-of-way:

Other road and utility improvements
required before final approval:

Existing Plat Restrictions:

Compliance:

Yes

No

No

N/A

8. Applicable Regulations: The following sections of Title 16 of the Borough Code and
the Kodiak Island Borough Coastal Management Program
are applicable to this request:

KIBC 16.40.060 Procedure

A. The community development department director shall review the preliminary subdivision
plat for completeness within five working days of receipt. If the plat does not meet the
requirements of KIBC 16.40.020 through 16.40.050, the community development department
director shall notify the subdivider and surveyor in writing stating the additional information
required.

C. An accepted preliminary plat shall be sent to official review agencies established by the
commission for review and comment. Comment from the review agencies must be submitted
in writing to the community development department director nine working days prior to the
commission meeting at which the plat will be considered.

Case 513-028 Staff Report Page 2 of 5
107



Public Hearing Item 7 C
P & ZJuly 17, 2013

E. The commission shall approve or disapprove a plat 60 days after it is filed or shall return it to
the applicant for modification or correction, unless the applicant for plat approval consents to
an extension of time. The commission shall adopt specific findings of fact and reasons for its
action on the plat. The subdivider shall be notified in writing of the action and findings of the
commission within five working days.

G. All decisions as to approval or disapproval of a preliminary plat by the commission shall be
final unless a request for reconsideration or an appeal is brought pursuant to Chapter 16.90
KIBC.

REVIEW AGENCY COMMENTS

Alaska Communications Systems-Engineering Department-Kenai

Alaska Dept. of Transportation & Public Facilities-Central Region Planning

"The Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities, ADOT&PF, Central Region
platting review committee has no comment recently submitted plat:"

City of Kodiak-Building Officials

City of Kodiak-Public Works Department

Fire Marshal

GCI Cable, Inc.

Kodiak Island Borough-Engineering and Facilities Department

Kodiak Island Borough Parks & Recreation Committee

Kodiak Electric Association-Engineering Department

"No comment"

United States Postal Service

Case 513-028 Staff Report Page 3 of 5
108



109



Public Hearing Item 7 C
P & ZJuly 17, 2013

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of this request.

APPROPRIATE MOTION

Should; the Commission agree with staffs recommendation, the appropriate motion is:

Move to grant preliminary approval, approvat according to KIBC 16.40, of the
replat of Lot lA, Block 30 and Lot 9, Block 31, East Addition Subdivision, including
the vacation of portions of the Stellar Way right-of-way according to KIBC 16.60,
creating Lot 1B, Block 30 and Lot 9B, Block 31, East Addition Subdivision, and to
adopt the findings in that staff dated July 5, 2013 as "Findings of Fact" for Case
No. S13-028.

FINDINGS OF FACT:

1. This plat meets the minimum standards of survey accuracy and proper preparation of
plats required in Title 16 of the Borough Code.

2. This plat meets all the requirements of Title 17 of the Borough Code.

3. This plat provides a subdivision of land that is consistent with adopted Borough plans for
this area.

Case S13-028 Staff Report Page 5 of 5
110



PubliC Hearmg Item I C

P&Z July 17, 2013

Kodiak Island Borough
Community Development Department

710 Mill Bay Road Room 205
Kodiak, Alaska 99615

Phone (907) 486-9363 Fax (907) 486-9396
www.kodiakak.us

June 12, 2013

City of Kodiak
Mark Kozak
710 Mill Bay Road
Kodiak, AK 99615

Re: Case S13-028. Request Preliminary approval, according to KIBC 16.40, of the replat of Lot lA,
Block 30 and Lot 9, Block 31, East Addition Subdivision, including the vacation of portions of
the Stellar Way right-of-way according to KIBC 16.60, creating Lot lB, Block 30 and Lot 9B,
Block 31, East Addition Subdivision.

Dear Mr. Kozak:

Please be advised that the Kodiak Island Borough Planning and Zoning Commission has scheduled the
case referenced above for Public Hearing at their July 17, 2013 regular meeting. This meeting will begin
at 6:30 p.m. in the Assembly Chambers, 710 Mill Bay Road, Kodiak, Alaska. Attendance at this meeting
is not mandatory but recommended.

One week prior to the regular meeting, on Wednesday, July 10, 2013 at 6:30 p.m. in the Borough
Conference Room (#121), the Commission will hold a packet review work session for the purpose of
reviewing packet materials and staff sununaries of cases scheduled for the regular meeting.

The public is welcome to attend the packet review work session; however, the work session is not for the
purpose of receiving public testimony. Applicants who wish to present testimony andlor evidence related
to their case should appear at the Public Hearing during the Regular Meeting and present such
information in person.

Please contact the Community Development Department at 486-9363 if we can answer any outstanding
questions or provide additional information. In advance, thank you for your cooperation.

Sincerely,

Sheila Smith, Secretary
Community Development Department

CC: St. Denny Surveying

Case No. 513-028 Public Comment Page 1 of 9
111



112



Public Hearmg Item I C

P&Z July 17, 2013

KODIAK ISLAND BOROUGH
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

710 Mill Bay Road, Kodiak, Alaska 99615

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE
""'Ii, H,m"g "'m 7-CI

A public hearing will be held on Wednesday, July 17,2013. The meeting will begin at 6:30 p.m. in the Borough
Assembly Chambers, 710 Mill Bay Road, Kodiak, Alaska, before the Kodiak Island Borough Planning and Zoning
Commission, to hear comments if any, on the followingrequest:

CASE:
APPLICANT:
AGENT:
REQUEST:

LOCATION:
ZONING:

S13-028
City of Kodiak
Mark Kozak
Preliminary approval, according to KlBC 16.40, of the replat of Lot lA, Block 30 and
Lot 9, Block 31, East Addition Subdivision, including the vacation of portions of the
Stellar Way right-of-way according to KlBC 16.60, creating Lot IB, Block 30 and
Lot 9B, Block 31, East Addition Subdivision.
816 RezanofDrive & 816 Stellar Way Right-of-Ways
R3-Multi-family Residential & R2-Two-family Residential

This notice is being sent to you because our records indicate you are a property owner/interested party in the area of
the request. If you do not wish to testify verbally, you may provide your comments in the space below or in a letter
to the Community Development Department. Written comments must be received by 5 pm, July 2, 2013 to be
considered by the commission. If you would like to fax your comments tous, our fax number is: (907) 486-9396, or
you may email your comments to ssmith@kodiakak.us. If you would like to testify via telephone, please call in
your comments during the appropriate public hearing section of the meeting. The local call-in telephone
number is 486-3231. The toll free telephone number is 1-855-492-9202.

One week prior to the regular meeting, on Wednesday, July 10,2013, a work session will be held at 6:30 p.m. in the
Kodiak Island Borough Conference Room (#121), to review the packet material for the case.

Kodiak Island Borough Code provides you with specific appeal rights if you disagree with the Commission's
decision on this request. If you have any questions about the request or your appeal rights, please feel free to call us
at 486-9363.

Your Name: Mailing Address:

Your property description:

Comments:

Case No. 513-028 Public Comment Page 3 of 9
113



._
-
-
-
-
_

.._-

"'t
:

c: C
'

-o
n

f(
O

::
:r

N
(
'l

)
..

..
.

Q
)

c:
~

-
:
J

'<
O

Q
....

-
~"'

-J
(ti

!'
J
3

0 .....
'

w
r.

.....
.-

_
_

_
C

IS

..--
_

I
I
.
.
-

_.......
...

l
..

..
.
~
_
.
J
I

•
.
.
.
.
,

.
.
.
.
.

...
..--

.....
.--.

..
=
=
-
"
'
:
I
'
a
~
~

=
.:F

__.
.
:
.
~
,
.
-
&

•

_
"
_

..
..

..
.
_

l
l
l
I
o

r
lll

'J

TA
X

CE
RT

IFI
CA

TE
,_

ID
IF

/D
lII_

11
I1

l1
'_1

IT
l(_

,..
._

1l
l

ll
ll
IS

_
M

lI
ll
'_

ll
D

.
.
.
.
.

II
'''

'''
C

ll
If

:
_

M
U

II
l.

rw
.

lI
Il

lI
IB

Il
ll
ll
_

II
_

1
lE

1
II

5
-.

J
i1

lf
J
i

lO
ll

_
*
,
_

1
l_

1
lE

1
I
I
S

_
_

lllT
fJ

i
lI

tl

lI
lY

_

lI
lY

"'
Il

Il

cn
_

,1
ID

_
1

lt
lJ
.
.
.

lI
l.
.

1
7

K
_

,_
_

11
11

ll
ll

aJ
:I

lL
£l

ll
lI

II
S

Il
lI

10
8l

:.
1U

lS
.
_

..
..

..
..

_
_

_
.
.

O
II

O
Il

U
:/

It
Jf

;
_

_

ll1Y
_

PL
AT

AP
PR

OV
AL

-.
..~-

.
.
.
.
,
~

=.
:;

I
_

D
II

IL
-

_

1
It

5
S

II
C

II
II

F
f'

"
_

..
..

S
II

ll
._

lI
ll

X
1

1
1

*
1

..
.
_

_
.
.
-

_
a
a
r
_

_
1l

I't
1l

01
11

--
'-

--
--

--
--

d
;I

D
I;

Q
B

!I
fA

D
'

OW
NE

RS
Hi

P
AH

iD
AV

IT

--
-


,

60
'

I
-
C
~
~

4
)'

So

20
'-LO

T
08

:I
i

c' ---tp
io '

.•
-;
~~
;?
:.
~
J
8
~
~
~

=
:~
T

'B
INO

TA
RY

AC
KN

OW
LE

DG
t.lE

NT
I

I
TI

IS
S

U
Il

>
'a

'

!E
J:-
~
~

":
.J

to
l"

""
"-

~
LO

T
10

V
A

C
A

TI
O

N
o

r,
PA

RT
or

S
TE

Ll
A

A
W

AY
'
~
L
E
:
I
.

R
IG

H
T

or
W

AY
aL

O
C

K
S

JO
.

EA
ST

AI
l0

m
O

N
.U

.S
.

SU
R

VE
Y

2:
13

8
B

V
A

C
A

TI
O

N
or

LO
T

lA
an

a
LO

T
9:

B
LO

C
K

S
:1

0
A

N
D

:1
1.

EA
ST

A
D

D
iT

lO
N

.U
.S

.
SU

R
VE

Y
2

5
3

8
B

C
R

EA
TI

N
G

·
LO

T
1B

B
l.O

C
K

03
0

E
A

S
l

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

.
U

.S
.

SU
R

VE
Y

2
5

3
8

B
LO

T
9

8
B

LO
C

K
31

EA
ST

AD
D

IT
IO

N
.

U
.S

.
S

U
R

V
E

Y
2

5
3

8
a

~
Do.

n::
06
-0
1-
20
1~

..~
·
~
2
0
~
1
~
~
~
_
~
:

I,I
.S

T.
O

.
I

ST
.

OE
NN

Y
5U

lM
:'t

1h
C

.
IN

C.
P.

O
.

BO
X

J8
lI

_
_

_
~.

,.
_

_
IA

U
U

IA
A

,
A
L
.
A
~
l
\
A

fS
:J

D
io

:J
I..

.KO
O

W
C

_
_

,
_A

LA
S_

KA
_9

_B
_8

_1
5

_

----
--

r=
:

C
E
N
T
E
R
L
I
~

R
E

ZA
N

O
F

D
R

IV
E

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y

-
-
-
I

---
lLU

St.
rf
~
'
~
i
f
~
1
~

...
'T
O-
~I
lf
H.
IQ
)(
TI
lC
iU
M'
f(
j•

.u:s
'""'..

.""''
'"...'
'''

_...
..-
-
-
;
]

~
O
f
L
i
:
(

..
_.

sa
W

llO
'S

llA
S

aI
D

O
lt!

r1
l/.

S
IIl

IT
.tm

R
l'S

(M
u.

.t
Sl

JW
£'

tJ
()

2$
Jl

h\
.

I=
=
l
/
~
l
D
f
A
,
~
,:

:.
;:

r=
:
,
:
~
s
-
"
O
~
'
U
.
l
t
l
lU

IU
P

'
"

D
C

f
rs

IL
lS

H
Y

II
I

ft
JI

"

LO
T

2A

-
'4

0
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

';>
01

~
~
~
'
~
~
r
~
:
J

~
.
-
~
D
I
I
/
I
A
Y

5
~
~
'
o
o
'
)
)
-
k
:

.
R

2
-
;
-
-

_
.

...
.,

6
'.

..
..

./
.

1.·_
.--

"c
_

...
.:

...
...

...
...

..
/
,

:;;
;>

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

B
LO

C
K

31
I I I I I

--
1

B
LO

C
K

3
0

._
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

,

:I
i~I'"G1
~

S
&

.:"
"'" -
'"..:;. -
-
~

C
£"

tr
R

u/
j£

-
----

-
----

--

-
-
/

- ----Jr
t
I
1
i
1
~
~
b
~
~
~
T

LO
T

D
B

W
AT

ER
AN

D
SE

W
ER

S
[R

V
IC

E
S

AR
E

AC
C

fS
S

F'R
OI

il
M

IS
SI

O
N

RO
AD

,

L
E

G
E

N
D

•
2

"
A

W
Io

IN
U

W
C

A
P

TO
B

E
S

E
T

(lo
t)

M
EA

SU
RE

D
D

IM
EN

SI
O

N

(R
1)

RE
CO

RD
DI

M
EN

SI
O

N
PL

AT
77

-1
3

(R
2)

RE
CO

RD
DI

M
EN

SI
O

N
PL

AT
6

7
-0

6

~
\
3
-
D
2
'
t
;

NO
TE

: S
U

lL
Jt

C
l

ro
IlI

J.
.

o:
Jr

C
lfT

IO
N

I.
$

E
JW

lT
\«

s.
lA

5£
M

C
H

fS
,
c
~
s
.

A
(
~
f
Q
t
.

R
tS

U
aC

lW
M

S
A

M
I

1I
HJ
Kf
~

O
f

.A
r

o
r

M
CO

RD
.

RE
FE

RE
NC

ES
I

...
.'!

>
Ii

1.
I>

'lU
J1

7i
1o

l1
-.

._
_

$
Il
.
.
.
iIS

_..
2

1
lf

.
'
_
f
J
i
U
_
I
I
l
_
~
"
"
I
l
l
l
)
_
"
'
l
'
"

I.
lU

Il
lI

Il
\l

Il
'I

Im
I

..
..

..
..

..
.

_
_

J
I,

S
_

I1
m

Il
_

_
.
.
-
_

_
II

ll
J
Ir

II
&

P
Il

I"
..

J.
IW

00
ItU

D
'tU

U
iL

tlI
~
"
u
s

Sl
.."

M
Y

¥L
9

-o
l
.
.
.

AI
D

U
CI

M
!I*

fI
U

J
'

(J
\)

f
IU

M
r

IU
D

I!
I(

.
.
.

us
5U

M
T

ZW
-A

W
A

ta
ID

c
R

)
~

10
l1

G
1L

Cl
tW

l
e
a
a
-J

II
1tJ

O

4
.
l
'
W
o
o
m
m
~
~
C
f
V
.
$
5
l
J
t
I
l
Y
f
r
l
C
l
.
1
.
S
3
8
-
A
~
~
~
C
f
L
M
l
c
r
l
l
(
.
.

E
I¥

R
H

N
u.s

.u
-A

Y
2

5
»

-'
£A

Sf
m

IU
ll

U
i4C

lJ&
l(

TC
lIlW

SD
£

0t
JD

W
U

II
D

le
.

19
J1

J

l
M

1I
II

II
lII

'_
ct.

ta
ll

.,
.

&l
D

C
JQ

O
llf
_

U
_

1
0

_
.

W
.
~
W
~
'
1
c
=
&
r
Y
.
.
t
~
1
l
O
I
l
I
I
_
'
~lIn

...
.c

-:
R

lG
rT

O
F

W
'Y
~

'I
V

IC
IN

IT
Y

M
A

P
I

T
-

n Q
)

V
I

('l
) Z o V
I .... W I o IV 0

0
~ c: e- n n o 3 3 ('l

)
:J .-

+ -0 Q
)

OQ ('l
)

~ o U)

114



Public Hearing Item VI-D

MEMORANDUM

DATE:
TO:
FROM:
STAFF
SUBJ:

CASE:

APPLICANT:

REQUEST:

LOCATION:

ZONING:

January 11,2005
Planning and Zoning Commission
Community Development Department
Duane Dvorak, Associate Planner
Information for the January 18th

, 2005 Regular Meeting

804-023

City of Kodiak

Preliminary approval, in accordance with KIBC 16.60, of a vacation of
portions of an un-constructed cul-de-sac at the end of Stellar Way "Alley"
Right-of-Way (and other related access easements); and, preliminary
approval, in accordance with KIBC 16.40, of the replat of Lot lA, Block
30 and Lot 9, Block 31, East Addition, creating Lot 1B, Block 30 and Lot
9B, Block 31, East Addition.

816 E. RezanofDr. & 816 Stellar Way

R3-Multifamily Residential

Fifty-one (51) public hearing notices were mailed on January 4, 2005.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

Minimum lot size:

Compliance:

Minimum lot width:

Compliance:

Existing land usees):

Existing structures on the property:

Compliance with setbacks:

Compliance with other zoning regulations:

Encroachments:

Topography:

Provides good building sites:

Provides good parking areas:

Allows driveway construction to meet maximum slope requirement:

7,200 Square Feet

Yes

60 Feet

Yes

Residential

Yes

Residential

N/A

Yes

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Case S04-023/Staff Report Page 1 of6 P & Z: January 19,2005115



7.

6. Physical Features:

Wetlands, streams, drainage courses:

Need for driveway/access restrictions:

Adequate line of sight:

Adequate access for additional traffic volume:

Adequate access from a safety standpoint:

Neighborhood character:

Double frontage lots:

Flag lots:

Adequate access for fire apparatus:

Utility installation meets Title 13:

Common wall or zero-lot line:

Frontage on dedicated public right-of-way:

Other road and utility improvements

required before final approval:

Existing Plat Restrictions:

Compliance:

Public Hearing Item VI-D

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Mixed Density Residential

Yes

No

Yes

N/A

No

Yes

No

No

Yes

APPLICABLE CODE PROVISIONS

Per Kodiak Island Borough Code 16.20.100 Easement. An interest in land owned by another that
entitles the easement holder to a specified limited use or enjoyment.

Per Kodiak Island Borough Code 16.20.260 - Vacation. The act of making legally void any
right-of-way, easement, public area, or other public interest.

Per Kodiak Island Borough Code 16.20.160 Plat. A map or chart ofa surveyed subdivision of
land.

A.

B. Preliminary plat. A map showing the salient features of a proposed subdivision of land
submitted to the commission for purposes of preliminary consideration and approval.

C.

Per Kodiak Island Borough Code 16.40 - Preliminary Plat: ... .in whole .....

Per Kodiak Island Borough Code 16.60.010 - Generally. The commission shall consider the
merits of each vacation request and in all cases the commission shall deem [italics added] the
area being vacated to be of value to the borough or a city unless proven otherwise. The burden of
proof shall lie entirely with the petitioner.

Case S04-023/Staff Report Page 2 of6 P & Z: January 19,2005116



Public Hearing Item VI-D

Per Kodiak Island Borough Code 16.60.030 - Required application. In submitting a vacation
application, the applicant shall submit the following items to the community development
department director by the deadline established for the commission agenda (the Friday after the
regular monthly meeting) to be considered at the next regular meeting.

A. A written statement containing reasons in support of the vacation.

B. A map illustrating the area to be vacated. The map must also show the outer boundary of
the property receiving the benefit of the dedication and the location of all known public
improvements within the area being vacated.

Per Kodiak Island Borough Code 16.60.060 - Additional Approval required.

A. A decision to grant a vacation is not effective unless approved by the city council if the
vacated area is within a city or by the assembly if the vacated area is within the borough
outside a city. The council or assembly shall have thirty (30) days from receipt of the
decision to veto the vacation. If the vacation is not vetoed within the thirty (30) day
period, the consent of the councilor assembly shall be considered to have been given to
the vacation.

A veto or approval of a vacation under subsection A of this section is a fmallegislative decision
and is not subject to administrative appeal. However, where a vetoed vacation had received
administrative approval in conjunction with the preliminary plat for a subdivision, the
preliminary plat approval without the vacation is subject to a petition for reconsideration under
section 16.90.010 of this title. (Ord. 90-15 §2 (part), 1990)

COASTAL MANAGEMENT APPLICABLE POLICIES

The KIBCMP does not address minor boundary changes to existing lots and rights-of-way.

REVIEW AGENCY COMMENTS

Alaska Communications Systems-Eng. Dept.-Kenai:

No objection.

Alaska Dept. of Transportation and Public Facilities - Central Region Planning:

(No comment received regarding this action).

Fire Marshal:

(No comment received regarding this action).

Gel Cable Inc.:

(No comment received regarding this action).

City of Kodiak-Building Officials:

(No comment received regarding this action).

Case S04-023/Staff Report Page 3 of6 P & Z: January 19,2005117



Public Hearing Item VI-D

City of Kodiak - Public Works Department:

No objection.

Kodiak Island Borough-Eng. & Facilities Dept.:

(No comment received regarding this action).

Kodiak Electric Association-Eng. Dept.:

No Comment

STAFF COMMENTS

SECTION I: RIGHT-OF-WAY VACATION(S)

The petitioner has requested the vacation of two portions of an un-constructed cul-de-sac at the
end of Stellar Way. Portion 1, a 925.1 square foot parcel, will be incorporated into proposed Lot
1B, Block 30, East Addition. Portion 2, a 343.7 square foot parcel, will be incorporated into
proposed Lot 9B, Block 31, East Addition. In addition, it appears that there is also a vacation of
a ten foot wide "strip of land" easement or right-of-way that is to be partially vacated along the
west side of proposed Lot 1B, an area of 509.8 square feet.

In apparent exchange for the portion of right-of-way to be vacated along Stellar Way and the
"strip of land", proposed Lot 1B is providing about 727 square feet of lot area which will be
dedicated to Stellar Way in order to provide an area for vehicles to tum around at the end of
Stellar Way. According to verbal information provided by the applicant, the un-constructed
portion of Stellar Way cul-de-sac would have been much more expensive to construct than the
new turning area currently being proposed.

The design of the cul-de-sac vacation is intended to provide a transition of right-of-way width to
connect Stellar Way with the remainder right-of-way that provides pedestrian access to Mission
Road. In the case of the "strip of land", it appears that this area is no longer required for future
access between Rezanof Drive and Stellar Way in lieu of the new stairway improvements being
developed by the City ofKodiak farther to the east.

KlBC 16.60 requires the Commission to presume that the vacated area has value to the city
unless the petitioner can document otherwise. In this case the petitioner is the city and
presumably the city council is aware of this action. In addition, the vacation is required to be
reviewed by the city council prior to fmal plat approval. As a result, staff considers this
requirement to be met, however the commission may request additional information of the
petitioner if it feels that additional information is required to supplement the record for this case.

SECTION II: SUBDIVISION

The vacation requests described above are providing additional lot area to both of the adjoining
lots. Normally when right-of-way is vacated adjoining property owners are required to benefit in
equal measure from the vacated land. This appears to be a special circumstance, however with
the land trade affecting Lot 1B, and the adjoining public dedication which will continue to
support vehicle turning maneuvers. Whereas proposed Lot 9B will no longer be impacted by
such maneuvers when the development is complete. Presumably all the affected parties will
signify their satisfaction with the subdivision design when they sign off on the final plat.

Case S04-023/Staff Report Page 4 of6 P & Z: January 19,2005118



Public Hearing Item VI-D

The vacation benefits both parcels by providing additional lot area. Proposed Lot 9B gains 343.7
square feet and proposed Lot 1B gains 707.9 square feet (net after land trade). In both cases the
shape and utility of the lots remains relatively unaffected by this action, the additional land
appears to be a simple matter of convenience to both parcels. As a result, staff has not focused
on the replat in this case review.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends preliminary approval, in accordance with KlBC 16.60, of a vacation of
portions of an un-constructed cul-de-sac at the end of Stellar Way "Alley" Right-of-Way (and
other related access easements); and, preliminary approval, in accordance with KlBC 16.40, of
the replat of Lot lA, Block 30 and Lot 9, Block 31, East Addition, creating Lot 1B, Block 30 and
Lot 9B, Block 31, East Addition.

APPROPRIATE MOTION I: RIGHT-OF-WAY VACATIONS

Move to grant preliminary approval of the vacation of portions of the Stellar Way cul-de-sac
which will provide 925.1 square feet to proposed Lot IB, Block 30, East Addition and provide
343.7 square feet to proposed Lot 9B, Block 31, East Addition; and the vacation of a portion of a
10 foot wide "strip of land" easement which will add 509.8 square feet to proposed Lot 1B,
Block 30, East Addition, subject to one condition of approval and to adopt the findings in the
staff report dated January 11,2005 as fmdings of fact in this case.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

1. The vacation must be forwarded to the City Council for review prior to final plat
approval.

APPROPRIATE MOTION II: SUBDIVISION

Move to grant preliminary approval of the replat of Lot lA, Block 30 and Lot 9, Block 31, East
Addition as indicated on the preliminary plat dated November 8, 2004, creating Lots IB, Block
30 and 9B, Block 31, East Addition, and to adopt the findings in the staff report dated January
11, 2005 as findings of fact in this case.

FINDINGS OF FACT (applicable to both motions)

1. This request for replat meets the minimum data required per Kodiak Island Borough Code
16.40.040, generally.

2. This request for replat meets the minimum design requirements per Kodiak Island
Borough Code 16.40.050, generally.

3. This request provides a vacation of a utility easement that is consistent with adopted plans
for this area.

4. This request for vacation does not unduly diminish the public's interests.

Case S04-023/Staff Report Page 5 of6 P & Z: January 19, 2005
119



Public Hearing Item VI-D

5. This request for vacation does not unduly prejudice surrounding private property
interests.

Case S04-023/Staff Report Page 6 of6 P & Z: January 19,2005
120



MAR 19 '04 10:28AM

IAttachment B

AGBEEMENT TOPUIlCHASE lUGHT-oF-WAY
816llczanof

Eut Addition Subdivision. Block 30. Lot IA

The City ofKoctiak will purclwe 727.06 square feet ofrisbt-of-w&y in the Northeast camer ofLot lA,
Block 30, East Addition Subdivision for the c:omtnaction ofa vehicle tunJuowld area. The ara is shown
in the attacbed sbtch. The IGtu8I position ofthe riaht-ot-way will be determined by survey to be at leut
10.0 &et from the bKk of the house. any fimn adclitiOll on the ou'. of town side <:ID meet the code
RqUired 10 foot minimum setbade distuce. (The actual surveyed area ofthe acquisition may be leu than
the 727J16 sqUlII'O feet measured on the drawiD& but the total purclwe~ ofrered below will not be
diminished)

In consideration for the npt.of.way the City will:

• Pay the owner $7.00 PG' square foot for the property for a total of$'.089.42 (minimum total price);
to be Q'eCIited toward the usessmeat on this property;

• Vacate *92S.12 square feet of riaht-of-way ftom the cukle.sac at the end of Steller and c:onYey
this property to Lot lA;

• Pave the steep pottion of the driveway shown on the attadled sketdl with at least a 3-foot wide
tnmsition ofleveling coune between tile CIJd ofthe pavement aDd the gravel paring area;

• Due the property usesamen1 on a lot size of 10.172 square feet which is the usessment lot size of
10.899sqU8l'e feet minus the TTI square feet to be acquiRd; and

• Bear the colt ofcIocumeDtiDa ad RCOnIiDs the property 1nDIfas.

City ofKodiak

121



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

122



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

123



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL

To: Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers

From: Aimee Kniaziowski, City Managi!L

Date: August 8, 2013

Agenda Item: X. Executive Session to Discuss the Terms of the City Manager's Employment
Contract

SUMMARY: Annually, the City Council reviews the performance of the City Manger and discusses the
terms of a partial employment contract. The Manager's performance review was conducted in April
2013. The City also adopted a new classification and compensation system in April which, by revisions
to the Personnel Rules and Regulations, removed the Manager from the pay scale. The next step in the
process is to discuss the terms of a new employment contract for the Manager. In accordance with the
Open Meetings Act, the City Manager does not object to the discussion being done in executive session.

PROPOSED MOTION:
Move to enter into executive session as authorized by Kodiak. City Code Section 2.04.1 OO(b)(2)
to discuss the terms of the City Manager's employment contract.

AUGUST 8, 2013
Agenda Item X. Memo Page 1 of 1

124


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes of the July 25, 2013, Regular Council Meeting
	Unfinished Business
	a.	Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1310, Amending Kodiak City Code 3.08.025, Allocation of Tax Proceeds, to Eliminate the December 31, 2013, Sunset Date for a Portion of the City Sales Tax
	Attachment A

	b.	Authorization of Postage Machine Agreement
	Attachment A
	Attachment B


	New Business
	a.	First Reading, Ordinance No. 1311, Amending Kodiak City Code 5.40.010, Businesses on City Property Prohibited; Repealing and Reenacting Kodiak City Code Chapter 10.08, Motor Vehicle and Driving Offenses—Rules of the Road; Enacting Kodiak City Code Chapter 10.16, Stopping, Standing, and Parking; Repealing and Reenacting Kodiak City Code 10.40.010, Impoundment; Repealing Kodiak City Code 10.44.020, Failure to Obey Citation; Repealing and Reenacting Kodiak City Code 10.44.030, Vehicle and Traffic Offenses—Fine Schedule; to Provide for a Civil System for Parking Enforcement
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C

	b.	Resolution No. 2013–25, Appropriating Funds for Additional Construction Expenses Related to the Shelikof Pedestrian Improvement Project
	Attachment A

	c.	Authorization of Professional Services Contract for Pillar Mountain Slide Analysis, Project No. 8013/11-07
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C

	d.	Authorization to Purchase Baranof Track and Field Bleachers, Project No. 9001/12-05
	Attachment A

	e.	Authorization of Bid Award for Annual Sidewalk, Curb, and Gutter Repairs, Project No. 5003/14-01
	Attachment A

	f.	Authorization of Bid Award for Harbor Projects 2013, Project No. 14-02
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	g.	Authorization of Bid Award for Demolition of Old Kodiak Police Station and 1118 Mission Road Buildings, Project No. 4035/13-06
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	h.	Authorization of the Re-plat of Lot 1A, Block 30 and Lot 9, Block 31, East Addition Subdivision, Including the Vacation of Portions of the Stellar Way Right-of-Way According to KIBC 16.60, Creating Lot 1B, Block 30 and Lot 9B, Block 31, East Addition Subdivision
	Attachment A
	Attachment B


	Executive Session
	Executive Session to Discuss the Terms of the City Manager’s Employment Contract




